Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

OMB No. 1545-0047

Form Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code {(except private foundations)
Department of the Treasury P Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

Internal Revenue Service Information is at

A For the 2016 calendar or tax and endi

C Name of organization

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
business as

D Employer identification number

34-0714585

Number and street (0r P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number

6801 BRECKSVILLE RD

216-444-2200

g City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G Gross receipts $ 6,803,121 ,113,
INDEPENDENCE OH 44131 H(a) Is this a group return
F Name and address of principal officer;:DELOS M, COSGROVE for subordinates? I:]Yes [(x] No
SAME AS C ABOVE H(b) Are all subordinates included’?lj Yes D No
501 501 no. or 527 If "No," attach a list. (see instructions)
J Website: WWW,CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG Grou
K Form of Association Other Year of formation; 1921 State of
mary
o 1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities; PATIENT CARE, RESEARCH &
2 EDUCATION
E 2 Check this box P> if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
3 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) L 3 22
2 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 18
$ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2016 (Part V, line 2a) 5 36897
£ 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . 6 1911
z) 7 a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), line 12 7a 55,563,613
b business taxable income from Form 7b -2,792,7117
Prior Year Current Year
o B8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 226,230,648 245,922,291,
E 9 Program service revenue (Part VI, line 2g) ) 4,869,018,511 5 176,265,188,
E:; 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 147,764,428 137 262,100,
11 Other revenue (Part ViIl, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e) 86,627,710 72 376 407,
12 Total revenue - throu 11 PartVI column  line1 5,329,641, 297 5 631 825 986,
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 118,808,523 127 070 488,
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (4), line 4) Lo 0.
@ 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 2,661,500,472, 3 054 229 568,
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) o . . 1,683,301, 1524 725
g b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) P> 14,189,808,
w7 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) 2,012,647,016, 2,245,232 776
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 4,794,639 312, 5 428 057 557
19 Revenue less Subtract line 18 line 12 535,001,985, 203,768,429
5 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 9,069,861,870, 10,001,576,185
21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 4,691,944,158 5 304 554 307,
22 21 from line 20 4,377,917,712 4 697 021 878,
Part Il re
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and co Declaration of (other than is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.
Sign
Here STEVEN C. GLASS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
}Ype Or Print Nname ang ute
Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature vae lﬁ'heck L
Paid s empoved 00089502
Preparer  Firm's name ERNST & YOUNG LLP Firm's EIN 34-6565596

Use Only  Firm's address p, 950 MAIN AVENUE, #1800
CLEVELAND, OH 44113

the IRS

632001 11-11-16  LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Phone no.2168615000

X  Yes
Form 990 (2016)



Form 8453-EO Exempt Organization Declaration and Signature for
Electronic Filing

For calendar year 2018, or tax year beglnning . 20186, and ending 20 2

of the Treasury For use with Forms 880, 990-EZ, 990-PF, 1120-POL, and 8868

enus Service
Employer identification number

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Partl  Type of Return and Return Information whole Dollars Only)

Check the box for the type of retumn belng filed with Form 8453-EO and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. If you check the box on
line 1a, 2a, 3a, 4a, or 5a below and the amount on that line of the return being filed with this form was blank, then leave line 1b, 2b, 3b, 4b, or &b,
whichever is applicable, blank {do not enter -0-). f you entered -O- on the return, then enter -0- on the applicable line below. Do not complete more
than one line in Part I.

1a Form 9980 check here ® [X] b Total revenue, it any (Form 890, Part VIll, column (A), line 12) 1b 5,631 825,986,
2a Form 890-EZ check here P> l:] b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line9) . 2b
3a Form 1120-POL checkhere > ] b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line22) . ... . 3b
4a Form 990-PF check here b Tax based on investment income (Form 890-PF, Pant VI, line 5) 4b
5a Form 8888 check here P b Balance due (Form 8868, line 3c) 5b

Declaration of Officer

LI 1 authorize the U.S. Treasury and its desigriated Financial Agest to initiate an Automated Clearing House (ACH) electronic funds withdrawal
(direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the organization's fudaral
taxes owed on this return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S.
Treasury Financial Agent at 1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. | also authorize the financial
institutions involved in the processing «f the electronic payment of taxes to receive confldential information necessary to answer inquiries
and resolve issues related to the payment.

[,:m] If a copy of this return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fad/State program, | certify that |
executed the electronic disclosure consent contained within this return allowing disclosure by the IRS of this Form 990/990-E2/990-PF
{as specifically identlfied in Part | above) to the selected state agency(ies).

Sign CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Here Signature of officer Title
Declaration of Electro Originator (ERO) and Paid Preparer(see instructions)

| declare that | have reviewed the above organization's return and that the entries on Form 8453-EQ are complete and corract to the best of my
knowladge. If | am only a collector, | am not responsibie for reviewing the retum and only declare that this form accurately reflects the data on the
return. The organization officer will have signed this form before | submit the return. | will give the offlcer a copy of all forms and information to be
filed with the IRS, and have followed all other requirements in Pub. 4163, Modernized e-file (MeF) Information for Authorized |IRS e-file Providers
for Business Returns. If | am also the Paid Preparer, under penalties of perjury | declare that | have examined the above organization's return and
accompanylng schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. This Paid Preparer
declaration is based on all Information of which | have any knowledge.

Dale Chack il Check ERO's S8N or PTIN
also paid if self-
ERO’S 52 e proparer employed
Use name
0 I yours if sell-amployed), EIN
n y address, and ZIP code Phone no,

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined the above retum and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my know-
ledge and belief, they are trus, correct, and complete. Declaratlon of preparer is based on all information of which the preparer has any knowledge.

name
Paid M 4 employed P00089502
Preparer rirmsrname p 7 Firm's EIN > 34-6565596
Use Only ERNST & YOUNG, LLP
MAIN AVENUE, 800 Phane no.
CLEVELAND OH 44113 2168615000
623061 11-15-16 LHA For Prlvacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notlce, see back of form. Form 8453-E0 (2016)
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Form 990 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
m
Check if Schedule O aresponse or note to any line in this Part (Il

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:
TO PROVIDE BETTER CARE OF THE SICK INVESTIGATION OF THEIR PROBLEMS

AND FURTHER EDUCATION OF THOSE WHO SERVE,

2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

ptior Form 990 or 990-EZ? o S L . Yes E No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? Yes [Zl No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each proaram service reported.

d4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 4 877 282 670. including grants of 127 070,488, ) (Revenus$ 5,176 265 188
SEE PROGRAM SERVICE STATEMENT IN SCHEDULE O

4b  (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $

4c  (Code: ) (Expenses § including grants of $ ) (Revenue $

4d  Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including arants of $ ) (Revenue $
d4e Total broaram service > 4,877,282,670
Form 990 (2016)
632002 11-11-16
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10

"

12a

13
14a

15

16

17

18

19

990 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
u

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
If "Yes," complete Schedule A = . o L 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B Schedule of Contr/butors? SR 2
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposmon to candldates for
public office? /f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part! . . . .. .. 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in Iobbymg activities, or have a sectlon 501 (h) electlon in effect
during the tax year? /f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part !l . = ... .. . .. 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membershlp dues assessments or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 /f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Partill . . .. B 5
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part! 6
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part !l | .7
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes ! complete
Schedule D, Part Iil 8
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV e s i, 9
Did the organization, directly or through a related organlzatnon hold assets in temporarlly restrlcted endowments permanent
endowments, or quasi-endowments? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartV .. .. .. .10
If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI VI, VIl lX or X
as applicable.
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? /7 "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Part VI s o 11a
Did the organization report an amount for mvestments other secuntles in Part X, hne 12 that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 162 /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Vil .. 11b
Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more of lts total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If 'Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl L R [
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 1672 /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX .. . . o 11d
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, l|ne 257 If "Yes ! complete Schedule D Part X .. 1e
Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11f
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? /f "Yes," complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xll = . o .. 12a
Was the organization included in consolldated lndependent audlted flnan0|a| statements for the tax year'>
If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts X! and Xil is optional 12b
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule E o . 13
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? = = | .. 14a
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundralsmg, busmess
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts land IV . N L 14b
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A}, line 3, more than $5 000 of grants or other a35|stance to or for any
foreign organization? /f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV o 15
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assustance to
or for foreign individuals? /f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts lfand IV~ = . ... 16
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundralsmg services on Part IX

column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part! = .. . 17
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contrlbutnons on Part VIII lines
1c and 8a? /f "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Il . 18
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gamlng acthltles on Part VIII Ime 9a’7 /f "Yes

Schedule  Part lif 19
Form

632003 11-11-16

10291030 352580 CCF990
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Yes No
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
X
(2016)

2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990_1



Form 990 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 4

u (continued)
Yes No

20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? /f "Yes," complete Schedule H ) o 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return” L . 20b X

21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (), line 1? /f "Yes," complete Schedule l, Parts [and /f 219 X

22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2?7 If "Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts | and Il R . ..., 22 X

23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization's current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? /f "Yes," complete
Scheduled 23 X

24a Did the organization have a tax exempt bond issue wrth an outstandlng prlnolpal amount of more than $1 00, 000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 /f "Yes, " answer lines 24b through 24d and complete

Schedule K. If '"No", go to line 25a o . 2d4a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax- exempt bonds beyond a temporary perrod exceptron” o .. 24b X
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exempt bonds? =~ o o 24c X
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstandlng at any tlme durrng the year’7 L 24d X
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? /f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | L . 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prlor year, and

that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? /f "Yes," complete

Schedule L, Part | . R .. ..., ... . 2B X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 8, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current or

former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? /f "Yes, "

complete Schedule L, Partll FR T ... 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assrstance toan offrcer director, trustee key employee substantial

contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family member

of any of these persons? /f "Yes," comnplete Schedule L, Part ilf . L o 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV

instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

a Acurrent or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? /f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ... ... . 2ea X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? /f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV 28b X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member therecf) was an officer,
director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? /f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part vV~ . . 28c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f "Yes," comp/ete Schedule M . ... 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? /f "Yes," complete Schedule M " . T L 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operatrons?
If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part | . L o 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, ortransfer more than 25% of |ts net assets”lf "Yes ! comp/ete
Schedule N, Part il o T ] X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entlty drsregarded as separate from the organrzatlon under F{egulatlons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part| o o . . 33 X
34  Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part ll, Ili, or IV, and
PartV, line1 . o . o L L ... ... 8 x
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512()(13? ... . . 35a X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 o 35b X
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non- chantable related orgamzatlon’?
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 T - X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its actlvrtles through an entlty that is not a related organlzation
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI . 14 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Scheduie O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?
Note. All Form 990 0 38 X
Form 990 (2016)

632004 11-11-16

4
10291030 352590 CCF990 2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 5

ce
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V
Yes No
1a Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a 703
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 1
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize winners? .. .. ... .. . .. ... o .. ic X
2a Enter the number of employess reported on Form W 3, Transmlttal of Wage and Tax Statements
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return o 2a 3689
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? e 2b X
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions) . ... ... .. .
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? e . 3a
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? /f "No," to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O | 3Bb X
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: P> SEE SCHEDULE O
See instructions for filing requirements for FInCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . . . . ... ba X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? . . .. &b X
c If "Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T7? .. .. ... ... .. 5¢c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100 000, and d|d the orgamzatlon soI|C|t
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? o . 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contnbutlons or glfts
were not tax deductible? o 6b

7 Organizations that may receive deductlble contrlbutlons under sectlon 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? 7a X

b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? o . .. T X
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was requ1red
tofile Form 82822 .. . e e e s e 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 flled durlng the year
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? Te X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? = 7a
h f the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?  7h X
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? | 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a |Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, line 12 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities |
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders |, . 11a
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources agalnst
amounts due or received from them)) . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a){1) non-exempt charitable trusts. |s the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue quaiified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reserves on hand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 14a X
b If " has it filed a Form 720 to in Schedule O 14b
Form 990 (2016)

632005 11-11-16
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

an For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.

O contains a in this Part VI
Section A. n and M
Yes No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year . 1a 2
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the govermng
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain in Schedule 0.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent .. 1b 1€
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? s 2 X
38 Did the organization delegate control over management dutles customanly performed by or under the d|rect superV|S|on
of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? ) 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was flIed” 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? o o o o 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? . 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or sub]ect to approval by) members stockholders or
persons other than the governing body? ==~ 7 X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or wntten act|0ns undertaken durlng the year by the foIIowmg
a The governing body? o . 8a X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the govermng body” s . Bb X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
address? If the names and 0] 9 X
Policies Section B information about not the Internal Revenue
Yes No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? e 10a X
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters afflllates
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? = 10b X
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before fllmg the form’? 11a X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? /f "No," go to line 13 . o 12a X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could glve rise to confhcts” o 12b X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f "Yes," describe
in Schedule O how this wasdone . . ... o L 12¢ X
13 Did the organization have a written whlstleblower pohcy” o L R, .. 183 X
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruchon pollcy’? o ... 14 X
15  Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by |ndependent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official = o . o 15a X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization | . L . . } 15b X

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see lnstructlons)
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during theyear? ... ... . .. 16a X
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written pollcy or procedure requmng the orgamzatlon to evaluate its pammpatlon
in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s
16b X
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed PAK CA CO FL GA IL KS KY LA MA MD MN
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website Another's website Upon request (1 other (explain in Schedule O)
19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial
statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records:
ROBERT F. WAITKUS - 216-445-2526

6801 BRECKSVILLE ROAD RK1-85 INDEPENDENCE, OH 44131
632006 11-11-16 SEE SCHEDULE O FOR FULL LIST OF STATES Form (2016)
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 7

Form 990
m

Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees. Kev Emplovees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year

® |ist all of th anization's current off s, directors ees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in colum ), (B}, and (F) if nocom  sation was

® List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee) who received report-

able compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

® | ist all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest compensated employees;
and former such persons.

this box if neither the nor related current director or trustee.
) () () (D) (€) (F)
Name and Title Average o o crigf'rf"ggman one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per  box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any g the organizations compensation
hours for = g organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related g § 2 (W-2/1099-MISC) organizaticn
organizations £ 3 g E and related
below £ £ . T 5 organizations
iney = F £ FEE S
(1) COSGROVE, DELOS M, MD 50,00
DIRECTOR PRESIDENT CEO X X 5,731,361 0 440,491,
(2) DONLEY, BRIAN G, MD 50,00
DIRECTOR & CHIEF OF STAFF X X 1,346,216 0 44 281
(3) RICH, ROBERT E,., JR 5.00
DIRECTOR/BOARD CHAIR X X 0 0
(4) SCAMINACE, JOSEPH M, 5.00
DIRECTOR/BOARD VICE CHAIR X X 0 0 0
(5) ERZURUM, SERPIL, MD 50.00
DIRECTOR, CHAIR LERNER RESEARCH INST X X 477,210, 0 358 074
(6) AULETTA, PATRICK V, 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0
(7) FEDELI, UMBERTO P, 5,00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0
(8) HOOVER, CAROLE 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0
(9) LERNER, MARK 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0
(10) LERNER, NORMA 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0 0
(11) MACDONALD, WILLIAM E, III 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0
(12) MARTIN, DANIEL MD 50.00
CHAIR - COLE EYE INST DIR - CCF X 1,366,366 0 44,134,
(13) MILLER, PAMELA 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0
(14) MILLER, SAMUEL 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0 0
(15) MOONEY, BETH E 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0
(16) MORINO, MARIO 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0
(17) NANCE, FREDERICK 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0
632007 11-11-16 Form 990 (2016)
7
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 8
Section A. and Hi
(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average (do ot c,igfgiggma one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per  box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustes) from from related other
(listany = the organizations compensation
hoursfor 2 z organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
related 3 £ z (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
izations £ = g £ and related
below ] £ . F - organizations
ine) 2 % £ £ gs
(18) PETRAS, MICHAEL 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0
(19) POLLOCK, LARRY 5,00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0 0
(20) ROSS, RONALD J, 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0
(21) WEISS, MORRY 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0 0
(22) WEINBERG, RONALD 5.00
DIRECTOR - CCF X 0
(23) GLASS, STEVEN C 50.00
CFO & TREASURER X 1,543,736 52,276,
(24) HAMILTON, THOMAS 50,00
INTERIM CHAIR - RESEARCH INST X 345,557 -44,062,
(25) HARRINGTON, MICHAEL 50.00
CAO & CONTROLLER X 703 977 0 44 241,
(26) MCHUGH, LINDA 50,00
ASSISTANT SECRETARY (PART YEAR) X 707,477 55 824,
1b Sub-total ) o > 12,221,900, 0 995 259,
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, Section A » 17,968,440, 0 1 100 947
d Total lines 1b and 30,190,340, 0 2 096 206
2  Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable
5.109
Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on
line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual R o . 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization
and related organizations greater than $150,0007 /f "Yes, " complete Schedule J for such individual L o 4 X
5 ' Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services
Schedule J for such 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
for the calendar endi  with or 's
(A) (8) (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
SIEMENS MEDICAL SOLUTIONS, INC, {EALTHCARE IT & ENGINEERING
PO BOX 121102 DALLAS TX 75312 JERVICES 19,971,483
DONLEYS/TURNER JOINT VENTURE
5430 WARNER RD CLEVELAND OH 44125 JONSTRUCTION SERVICES 19 482,913,
SODEXO INC, & AFFILIATES, 1669 PHOENIX
PARKWAY #210 COLLEGE PARK GA 30349 JAUNDRY & FOOD SERVICE 862 272,
WHITING-TURNER CONTRACTING CO, 5875
LANDERBROOK DR STE 100 CLEVELAND OH CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 849 358,
NICHOLS MANAGEMENT GROUP LTD, 571 YORK ST,
PO BOX 1288, YORK HARBOR ME 03911 iEALTHCARE CONSULTING SERVICES 9 235 793,
2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
ization 467
SEE PART VII, SECTION A CONTINUATION SHEETS Form 990 (2016)
632008 11-11-16
8
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Form 990 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
Section A. andH
(A) (B) (©)
Name and title Average Paosition
hours (check all that apply)
per
week _ §
(list any 2 =
hours for é N £
related g & 2
organizations % 3 £ g
below 2 § 5 E & s
line) g E £ é‘ g E
(27) MEEHAN, MICHAEL 50,00
RECORDING SECRETARY X
(28) OBLANDER, JASON 50,00
ASSISTANT SECRETARY (PART YEAR) X
(29) PEACOCK, WILLIAM 50.00
CHIEF OF OPERATIONS X
(30) ROWAN, DAVID W 50,00
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER X
(31) HARRISON, A, MARC 50,00
CHIEF INTL BUS DEVELOPMENT X
(32) MIHALJEVIC, TOMISLAV 50.00
CHIEF EXEC OFFICER - CCAD X
(33) LEWIS, BRENDA 50,00
PHYSICIAN (2016 RETIREE) X
(34) CHURCH, JAMES 50.00
PHYSICIAN (2016 RETIREE) X
(35) WHITLOW, PATRICK 50,00
PHYSICIAN (2016 RETIREE) X
(36) COSTIN, JOHN 50.00
INSTITUTE CHAIRMAN X
(37) SCHOENWALD, PATRICK 50.00
PHYSICIAN (2016 RETIREE) X
(38) JOSEPH HAHN 0,00
FORMER OFFICER X
(39) BRUCE LYTLE 0.00
FORMER KEY EMPLOYEE X
line
BB
9

10291030 352590 CCF9390

(D)
Reportable
compensation
from
the
organization
(W-2/1099-MISC)

343,238,
203,574
1,440,292,
1,428,943,
1,185,404,
2,027,420
1,899,184
2,711,368
1,807,770
1,909,833,
1,615,259,
252,142

1,144,013

17,968,440,

34-0714585

(E) (F)

Reportable Estimated
compensation amount of
from related other
organizations compensation
(W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organization
and related

organizations

0 -13 592
0 20 758,
0 46 814
0 44,897,
0 80,260,
0 150,435,
0 677,801
0 -316,508,
0 262,128,
0 44,081,
0 127 772
0 -23 899
0

1 100 947
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Form 990 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
ment
f O contains a or line in this Part VIII
LA}
Total revenue
a Federated campaigns | 1a
b Membership dues 1b
¢ Fundraising events 1c 6.289 095
d Related organizations ... 1
e Government grants (Contributions) 1e 108,252,549
f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
similar amounts not included above 1f 131,380,647
g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f: $ 9 B 378 ’ 317
a-1f 245,922,291,
®  2a NET PATIENT SERVICES 612990 2,929,115, 945
3 b MEDICARE/MEDICAID PAYM 921990 1,815,937, 841
L ¢ OTHER PROGRAM SERVICES 900099 308,856,416
EZ 4 OTHER ANCILLARY SERVIC 900099 50,243,099
§m e MANAGEMENT FEES 561000 28,241,483
o f Al other program service revenue 900099 43,870,404
5,176,265,188
3  Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) . _ _ L > 50,911,763,
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds P
5 Royalties 25,067,502,
Real Personal
6 a Gross rents L 9,907,930
b Less: rental expenses 0
¢ Rental income or (loss) 9,907,930
d Net rental income or (loss) 9,907,930
7 a Gross amount from sales of Securities Cther
assets other than inventory =~ 1252582086, 2,111,620
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses 1163917302, 4 426,067,
¢ Gain or (loss) 88 664 784 -2 314 447,
d Net gain or (loss) o 86,350,337,
o 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
% including $ 6,289,095, of
2 contributions reported on line 1c). See
o
¥ PartIV,line 18 | e a 553,002
g b Less: direct expenses . . b 2,951,758
Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ... .. ., -2,398,756
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV, line 19
b Less: direct expenses
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances
b Less: cost of goods sold b
from sales of
Miscellaneous Revenue 3usiness Code
11 a INCOME(LOSS) ON INVEST 523000 64,640,923
b LIFE INSURANCE TRUST 525990 131,077,
¢ FOREIGN CURRENCY 525990 73,310,
d All other revenue 523000 -25,045,579,
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d > 39,799,731
Total revenue. See instructions 5,631,825,986
632009 11-11-16
10

10291030 352590 CCF990

34-0714585 9
(B) (C)
Related or Unrelated m
exempt function business
revenue revenue
2,929,115,945,
1,815,937,841,
303,341,546 5,514,870,
50 243 099
15,990,271 12,251,212,
5,475,091 38,395 313,
50,911,763,
25 067,502
9 907 930,
86 350 337,
-2,398,756
-597,782, 65 238,705,
131 077.
73 310.
-25 045 579,
5,069 ,860,694 55,563,613, 260 479 388,
Form (2016)

2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



Form 990 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 10

ment
Section 50 and 501 must all columns. All other must column
Check i a or note to line in this Part 1X
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total e‘?p’) enses Prograg?,s ervice
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIil. expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part |V, line 21 28,273,002, 28,273,002
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 . ... 97,803,654, 97,803,654,

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 993,832, 993,832
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, dlrectors
trustees, and key employees B 20,175,601 4,662,792 15,512,809,
6 Compensation not included above, to dlsquallﬂed
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and

persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . 1,372,256 1,372,256,
7 Othersalaries and wages . . .. ... 2,350,860,393 2,049,631,769. 293,266,767 7,961,857,
8 Pension plan accruals and contrlbutlons (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 260,513,866 227,549,495, 32,498,765 465,606,
9 Other employee benefits o 265,147 482 231,185,234, 33,076,802 885,446,
10 Payroll taxes _ o 156,159,970 136,131,347, 19,480,753, 547,870,
11 Fees for services (non- employees)
a Management .. .. 3,335,001, 2,918,964 416,037
b Legal . .. . ... . 5,560,010, 4,866,406, 693,604,
¢ Accounting .. ... .. . 2,705,741, 2,705,741,
d Lobbying . . 646,043, 646,043,
e Profess;onalfundralsmg servmes See Part IV Ilne17 1,524,725, 1 524 725
f Investment managementfees = . . .. 12,665,365, 12,665,365,
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of ||ne 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.) 202,397,685, 175,626,509 25,248,847, 1 522 329
12 Advertising and promotion .. ... 28,662,114, 24,994 531 3,575,561, 92 022,
13 Office expenses o . . 55,238,900, 48,006,290 6,890,981 341,629,
14 |Information technology = . .. . 71,445,617, 62,440,363, 8,912,748 92,506,
15 Royalties . o 2,373,668 2,077,556, 296,112
16 Occupancy . . . o 97,598,914, 85,423,577, 12,175,337
17  Travel 19,443,160 16,675,156, 2,425,509 342,495,

18 Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . 7,931,511, 6,726,257 989,446 215,808,
20 Interest | . . o 100,620,358, 88,068,100 12,552,258,
21 Payments to aff|l|ates .
22 Depreciation, depletion, andamomzatlon 262,130,819, 229,397,119 32,700,478, 33 222
23 Insurance R R ] . 48,720,375, 42,642,572 6,077,803,
24
. If line
)
a MEDICAL SUPPLIES 977,180,704 977,180,699,
b BAD DEBT EXPENSE 169,795,800, 169,795,800,
¢ EQUIPMENT RENTAL & MAIN 85,452,933, 74,763,431, 10,660,142, 29 360,
d STATE FRANCHISE FEE 42,145,219, 42,145,219
e All other expenses 49,182,839, 45,284,697 3,763,214, 134 928,
25 Total functional Add lines 1 24¢e 5,428,057,557, 4,877,282,670 536,585,079, 14 189 808

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization
reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here SOP 98-2
632010 11-11-16 Form 990 (2016)
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Form 990

a b WN 2

Assets
® =~

10a

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

Liabilities

23
24
25

26

27
28
29

30
31

Net Assets or Fund Balances

B8R

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
nce

Check if Schedule O or note to line in this Part X

Cash - non-interest-bearing . .
Savings and temporary cash investments
Pledges and grants receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net = Lo o
Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees. Complete
Part Il of Schedule L

section 4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing
employers and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary
employees' beneficiary organizations (see instr). Complete Part Il of Sch L
Notes and loans receivable, net

Inventories for sale or use .

Prepaid expenses and deferred charges

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other

basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a
Less: accumulated depreciation

Investments - publicly traded securities | | =
Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11
Investments - program-related. See Part 1V, line 11
Intangible assets . .

Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 o

Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Grants payable
Deferred revenue o
Tax-exempt bond liabilities T
Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D |
Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified persons.
Complete Part Il of Schedule L o o o
Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties

Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties .
Other liabilities {including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of
Schedule D

5 702 569 970,

Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here p (x| and
complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
Unrestricted net assets | =

Temporarily restricted net assets

Permanently restricted net assets L L
Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here p
and complete lines 30 through 34.

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds .

Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund

Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds
Total net assets or fund balances o
Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances

632011 11-11-16

10291030 352590 CCF990

12

(A)
Beginning of year
286,518,858,
11,247,454,
185,192,090
682,297,457,

6,056,685,

10,779,355,
80,964,447,
38,333,021,

2,538,752,550,
2,291,976,054,
2,256,212,917,
12,000,000,
56,571,825
612,959,157
9,069,861,870
701,145,678
203,000
97,122,689
2,446,272,503,

36,471,901,
108,360,527,

1,302,367,860
4,691, 944,158

3,666,994,974
447,595,723,
263,327,015,

4,377,917,712
9,069,861,870

34-0714585 11

A WN

0 o N

23
24

25
26

27
28
29

(B)
End of year
491,971,898
5,841,909
213,848,890,
773,876,276,

6,571,698,

20 865 657,
81 650 111,
40 835 674,

2,631 273 220
2,356,077 966
2,259,200,987
205,406,335
59,279,083,
854,876,481,
10 001 576 185,
793 258 480,
193 000,

94 330 575,
2.845 510 506

8,951,457
98,647,256

463,663,033,
304 554 307,

3 926 221 007,
493 893 080,
276 907 1791,

4,697,021,878,
10 001 576 185,
Form 990 (2016)

2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



Form 990 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 12
Reconciliation

Check if Schedule O or note to line in this Part XI
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (&), line 12) . ... . 1 5,631,825,986,
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 5,428,057,557,
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 fram line1 .. o 3 203,768,429,
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A)) ,,,,,,,,,,,, 4 4,377,917,712,
5 Netunrealized gains (losses) oninvestments .. . 5 74,272,397,
6 Donated services and use of facilities .. . . . .. 6
7 Investment expenses . L e e 7
8 Prior period adjustments ... .. . ... . ... . 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explam in Schedule O) ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 9 41,063 340,
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 8 (must equal Part X Ilne 33,
10 4,697,021,878,
Financial
Check if Schedule O contains or note in this X
Yes No
Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash E Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or rewewed ona
separate consolidated basis,
Se basis L Jco d basis [ Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? = . 2b X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted ona separate ba5|s
consolidated basis, or both:
,:l Separate basis [_L—l Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis
¢ lf "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . . . . 2c X

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in Schedule O
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Single Audit

Act and OMB Circular A-133? ... ... 3a X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the reqwred audlt or audlts? If the organlzatlon d|d not undergo the requlred audit
or taken to such audits 3b X

Form 990 (2016)

632012 11-11-16
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SCHEDULE A . . } OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 890 o 990-E2) Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Servico about Schedule A 990 or and its instructions is at Www.Irs.gov/form990. Inspection
organization Employer number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
(All organizations must this part.) See instructions

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b){1)(A)(i).
2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)
3 X  Ahospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1){A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

5 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)
6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A){v).
7 |:] An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
1 artil.)
8 [J u on17 1) LC te )
9 |:| u descr in ion (1) x) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-tand-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:
10 An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)
1 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or

more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box in
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.
a Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having

control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
i s). ete IV, Sect .

c D | tio As rting org rated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supp ion(s) uct ). You plete IV, Sections A, D, and E.

a [ Type Il lly int As  orting i n ope in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness

ment (see inst ns). Yo complete Part IV, Se and D, and Part V.
e [:] this box if the ization d a written determinat he IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type Ill

functionally integrated, or Type lIl non-functionally integrated supporting organization.
Enter the number of supported organizations
Provide the information about the
of supported {ii) EIN (iii}) Typs of organization ~ yyiswmeur o istey  {y) Amount of monetary of other

. . invnurnaver  na dnriment?
organization (described on lines 1-10 Yes No support (see instructions) support (see instructions)

above (see instructionsi

Total
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 632021 09-21-16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2) 2016
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990 or 201 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 2
n an
{Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part I1l. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1l.)
on
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) > {a) 2012 {b) 2013 {c) 2014 {d) 2015 (e) 2016 Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.") 231,877,777, 217,746,821 247,936,164 226,230,648 245,922,291 1169713701,
2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 231,877,777, 217,746,821, 247,936,164, 226,230,648, 245,922,291, 1169713701,
5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,
column (f) 7 826 942
6 Public line 4, 1161886759
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) > 2012 2013 4 2015 201 Total
7 Amounts from line 4 231,877,777 217,746,821, 247,936,164 226,230,648, 245 922,291, 1169713701
8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar sources 73,634,612, 81,291,626, 78,908,086, 82,576,423, 85,887,195, 402,297 942,
9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the
business is regularly carried on 67,175 67 175
10 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explain in Part V1) . 73,659,562 169,623,102, 66,618,979, 88,700,962 64,845,310, 463 447 915
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 2035526733
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 12 23,195 919 916
13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
on
14 Public support percentage for 2016 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) . . 14 57.08 %
15 Public support percentage from 2015 Schedule A, Part Il, line 14 15 58.54 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2016. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and
stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . .. p X
b 33 1/3% support test - 2015. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and ||ne 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check thIS box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ... .. .. ... .. | 4 |:|

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2016. If the organization did not check a box on Ime 13 16a, or 16b and hne 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances' test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization

10291030 352590 CCF990

meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ) . > D
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2015. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .. .. » l:]
18 Private foundation. If the oraanization did not check a box on line 13. 1fa b 7a. or 17b. check this box and see instructions | 2 I:‘

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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A 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
r ons

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) p> (a) 2012 (b} 2013 (c) 2014 (d) 2015 (e} 2016
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")
2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in

any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and

3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on Hines 2 and 3 recsived
from other than disqualified persons that
excead the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

¢ Add lines 7a and 7b

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning In) p» 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
9 Amounts from line 6

10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar sources

b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carried on o
12 Ot ncome. t gain
or from th o]
assets (Explain in Part V1.)
13 Total support. (add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

here
Section of Public S
15 Public support percentage for 2016 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 %
from 2015

Section D on of Investment Income
17 Investment income percentage for 2016 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f) = L. 17
18 Investment income percentage from 2015 Schedule A, Partlll, line 17 L L 18
19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2016. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization A

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2015, If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
20 Private If the oraanization did not check a box on line 4. 19a, or 19b. check this box and see instructions >
632023 09-21-16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
pporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box in line 12 on Part 1. If you checked 12a of Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c¢ of Part |, complete
s and E. If checked 12d of Part Sections Aand  and com \
A. All
Yes
1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? /f "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1
2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. 3a
b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination. 3b
¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? /f "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? /f
"Yes, " and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a
b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? /f "Yes, " describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b
¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? /f "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c
5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes,"
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part Vi, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(il) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b Type I or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5¢
6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jif) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? /f "Yes," provide detail in
Part VI, 6
7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? /f "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 77
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-E2). 8
9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? /f "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? /f "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9¢c
10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type !ll non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? /f "Yes," answer 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the had excess 10b

632024 09-21-16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 5
izations
Yes No
11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either atone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b
¢ A35% controlled of describedin  or  above?/f "Yes"to or detail in Part VI. 11c
B. I Su
Yes No
1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1
2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? /f "Yes, " explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
or controlled the 2
Section izations
Yes No
1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? /f "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the 1
Section D. All izations
Yes No
1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i} a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1
2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? /f "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2
3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? /f "Yes, " describe in Part VI the role the organization's
in this 3
Section E. Il Functiona izations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the yea(ses Instructions).
The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see
2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below. Yes No
a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? /f "Yes," then in Part VI Identlfy
those supported organizations and explain  how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a
b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more
of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? /f "Yes, " explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
ac s but for the organization's involvement. 2b
3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
If " describe in Part VI the role 3b
632025 09-21-16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Il Non- I
1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI.) See instructions. All
su Sections A th E.
B) Current Year
Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year © (optional)

short-term 1
2 of distributions 2
income 3
4 Addlines1 3 4
5 and 5

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or

maintenance of held for 6

7 Other 7

Net Income  btract 7 line 8

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year ® (COL;rtzzgtaP)(ear
1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions or held for of

a value of securities 1a

b cash balances 1b

market value of other assets 1c

lines 1 and 1 1d

e Discount claimed for blockage or other
in detail in Part
2 indebtedness to 2

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d 3
4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,
see 4
5 Net value of line 4 from line 5
6 line5 .035 6
7 Recoveries of 7
line7 line 8
Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year
for Section line 8 Column 1
2 line 1 2
3 M m asset amount for Section B line  Column 3
4 of line 2 or line 3 4
tax im n 5
6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
reduction 6
7 Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type IIl supporting organization (see
instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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Schedule A 16 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 7
izations
Section D - Current Year
1  Amounts to to exem
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
n from
3 Administrative of
4 Amounts to assets
5 set-aside IRS
6 Other distributions Part See instructions
7 Total annual [
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
details in
9 Distributable amount Section line 6
10 Line 8 amount divided  Line 9 amount
(i) (ii) (iii)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions Undeprgéfgal?'gtlons Ag::)slf:::) 1EI<)tra 23:‘16
1 Distributable amount for 2016 from line 6
2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2016 (reason-
able cause nin Part See
3 distributions if to 2016:
b
¢ From2013
d From 2014
e From2015
f Total of lines 3a
ied to
h to 2016 distributable
from 2011 not
Remainder. Subtract lines 3h from 3f
4  Distributions for 2016 from Section D,
line 7:
to underdistributions of
b to 20186 distributable amount
¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4
5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 20186, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
in Part VI. See instructions
6 Remaining underdistributions for 2016. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For resuit greater than zero, explain in
Part VI
7 Excess distributions carryover to 2017. Add lines 3j
and 4c¢
8 Breakdown of line 7:
a
Excess from 2013
¢ Excess from 2014

Excess from 2015

632027 09-21-16
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Schedule A 990 or THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 8

Sup Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 10; Part Il line 17a or 17b; Part Ili, line 12;

Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part 1V, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information

(See instructions.)

SCHEDULE A, PART II LINE 10 EXPLANATION FOR OTHER INCOME:
INCOME (LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS
2012 AMOUNT: $ 73,581,934
2013 AMOUNT: § 105,143,245
2014 AMOUNT: § 66,455,024,
2015 AMOUNT: $ 44,378 305,

2016 AMOUNT: § 64,640,923,

FOREIGN CURRENCY
2012 AMOUNT: § 77 628,
2015 AMOUNT: § 610 292,

2016 AMOUNT: $ 73,310

MISCELLANEQOUS INCOME

2014 AMOUNT: $ 17 623,

GROSS INCOME FROM GAMING
2013 AMOUNT: § 19 855

2014 AMOUNT: § 146,332

DERIVATIVE INCOME

2013 AMOUNT: $ 64,077,165,

CANCELLATION OF DEBT

2013 AMOUNT: § 382 837,

INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATES

632028 09-21-16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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Schedule A 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Supp rmation. Provide the explanations required by Part Il line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part I, line 12;

Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3¢, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1¢, 2a, 2b, 3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information

(See

2015 AMOUNT: § 43 529,075,

LIFE INSURANCE TRUST
2015 AMOUNT: § 183 290,

2016 AMOUNT: $ 131 077

632028 09-21-16 Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-E2Z) 2016
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors f ——
g‘;gg(‘)_ggg)' 990-E2, ) Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF.
N P> Information about Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) and 20 1 6
epartment of the Treasury : ! .
internal Revenue Service its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990 ,
Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Organization type(check one):
Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

[

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

]
]
L
]

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

(] Foran organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000 or more (in money or
property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and II. See instructions for determining a contributor’s total contributions.

Special Rules

IZ' For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3% support test of the regulations under
sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part Il, line 13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from
any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000 or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VI, line 1h,
or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts [ and Il.

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, duting the
year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for
the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts |, Il, and Il

] For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10} filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one contributor, during the
year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box
is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,
purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively
religious, charitable, etc., contributions totaling $5,000 or more during the year » $

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF),
but it must answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to
certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2016)
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Schedule B

Name of organization

or 990-PF)

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

Employer identification number

34-0714585
Part | Contributors (See instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part ! if additional space is needed.
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
Person E]
Payroll  [_]
$ 10 000 000 Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(a) {b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions of contribution
2 Person
Payroll
$ 8,380,561, Noncash
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions of contribution
3 Person X
Payroll El
$ 5 817 796, Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions of contribution
4 Person
Payroll
5 748,122, Noncash
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(a) (b)
No.

(a)
No.

623452 10-18-16

10291030 352590

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

CCF990

24

()

Total contributions

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

of contribution

Person [:,
Payroll :I
Noncash [ |

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(d)

Type of contribution

Person D

Payroll |:]

Noncash [ |
(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

or

2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



Schedule B 990-EZ, or 3
organ

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Part1l Noncash Property (See instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

@ ()

No. (b) . (d)
F or estimate
from Description of noncash property given (Sh:: Z gnst?' lch:tions; Date received
Part |
$
(a)
(c)
No.
. L () . FMV (or estimate) (@ .
rom Description of noncash property given (See Instructions) Date received
Part |
$
(a)
(c)
No.
f o (b) _ FMV (or estimate) @
rom Description of noncash property given (See instructions) Date received
Part |
$
(a)
No. (b) (c) (d)
Vv imat
from Description of noncash property given ::Sh: o go;te s“:‘a e; Date received
Part | nstructions
$
(a)
No. (b) (e) (d)
i
from Description of noncash property given FSM v f°' te S |:1ate) Date received
Part | (See instructions)
$
(a)
No. () FMV (or(:)stimate) (d)
from D ipti f h i .
Bt escription of noncash property given (See instructions) Date received
$
623453 10-18-16 or
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Schedule B or

me organ mp oyer n nu
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
the year from any one contributor columns (a) through (e) and the following line entry. For organizations
completing Part Ill, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this inlo. once.) $
Use
(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s na P+4 Relationshi of
Part | (b) Purpose of gift {c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee’s and ZIP + 4 Relation of
from (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
1an and ZIP + 4 transferor to transferee
(b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
(e) Transfer of gift
andZIP + 4 Relationsh transferee
623454 10-18-16 Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2016)
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SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities OMB No. 1545-0047

990-
(Form 890 or EZ) For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527

| 4 Complete if the organization is described below. P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. .
Department of the Treasury . R Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service P> Information about Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations; Complete Parts |-A and B. Do not complete Part I-C.
Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and C below. Do not complete Part |-B.
Section 527 organizations: Complete Part I-A only.
If the organization answered "Yes," on Farm 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then
Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part Il-A. Do not complete Part II-B.
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part [I-B. Do not complete Part [I-A.
If the organization answered "Yes," on Farm 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) (see separate instructions) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35¢ (Proxy
Tax) (see separate instructions), then
® Section 501 or Part I11.
Name of organization number
THE CLEVELAND INIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
or a on.

1 Provide a description of the organization's direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part [V

2 Political campaign activity expenditures .. . .. . . . |
3 Volunteer hours for political campaign activities
ete e n s under section 501

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955 >3
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 >3
3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? LI Yes L_INo
4a Was a correctionmade? . . .. .. ... . L o D Yes |:] No

If " describe in Part IV.

s exem un

1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function activities $
2 Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section 527

exempt function activities L |
3 Total exempt function expenditures. Add llnes 1 and 2 Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,

e 17D L . > s
4 Did the filing orgamzatlon f||e Form 1120 POL for this year? L ) L . LI vYes L_INo

5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of aIl sectlon 527 pohtlcal organlzatlons to which the filing organization
made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization's funds. Also enter the amount of political
contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such as a separate segregated fund or a
political action committee (PAC). If additional space is needed, provide information in Part IV.

(a) Name (b) Address (c) EIN (d) Amount paid from (e) Amount of political
filing organization's  contributions received and
funds. If none, enter -0-. promptly and directly

delivered to a separate
political organization.
If none, enter -0-.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
LHA
632041 11-10-16
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Schedule 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

mp organ n exem un on r
section 501(h)).
A Check P> if the filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name, address, EIN,
expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).
B Check P [_] A and "limited control"
Limits on Lobbying Expenditures org(:r)ﬁ';la“tr; gn g (b) Aff|{|gtt;csi group
(The term "expenditures" means amounts paid or incurred.) totals

1a Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying)

b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying)

¢ Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 1a and 1b)

d Other exempt purpose expenditures . o

e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1¢ and 1d) o

f nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the table in both columns.
If the amount on line 1e, column (a) or (b) is: The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1e.
_Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500.000.
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000.000
_Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500.000.
Over $17,000,000 __$1,000,000.

g Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 11)
Subtract line 1g from line 1a. If zero or less, enter -0-
Subtract line 1f from line 1c. If zero or less, enter -0- ST .

If there is an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 1i, did the organization file Form 4720

reportina 4911 tax for this vear? ] Yes D No

4-Year Averaging Period Under section 501(h)
(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.
See the separate instructions for lines 2a through 2f.)

=

[ —

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year

(or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2013 (b) 2014 (c) 2015 (d) 2016 (e) Total

nontaxable amount
b Lobbying ceiling amount
50% of line 2a,

¢ Total res
d Grassroots nt

e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of line 2d, column

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016

632042 11-10-16
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Schedule 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 3
mp
(election under section 501(h)).

For each "Yes," response on lines 1a through 1i below, provide in Part IV a detailed description (a)
of the lobbying activity. Yes No Amount
1 During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state or

local legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter

or referendum, through the use of:

a Volunteers? | OO X

b Paid staff or management (|nc|ude compensatlon in expenses reported on Ilnes 1c through 1w . X

¢ Media advertisements? o o X

d Mailings to members, legislators, or the publlc? o s L X 10 661

e Publications, or published or broadcast statements? o s X

f Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? . ... . ... ... L X 509 983

g Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government ofﬂcrais ora Ieg|slat|ve body’? ..... X 85 063

h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means? . X 40,336

1 Other activities? | S PP X

j Total. Add lines 1cthrough 1| L L 646,043
2a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organlzatlon to be not descrlbed in sectlon 501( )(3)? X

b If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred under section4912 =~ = . o
¢ If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912

2 did it file
omp o or
501
Yes

1 Were substantially all (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members? 1
2 Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less? 2
3 Did over 3

e organ s exe un 1 , or

501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part lll-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No," OR (b) Part lll-A, line 3, is
answered "Yes."
1 Dues, assessments and similar amounts frommembers . . ... L. .. o 1

2 Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not |nclude amounts of polltlcal
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).

a Current year o s L 2a
b Carryover from Iastyear R o L o 2b
c Total .. . s 2c
3 Aggregate amount reported in sectlon 6033 e)1)( notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues L 3

4 If notices were sent and the amount on line 2¢ exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess
does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying and political
expenditure NextYEar? . . . . e e 4
5 nt of and 5
emental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1; Part I-B, line 4; Part I-C, line 5; Part II-A (affiliated group list); Part II-A, lines 1 and 2 (see

instructions); and Part 1I-B, line 1. Also, complete this part for any additional information.
SCHEDULE C - PART II-B, LINES 1B-1I

PART II-B 1B PAID STAFF OR MANAGEMENT - REPRESENTS ACTIVITIES DESCRIBED
IN PART II-B LINES 1C-1I CONDUCTED BY MEMBERS OF THE CCF GOVERNMENT
RELATIONS OFFICE
PART II-B 1D MAILINGS TO MEMBERS, LEGISLATORS, OR THE PUBLIC - REPRESENTS
LETTERS SENT TO LEGISLATORS AND ORGANIZATIONS ON VARIOUS HEALTHCARE
Schedule C {(Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016

632043 11-10-16
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Schedule C 990 or THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 4
(continued)

RELATED TOPICS AND ISSUES

PART II-B 1F GRANTS TO OTHER ORGANIZATIONS FOR LOBBYING PURPOSES -
REPRESENTS PAYMENT TO CERTAIN ORGANIZATIONS FOR LOBBYING SERVICES AS WELL
AS PAYMENT OF DUES TO CERTAIN TRADE ORGANIZATIONS WHERE A PORTION OF THE
DUES ARE USED TO CONDUCT LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

PART II-B 1G DIRECT CONTACT WITH LEGISLATORS THEIR STAFFS GOVERNMENT
OFFICIALS OR A LEGISLATIVE BODY - REPRESENTS MEETINGS WITH AND TOURS
CONDUCTED FOR LEGISLATORS AND/OR THEIR STAFF MEMBERS

PART II-B 1H RALLIES DEMONSTRATIONS, SEMINARS, CONVENTIONS, SPEECHES
LECTURES OR ANY SIMILAR MEANS - REPRESENTS ORGANIZATION OF AND

PARTICIPATION IN TRADE ASSOCIATION MEETINGS AND CONFERENCES

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
632044 11-10-16
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. . OMB No. 1545-0047
SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements
(Form 990) P> Complete if the answered "Yes" on Form 990,
Part IV, line 6,7,8,9, 11a, 11b, 11¢, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. 0 to Publi
Department of the Treasury to Form 990. pen O ublic
Internal Revenue Service Schedule D Ingpection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
d or lar or nts.Complete if the

answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
{a) Donor advised funds accounts

Total number at end of year
Aggregate value of contributions to (dur|ng year)
Aggregate value of grants from (during year)
Aggregate value at end of year
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? =~ . . |:| Yes I:! No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only

for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

Qs ON =

on if the answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) |:| Preservation of a historically important land area

IZ] Protection of natural habitat I__—l Preservation of a certified historic structure
|:| Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a on the last
day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation easements T . o 2a 2
b Total acreage restricted by conservation easements | L 2b 50.05
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure mcluded in(a ) o 2c 0
d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 8/17/06, and not on a historic structure
listed in the National Register L 2d 0
3 Number of conservation easements mod|f|ed transferred released extlngmshed or term|nated by the organlzatlon during the tax
year p- 0
4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located p> 1
5 Does the a enp rding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations o} con easements it holds? o . L - Yes |:| No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservatlon easements during the year
> 71
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
» s 11 000,
8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
and section 170(h)4)(B)iiy? . ... .. [ J ves L Ino

9 In Part Xlli, describe how the organization reports conservatlon easements in its revenue and expense statement, and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for
conservation easements.

Part lll | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part [V, line 8.

1a |f the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide, in Part XllI,
the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958}, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art, historical
treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the following amounts
relating to these items:

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VI, line 1 > $
(i) Assets included in Form 990, Part X o > $

2 |f the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide

the following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIil, line 1 . . . > 3
b Assets included in Form 990. Part X » &
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 980. Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 2
ons Maintain of Historical Treasu or r imilar
3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its collection items
(check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d I:_I Loan or exchange programs
b Scholarly research e [ Other
c Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part XIl|
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold as
PartIlV Escrow and ngements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21
1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
on Form 990, Part X? . e D Yes l:' No

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIll and complete the following table:

¢ Beginning balance = | N, 1c

d Additions during the year . L 1d

e Distributions during the year a o 1e

f Ending balance = . o L 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? Yes No

b If the has been

owment Complete if the answered "Yes" on Form 990 Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current vear {b) Prior vear {c) Two vears back  (d) Three years back Four back

1a Beginning of year balance 274,060,795, 258,255 184, 243,662,812 206,890,438, 174,481,177

b Contributions S 14,886,901, 23,968,927, 8,934,335 18,444,444, 12,707,046,

c Net investment earnings, gains, and losses 14,552,559, -918,904, 14,503,200 24,356,278, 21,848,808,

d Grants or scholarships

e Other expenditures for facilities

and programs ' ) 6,665,455 7,244,412, 7,670,162 6,028,347 2 146 594,

f Administrative expenses L

g End of year balance 296,834,800 274,060,795, 258,255,164, 243,662,812 206 890 438,
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:

a Board designated or quasi-endowment p %

b Permanent endowment P 100,00 %

¢ Temporarily restricted endowment p- %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the organization

by: Yes No
(i) unrelated organizations = = o L 3ali) X
(i} related organizations L L o 3a(ii) X
b If “Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b
uses of the
, an
if the answered "Yes" on Form Part IV line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property {a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (e) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a Land 236,725,509, 236,725 509
b Building; ‘ 2,898,605,894, 1,603,161,402, 1,295,444 ,492
¢ Leasehold improvements 78,765,717, 59,746,671, 19,019,046
d Equipment . 1,804,156,303, 1,326,918,078, 477,238,225
684 316,547 81,470,599, 602 845 948,
1e. must Form Part 2 631 273 220,
Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
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6 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 3

r
lete if the answered "Yes" on Form Part  line 11b. See Form Part X, line 12.
(a) or (including name of security) (b) Book value or end-of-year market value
(1) Financial derivatives
(2) Closely-held equity interests
(3) Other
HEDGE FUNDS 1,110,397,267, END-OF-YEAR MARKET VALUE
PRIVATE EQUITY 696,785,941, END-OF-YEAR MARKET VALUE
REAL ESTATE 452,017,779, END-OF-YEAR MARKET VALUE
Total must Form Part col. line 2,259,200,987.
investments - Program Related.
if the answered "Yes" on Form 11  See Form Part line 13.
(a) Description (b) Book value Method or market value
Total. Col.  must Form Part col. line1
if the answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV line 11d. See Form Part line 15.
OTHER ASSETS 196,709,447,
PERPETUAL & BENEFICIAL TRUSTS 35,930,719,
INVESTMENT IN AFFILIATES 165,843,427,
DUE FROM AFFILIATES 456,392,888,
must Form Part  col. line 1 854 876 481
lete if the answered "Yes" on Form 990 Part IV line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25
of liability ({b) Book value
Federal income taxes 75,642,
ACCRUED PENSION 597,233,393,
OTHER LIABILITIES 122,357,863
ACCRUED BENEFITS 163,804,237
FUTURE GIFT ANNUITY PAYMENTS 8,770,748
DEFERRED ANNUITY TRUST 1,035,913
INTEREST RATE SWAPS 139,421,631,
DUE TO AFFILIATES 430,963,606,
Total. must Form Part  col. line 1,463,663,033,
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XlI, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
oraanization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC . Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part Xlil

Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
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D 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 4

c ue per ments Revenue per
if the answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV line 12a.
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VII!, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments o L 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities o L 2b
¢ Recoveries of prior year grants o o 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIll.) L o
e Addlines2athrough2d B B L . 2e
3 Subtract line 2e fromline1 S 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIlI, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIIl, line 7b 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XII1.) o R . . 4b
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b o o 4c
must Form Part  line 12 5
on per per
if the ization answered "Yes" on Form 990 Part  line 12a.
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements = 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part I1X, line 25:
a Donated services and use of facilities o . 2a
b Prior year adjustments . o L 2b
¢ Other losses R o 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIIl.) . o P 2d
e Addlines 2athrough2d L . 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 . o o i . 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VI, line 7b . 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XtIl.) Lo o 4b
¢ Add lines 4a and 4b . o . 4c
must Form Part line 1 5

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part llI, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,
lines 2d and 4b; and Part XI!, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information

PART II LINE 9:

THE CONSERVATION COVENANTS REPORTED IN PART II ARE RELATED TO TWO WETLANDS
LOCATED ON THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION'S PROPERTY IN TWINSBURG, OHIO
AND AVON, OHIO, THESE EASEMENTS ARE NOT REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED ON THE
BALANCE SHEET SEPARATE FROM THE VALUE OF THE LAND. EXPENSES TO MONITOR,

INSPECT, AND PROTECT THIS LAND ARE REFLECTED IN THE STATEMENT OF EXPENSES,

PART V LINE 4:
THE ENDOWMENT FUNDS OF THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION ARE USED IN
FURTHERANCE OF ITS EXEMPT PURPOSE, SPECIFICALLY, THESE FUNDS ARE USED FOR

EDUCATION RESEARCH AND PATIENT CARE,

632054 08-29-16 Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 5
| Information

PART X, LINE 2:

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM'S AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE
REPORTED ON A CONSOLIDATED BASIS, INCLUDING EXEMPT, TAXABLE AND FOREIGN
ENTITIES TO WHICH THE ASC 740-10 LIABILITY RELATES, THE ASC 740-10
FOOTNOTE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE CLEVELAND CLINIC
HEALTH SYSTEM READS AS FOLLOWS:

AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 THE LIABILITY FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME
TAXES WAS $2.3 MILLION AND $4.1 MILLION RESPECTIVELY, THE SYSTEM DOES
NOT EXPECT A SIGNIFICANT INCREASE OR DECREASE IN UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS
WITHIN THE NEXT 12 MONTHS., THE SYSTEM RECOGNIZES INTEREST AND PENALTIES
ACCRUED RELATED TO THE LIABILITY FOR UNRECOGNIZED TAX BENEFITS IN THE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS,

Schedule D (Form 990) 2016
632055 08-29-16
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SCHEDULEF Statement of Activities Outside the United States OV o 1545-0047

{Form 990) P> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990.
internal Revenue Service Information about Schedule F and its instructions is at www.Irs.gov/form990.
Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Partl| General non the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on

Form 990. Part IV. line 14b.
1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other assistance,
the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection ctiteria used to award the grants or assistance? lZl Yes |:| No

2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization’s procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other assistance outside the
United States.

3 Activities line 3 table can be du if additional s
(a) Region (b) Number of (d) Activities conducted in the region (e) If activity listed in (d) (f) Total
offices (by type) (such as, fundraising, pro- is a program service, expenditures
in the region gram services, investments, grants to describe specific type invf:;t?r?ednts
recipients located in the region) of service(s) in the region in the region
INVESTMENT IN
CENTRAL AMERICA & NHOLLY-OWNED FOREIGN
THE CARRIBEAN e 0 SERVICES ENTITY 2 120 000,
INVESTMENT IN
NHOLLY-OWNED FOREIGN
NORTH AMERICA ¢ 0 SERVICES ANTITY 31 831 000,
[NVESTMENT IN
JHOLLY-OWNED FOREIGN
EUROPE 1 1 SERVICES INTITY 56 087,000,
[NVESTMENT IN
MIDDLE EAST & NORTH VHOLLY-OWNED FOREIGN
AFRICA 1 28 SERVICES INTITY 589 000
MIDDLE EAST & NORTH
AFRICA 1 4 BUSINESS 1,965,000
CENTRAL AMERICA &
CARRIBEAN 0 SING 0
EAST ASIA & PACIFIC 0 SING 0
EUROPE ( 0 64 000
3a Sub-total 33 2,656,000
b Total from continuation
sheets to Part | C 0 64 792 000
¢ Totals (add lines 3a
K 33 57 448 000,
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule F (Form 990) 2016
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
per en {Schedule F (Form 990), Part |, line

(a) Region {b) Number of (c) Number of  (d) Activities conducted in region (e) If activity listed in (d) (f) Total
offices employees or (by type) (i.e., fundraising, is a program service, expenditures
in the region agents in program services, grants to describe specific type for region
region recipients located in the region) of service(s) in region

MIDDLE EAST & NORTH

AFRICA C 0 30,000
NORTH AMERICA ( NG 0
SOUTH ASIA 0 SING 10 000
EUROPE 0 0 [NVESTING 73,570,000,

CENTRAL AMERICA &

CARRIBEAN 0 STING $1,182,000,
NORTH AMERICA 0 0 STING 0
64 792 000
632181
04-01-16
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Schedule F (Form 980) 2016  THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 Page 4
[Part V] Foreign Forms

1 Was the organization a U.S. transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax year? /f "Yes," the

organization may be required to file Form 926, Return by a U.S. Transferor of Property to a Foreign

Corporation (56 INSUCHONS Or FOMM 926) | . . i\iiieooeieooeiioeeessoeeeoosoeseesisesieeo e ronerereeie [xIves [Ino
2 Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? /f "Yes, " the organization

may be required to separately file Form 3520, Annual Return To Report Transactions With Foreign

Trusts and Receipt of Certain Foreign Gifts, and/or Form 3520-A, Annual Information Return of Foreign

Trust With a U.S. Owner (see Instructions for Forms 3520 and 3520-A; do not file with Form 990) . .. .. . D Yes E’ No

3 Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? /f "Yes,"

the organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To

Certain Foreign Corporations (s€e InStruCtions for FOrm BA7 1) ettt Xdves [Ino
4 Was the organization a direct or indirect sharehalder of a passive foreign investment company or a

qualified electing fund during the tax year? If "Yes," the organization may be required to file Form 8621,

Information Return by a Shareholder of g Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing Fund

(SBE INSHUCHONS fOr FOIM B2 ) s lves [ INo
5 Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? /f 'Yes,"

the organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons With Respect to Certain

Foreign Partnerships (see InStruCtions for FOrm 8868) e LZ' Yes [1No
6 Did the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? /f

"Yes," the organization may be required to separately file Form 6713, International Boycott Report (see

Instructions for Form 5713; do not file with Form 990) E Yes ':l No

Schedule F (Form 990) 2016

632074 09-21-16
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Provide the information required by Part I, line 2 (monitoring of funds); Part |, line 3, column (f) (accounting method; amounts of
investments vs. expenditures per region); Part Il, line 1 (accounting method); Part It {accounting method); and Part ll, colurmn (c)
number of recibients). as Also complete this part to any additional information See instructions.

PART I LINE 2:

A MAJORITY OF THE RESEARCH GRANTS PROVIDED TO FOREIGN ORGANIZATIONS ARE
PART OF A NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH OR FEDERALLY FUNDED PROGRAM AS
SUCH THE FOREIGN ORGANIZATION IS REQUIRED TO MEET AND ADHERE TO FEDERAL
GRANT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE USE OF THE FUNDS ON AN
ON-GOING BASIS IN ORDER TO BE ELIGIBLE TQ PARTICIPATE OR CONTINUE TO
PARTICIPATE IN THE RESEARCH STUDY, FOR THOSE GRANTS THAT ARE NOT
FEDERALLY FUNDED A CONTRACT EXISTS WITH THE FOREIGN GRANTEE ORGANIZATION
THAT ESTABLISHES HOW THE FUNDS ARE TO BE USED AND REQUIRES CERTAIN
REPRESENTATIONS AND ACCOUNTING REGARDING THEIR USE, CLEVELAND CLINIC
MAINTAINS OVERSIGHT OF THESE GRANTS AND REGULARLY MONITORS THEIR
COMPLIANCE WITH EITHER THE FEDERAL REGULATIONS OR THE CONTRACT

PROVISIONS,

PART I LINE 3:

THE ACCRUAL METHOD IS USED TO ACCOUNT FOR EXPENDITURES

632075 09-21-16 Schedule F (Form 990) 2016
42

10291030 352590 CCF990 2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



SCHEDULE G

Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities
(Form 980 or 990-EZ)

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the
organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 980-EZ, line 6a.
P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury

OMB No. 1645-0047

Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service
organization
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

rarti )
n required to complete this part.

1 Indicate wh e organization raised funds through any of the follo
Mail ions e Solic
(X ] Internet and email solicitations
E Phone solicitations

da [x] In-person solicitations

O O o

g E Special fundraising events

WWW. Inspection

identification number
34-0714585

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. Form 990-EZ filers are not

activities. Check all that apply.
n of non-government grants
f E Solicitation of government grants

2 a Didtheo ati written or oral agr with any individual {inc officers, trustees, or
key empl lis m 990, Part VII) or connection with profe | fundrai es? Yes C I No
b If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.
iii v - .
(i) Name and address of individual N fl(.l D (iv) Gross receipts tg 2 (vi) Amount paid
. . (ii) Activity stod o to (or ret y)
or entity (fundraiser) rol o from activity organ
contributions? listed in col. (i) 9
BLACKBAUD - 2000 DANIEL Yes No
ISLAND DR, CHARLESTON SC ONLINE GIVING X 2,922,472 224,458, 2 698 014,
RR DONNELLEY - 111 SOUTH
WACKER DRIVE, CHICAGO IL JIRECT MAIL X 346,174 937,813 -591 639
HARRIS CONNECT, LLC - 1511
ROUTE 22, STE C-25 BREWSTER ?HONE SOLICITATION X 206,121, 362,454, -156 333
Total 3,474,767 1,524,725, 1 950 042

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from registration

or licensing.
AK, AL, AR,AZ, CA,CO,CT,DE,FL,GA HI,IA, ID, IL, IN, KS KY LA MA MD ME MI MN MO, MS
MT NC,ND,NE,NH NJ NM NV NY OH OK OR PA,RI, SC,SD,TN,TX, UT, VA, VT WA WI WV WY

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.
SEE PART IV FOR CONTINUATIONS

632081 09-12-16
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 2

un Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part |V, line 18, or reported more than 5,000
of event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.
(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events

(d) Total events

(add col. (a) through
VELOSANO GALA 3

col. (c))
® (event type) (event type) (total number)
% 1 Gross receipts 4,670,000, 1,113,479 1,058,618 6,842 097,
2
2 Less: Contributions 4,464,000, 890,783 934,312 6 289 095,
3 Gross income (line 1 minus line 2) 206,000, 222,696 124,306 553 002,
4 Cash prizes 5,375 5,375,
5 Noncash prizes 35,409 35 409,
& 6 Rent/facility costs 157,100, 149,030, 207 743 513 873
il
B 7 Food and beverages 110,324, 140,817, 156,337 407 478
5
8 Entertainment 54,877, 281,424, 23,736 360 037
9 Other direct expenses | . 1,198,386, 282,082, 1 629 586
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) > 2 951 758
11 Net income su -2 398 756
am Complete if the organization " on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.
) (b) Pull tabs/instant . (d) Total gaming (add
[ v . v
3 (a) Bingo bingo/progressive bingo (€} Other gaming (a) through col. (c))
2
[}
o
1 Gross revenue
n 2 Cash prizes
3
&
2 3 Noncashprizes
w
k3]
2 4 Rent/facility costs
a
5 Other direct expenses .
6 Volunteer labor
7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d)
gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d)
9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:
a |s the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of the
b If “"No," explain:
10a Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year? L_IYes L_INo
b If "Yes," explain
632082 09-12-16 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? o L Ives L_INo
12 s the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entlty formed
to administer charitable gaming? . = | . L T |:| Yes l:] No
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a The organization's facility . .. . ... . . .. .. ... ... .. . . o 13a

b Anoutside facility
14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the orgamzatlon ] gamlng/spemal events books and records

Name p>
Address P>
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? . . . . [ ves CIno
b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization P> $ and the amount

of gaming revenue retained by the third party P $
¢ If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party:

Name P>
Address P>
16 Gaming manager information:
Name p>
Gaming manager compensation P $

Description of services provided P

[ pirector/officer D Employee ] Independent contractor

17 Mandatory distributions:
a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming license? . . ... D Yes D No

b Enter the amount of distributions reqmred under state Iaw to be dlstnbuted to other exempt organizations or spent in the
the tax
Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part |, line 2b, columns (iii} and (v); and Part Ill, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b,
15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information. See instructions

PART I LINE 2B COLUMN (V):

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION'S PHILANTHROPY INSTITUTE CONDUCTS
FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES ON BEHALF OF THE ENTIRE CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH
SYSTEM, THE AMOUNTS RECEIVED FROM RR DONNELLY AND HARRIS CONNECT, LLC IN
PART I REPRESENT ONLY THE PARENT'S GROSS RECEIPTS FROM FUNDRAISING
ACTIVITIES, TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS RECEIVED AT THE HEALTH SYSTEM LEVEL

EXCEED AMOUNTS PAID TO PROFESSIONAL FUNDRAISERS,

632083 09-12-16 Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016
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SCHEDULE H . OMB No. 1545-0047
(Form 990) Hospitals
P> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, question 20.
Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
internal Revenue Service P Information about Schedule H (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.lrs.gov/form990 Inspection
Name of the organ number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
er m
Yes No
1a Did the organization have a financial assistance policy during the tax year? if "No," skip to question 6a fa X
b " ita POUCY? e s e« ib X
2 If th . 2ni heh?ax ospital facilities, indicate which of the following best describes application of the financial assistance palicy to its various hospltal

A d uni ly to all hospital facilities D Applied uniformly to most hospital facilities
] Generally tailored to individual hospital facilities
3  Answer the following based on the financial assistance eligibility criteria that applied to the largest number of the organization's patients during the tax year.
a Did the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) as a factor in determining eligibility for providing free care?
If "Yes," indicate which of the following was the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care: 3a X
[_1100% [ J1so% [ Jooo% % Other 250 9
b Did the organization use FPG as a factor in determining eligibility for providing discounted care? If "Yes," indicate which

of the following was the family income for eligi for  counted ¢ o 3b X

(1 200% [ 250% 300% 35 x1 % []other %
¢ |f the organization used factors other than FPG in determining eligibility, describe in Part VI the criteria used for determining
eligibility for free or discounted care. Include in the description whether the organization used an asset test or other
threshold, regardless of income, as a factor in determining eligibility for free or discounted care.
4 Didthe organization's financial assistance palicy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year provide for free or discounted care to the

"medically Indigent"? . L L. L L e e e e e e e e e e 4 X
5a Did the organization budget amounts for free or dlscounted care prov1ded under |ts f|nanC|a| asmstance pollcy during the tax year’? 5a X
b If "Yes," did the organization's financial assistance expenses exceed the budgeted amount? 5b X
¢ If "Yes" toline 5b, as a result of budget considerations, was the organization unable to provide free or d|scounted
care to a patient who was eligible for free or discounted care? = . . o 5c
6a Did the organization prepare a community benefit report during the tax year? = . o o 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization make it available to the public? . i . ) 6b X
the table the worksheets in the Schedule H instructions Do not submit these workshests with the Schedule H.
7 and Certain Other Benefits at Cost
Financial Assistance and @ o \opresons (€] lcommuiy (d)Drectofsoting  (GNet
Means-Tested Government Programs programs (optona) (optional) expense
a Financial Assistance at cost (from
Worksheet 1) 51,738,791, 0 51,738,791, 98%
b Medicaid (from Worksheet 3,
column a) 584,889,501, 375,537, 6223 209,352,278 3.98%

¢ Costs of other means-tested

government programs (from

Worksheet 3, column b) 0 0 00%
d Total Financial Assistance and

Means-Tested Government 636,628,292, 375,537,223, 261,091,069, 4.96%
Other Benefits

e Community health

improvement services and

community benefit operations

(from Worksheet 4) 20,816,332 41,721 20,774,611 L40%
f Health professions education

(from Worksheet 5) 228,440,686 23,357,294 205,083,392 3,90%
g Subsidized health services

(irom Worksheet6) . 8,973,727 1 736 394 7,237,333, .14%
h Research (from Worksheet 7) 209,436,987 146,002,648 63,434,339, 1.21%

i Cash and in-kind contributions
for community benefit (from

Worksheet 8) 10,444,478 1,485,000 8,959,478, L17%
j Total. Other Benefits 478,112 210 172,623,057, 305,489,153, 5.82%
k Add lines 7d and 1114740502, 548,160,280, 566 ,580,6222 10,78%
632001 11-02-16 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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H 201 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
mun g Complete this table if the organ

tax year, and describe in Part VI how its community activities the health of the communities it serves.

34-0714585 2
conducted any community building activities during the

(a) Number of {D) Persons {c) Total {Q) Direct (e) Net
activities or programs served (optional) community offsetting revenue community total expense
(optional) building expense building expense
and 9,380, 0 9,380, .00%
2 Economic 2,777, 0 2,777 .00%
3 su 942,798, 0 942 798 02%
4 Environmental i 3,979, 0 3,979 00%
5 Leadership development and
for members 0 0 00%
6 Coalition build 44 021, 1,000, 43,021, 00%
7 Community health improvement
6 210 6,210, 00%
8 43,521, 0 43,521, .00%
9 0 0 .00%
10 1,052,686, 1 000 1,051,686 ,02%
Part lli Bad Med Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes No
1 Did the organization report bad debt expense in accordance with Healthcare Financial Management Association
Statement No. 157 o o L T 1 X
2  Enter the amount of the organization's bad debt expense. Explain in Part VI the
methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount o 2 170,687,619
3  Enter the estimated amount of the organization’s bad debt expense attributable to
patients efigible under the organization's financial assistance policy. Explain in Part Vi the
methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount and the rationale, if any,
for including this portion of bad debt as community benefit = = ) .
4  Provide in Part Vi the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes bad debt
expense or the page number on which this footnote is contained in the attached financial statements.
Section B. Medicare
5  Enter total revenue received from Medicare (including DSH and IME) 5 565 480 019,
6 Enter Medicare allowable costs of care relating to payments on line 5 6 562 572 435
7 Subtract line 6 from line 5. This is the surplus (or shortfall) 7 2,907,584,
8 Describe in Part VI the extent to which any shortfall reported in line 7 should be treated as community benefit.
Also describe in Part VI the costing methodology or source used to determine the amount reported on line 6.
Check the box that describes the method used:
Cost accounting system X Cost to charge ratio |:] Other
Section C. Collection Practices
9a Did the organization have a written debt collection policy during the tax year? 9a X
b [f"Yes," did the organization's collection policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year contain provisions on the
collection ractices to be followed for nts who are known to for financial \ b X

om

(b) Description of primary
activity of entity

(c) Organization's (d) Officers, direct-
profit % or stock  Ors, trustees, or

in 0 key employees’
ownership % profit % or stock

ownership %

{a) Name of entity

1 AKRON SURGICAL ASSOCIATES
2 MONTROSE SLEEP CENTER LLC

SURGICAL SERVICES
SLEEP LAB THERAPY

51.00%
60,00%

{owned 10% or more by officers, diractars, trustees, key employses, and physicians - see instructions)

(e) Physicians'
profit % or
stock
ownership %

49,00%
40,00%

632092 11-02-16
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Schedule H 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Section A. Hospital Facilities = %
(list in order of size, from largest to smallest) = % T 5 8
How many hospital facilities did the organization operate 5 a E = ; E
during the tax year? 6 ﬁ 2 2 é’ 8 8 p

N 3
Name, address, primary website address, and state license number B § s g E 5 2 5 Facility
(and if a group return, the name and EIN of the subordinate hospital g E 35 £ 3 8 % = reporting

izati i ili o 2 = g8 o & 9 group
organization that operates the hospital facility) S g 3% 8 &
=S 0 0 - O @ W

1 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
9500 EUCLID AVENUE
CLEVELAND, OH 44195
WWW,CLEVELANDCLINIC, ORG
OH STATE ID 1151AHR X X X X X X
2 CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION
33355 HEALTH CAMPUS BOULEVARD
AVON OH 44011
WWW , CLEVELANDCLINIC, ORG
OHIO STATE ID 1522AHR X
SELECT SPECIALTY - FAIRHILL
11900 FAIRHILL ROAD
CLEVELAND, OH 44120
WWW, SELECTMEDICAL, COM
OH STATE ID 1468 X A
SELECT SPECIALTY - REGENCY WEST
6990 ENGLE ROAD
MIDDLEBURG HEIGHTS OH 44130
WWW, SELECTMEDICAL,COM
OH STATE ID 1478 X A
5 SELECT SPECIALTY - REGENCY EAST
4200 INTERCHANGE CORPORATE CENTER ROAD
WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS OH 44128
WWW, SELECTMEDICAL,COM
OH STATE ID 1479 X A
6 SELECT SPECIALTY - GATEWAY
2351 E 22ND ST, 7TH FL
CLEVELAND, OH 44115
WWW , SELECTMEDICAL , COM
OH STATE ID 1431 X A

w

N

632093 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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Schedule H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 4
Information
Section B. Facility Policies and Practices
(Complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

Line number of hospital facility, or line numbers of hospital
facilities in a facility reporting group (from Part V, Section A): 1

Yes
Assessment
1 Was the hospital facility first licensed, registered, or similarly recognized by a state as a hospital facility in the
current tax year or the immediately preceding tax year? R o 1 X
2 Was the hospital facility acquired or placed into service as a tax- exempt hospltal in the current tax year or
the immediately preceding tax year? If "Yes," provide details of the acquisition in Section C o . 2 X
3 During the tax year or either of the two immediately preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a
community health needs assessment (CHNA)? If "No," skipto line12 =~ . 3 X
If "Yes," indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that apply)
a X  Adefinition of the community served by the hospital facility
X Demographics of the community
¢ X Existing health care facilities and resources within the community that are available to respond to the health needs
of the community
X How data was obtained
e X  The significant health needs of the community
f X Primary and chronic disease needs and other health issues of uninsured persons, low-income persons, and minority
groups
g Th z and o meet the co nity healt s
h Th n y'si
i Th d eds in the hospita ity's prior (s}
i Ot
4 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last conducted a CHNA: 20 ;5_
5 In conducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from persons who represent the broad
interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with special knowledge of or expertise in public
health? If "Yes," describe in Section C how the hospital facility took into account input from persons who represent the
community, and identify the persons the hospital facility consulted ...~ ... . 5 X
6a Was the hospital facility's CHNA conducted with one or more other hospltal facilities? If "Yes," Ilst the other
hospital facilities in Section C o o 6a X
b Was the hospital facility's CHNA conducted W|th one or more organlzatnons other than hospltal facnltles’? If "Yes !
list the other organizations in SectonC =~ . . . . L R 6b X
7 Did the hospital facility make its CHNA report W|dely avallable to the public? .. . L 7 X
If "Yes," indicate how the CHNA report was made widely available (check all that apply):
a Hospital facility's website (list url): WWW,CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG
b Other website (list url):
c Made a paper copy available for public inspection without charge at the hospital facility
d Other (describe in Section C)
8 Did the hospital facility adopt an implementation strategy to meet the significant community health needs
identified through its most recently conducted CHNA? If “No," skipto line 11~ . o X
9 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last adopted an implementation strategy: 2o_i
10 Is the hospital facility's most recently adopted implementation strategy posted on a website? . 10 X
a If "Yes," (list url): WWW,CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG
b If "No," is the hospital facility’s most recently adopted implementation strategy attached to this return? 10b
11 Describe in Section C how the hospital facility is addressing the significant needs identified in its most
recently conducted CHNA and any such needs that are not being addressed together with the reasons why
such needs are not being addressed.
12a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility’s failure to conduct a
CHNA as required by section 501(r)(3)? o 12a X
b If "Yes" to line 12a, did the organization file Form 4720 to report the sectlon 4959 excise tax'7 o 12b
c If "Yes" to line 12b, what is the total amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form 4720
for ofits
632094 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
50

10291030 352590 CCFS990 2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



Schedule H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
Facil
Financial Assistance Policy (FAP)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that:

13 Explained eligibility criteria for financial assistance, and whether such assistance included free or discounted care?
If "Yes," indicate the eligibility criteria explained in the FAP:

a E Federal poverty guidelines (FPG), with FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care of 250
and FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care of 400 %
Income level other than FPG (describe in Section C)
Asset level

Medical indigency

Insurance status

Underinsurance status

Residency

Other (describe in Section C)

14 Explained the basis for calculating amounts charged to patients?

15 Explained the method for applying for financial assistance?
If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility's FAP or FAP application form (|nc|ud|ng accompanylng |nstruct|ons)
explained the method for applying for financial assistance (check all that apply):

ERARENE

34-0714585 5

Described the information the hospital facility may require an individual to provide as part of his or her application
b [X] Describedthe supporting documentation the hospital facility may require an individual to submit as part of his

or her application
c Provided the contact information of hospital facility staff who can provide an individual with information
about the FAP and FAP application process
d 1 Provided the contact information of nonprofit organizations or government agencies that may be sources
of assistance with FAP applications
e [x] other (describe in Section C)
16 Was widely publicized within the community served by the hospital facility?
If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy (check all that apply):
The FAP was widely available on a website (list url; WWW,CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG
The FAP application form was widely available on a website (list url): WWW,CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG

o a0 T @

BB EREEE

The FAP application form was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the hospital
facility and by mail)

A plain language summary of the FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in
the hospital facility and by mail)

A plain language summary of the FAP was widely available on a website (list url) WWW.CLEVELANDCLINIC,
The FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the hospital facility and by mail)

Yes No
13 X
%
14 X
15 X
16 X

ORG

Individuals were notified about the FAP by being offered a paper copy of the plain language summary of the FAP,

by receiving a conspicuous written notice about the FAP on their billing statements, and via conspicuous public

displays or other measures reasonably calculated to attract patients’ attention

]|

spoken by LEP populations

632095 11-02-16
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Notified members of the community who are most likely to require financial assistance about availability of the FAP
The FAP, FAP application form, and plain language summary of the FAP were translated into the primary language(s)
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Schedule H 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Facil Information

Billing and Collections

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group ~ THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

Yes
17 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written financial
assistance policy (FAP) that explained all of the actions the hospital facility or other authorized party may take upon
nonpayment? . . . T L 17 X
18 Check all of the following actions against an individua! that were permitted under the hospital facility's policies during the
tax year r efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the facility's FAP:
a i e (ies)
b [ ] Selling an ual's toa y
c D Deferring, g, or iring before providing medically necessary care due to nonpayment of a
facility's FAP
da []
e [
f E ere permitted
19 Did the hospital facility or other authorized party perform any of the following actions during the tax year before making
reasonable efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the facility’'s FAP? = . . L 19 X
If "Yes," check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged:
a Reporting to credit agency(ies)
Selling an individual's debt to another party
c Deferring, denying, or requiring a payment before providing medically necessary care due to nonpayment of a
previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility's FAP
Actions that require a legal or judicial process
e Other similar actions (describe in Section C)
20 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility or other authorized party made before initiating any of the actions listed (whether or
not che in line 19 (check all
a [x] ded a written notice oming ECAs (Extraordinary Collection Action) and a plain language summary of the
b ut the FAP and FAP application process
c
d
e
f |:| None of these efforts made

Care
21 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care

that required the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to
individuals regardless of their eligibility under the hospital facility’s financial assistance policy? L 21 X
If "No," indicate why:

a D The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions

b The hospital facility's policy was not in writing

c The hospital facility limited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions (describe in Section C)

Schedule H (Form 990) 2016

632096 11-02-16

52
10291030 352590 CCF990 2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



Schedule H (Form 990) 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 Page 7
[Part V | Facility Information (continued)

Charges to Individuals Eligible for Assistance Under the FAP (FAP-Eligible Individuals)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group _ THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

Yes | No
22 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged to FAP-eligible
individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care.
a ] The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-service during a prior
12-month period
b |___| The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-setvice and all private
heatth insurers that pay claims to the hospital facility during a prior 12-month period
c X1 The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicaid, either alone or in combination
with Medicare fee-for-service and all private health insurers that pay claims to the hospital facility during a prior
12-month period
d [] e hospital facility used a prospective Medicare or Medicaid method
23 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility provided
emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to Individuals who had
INSUFANCE COVENING SUCK CAIBT | | . ..\ i oot bbb 23 2
If "Yes," explain in Section C.
24 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal ta the gross charge for any
service provided to that individual? 24 X
If "Yes," explain in Section C.
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H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Faci
Section B. Facility Policies and Practices
(Complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION

Line number of hospital facility, or line numbers of hospital
facilities in a facility reporting group (from Part V, Section A): 2

Yes No
Com Health Needs
1 Was the hospital facility first licensed, registered, or similarly recognized by a state as a hospital facility in the
current tax year or the immediately preceding taxyear? . =~ ... 1 X
2 Was the hospital facility acquired or placed into service as a tax- exempt hospital in the current tax year or
the immediately preceding tax year? If "Yes," provide details of the acquisition in Section C o Lo . 2 X
3 During the tax year or either of the two immediately preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a
community health needs assessment (CHNA)? If "No," skip to line 12 3 X
If "Yes," indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that apply):
a A definition of the community served by the hospital facility
Demographics of the community
c Existing health care facilities and resources within the community that are available to respond to the health needs
of the community
d How data was obtained
The significant health needs of the community
f [ Primary and chronic disease needs and other health issues of uninsured persons, low-income persons, and minority
groups
g I:I The z and o meet the co nity healt s
h [ The n y'si
i L] The d eds in the hospita  ity's prior )
i [ ot
4 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last conducted a CHNA: 20
5 In conducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from persons who represent the broad
interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with special knowledge of or expertise in public
health? If "Yes," describe in Section C how the hospital facility took into account input from persons who represent the
community, and identify the persons the hospital facility consulted = = o . 5
6a Was the hospital facility's CHNA conducted with one or more other hospital facmtles'? If “Yes ! Ilst the other
hospital facilities in Section C S 6a
b Was the hospital facitity’'s CHNA conducted wnth one or more orgamzatlons other than hospntal facnmes" lf "Yes !
list the other organizations in SectionC | L . o 6b
7 Did the hospital facility make its CHNA report widely avallable to the publlc’7 o o o 7
If "Yes," indicate how the CHNA report was made widely available (check all that apply)
a Hospital facility's website (list url):
b Other website (list url):
c Made a paper copy available for public inspection without charge at the hospital facility
d Other (describe in Section C)
8 Did the hospital facility adopt an implementation strategy to meet the significant community health needs
identified through its most recently conducted CHNA? If "No," skip to line 11 . o 8
9 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last adopted an implementation strategy: 20 -
10 Is the hospital facility’s most recently adopted implementation strategy posted on a website? L 10
alf "Yes," (list url):
b If "No," is the hospital facility's most recently adopted implementation strategy attached to this return? o 10b
11 Describe in Section C how the hospital facility is addressing the significant needs identified in its most
recently conducted CHNA and any such needs that are not being addressed together with the reasons why
such needs are not being addressed.
12a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility's failure to conduct a
CHNA as required by section 501 (r)(3)? o o 12a X
b If "Yes" to line 12a, did the organization file Form 4720 to report the sectlon 4959 excise tax'7 o ) 12b
¢ If "Yes" to line 12b, what is the total amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form 4720
facilities?
632094 11-02-16 A Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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H 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Faci
Financial Assistance Policv (FAP)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION
Yes
Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that:
13 Explained eligibility criteria for financial assistance, and whether such assistance included free or discounted care? . 13 X
If "Yes," indicate the eligibility criteria explained in the FAP:
a [ZI Federal poverty guidelines (FPG), with FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care of 250 %
and FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care of 400 %
Income level other than FPG (describe in Section C)
Asset level
Medical indigency
Insurance status
Underinsurance status
Residency
Other (describe in Section C)
14 Explained the basis for calculating amounts charged to patients? . . .. . B, o 14 X
15 Explained the method for applying for financial assistance? .~ . ... . . . ... ... . o 15 X
If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility's FAP or FAP application form (mcludmg accompanylng |nstruct|ons)
explained the method for applying for financial assistance (check all that apply):
Described the information the hospital facility may require an individual to provide as part of his or her application
b E’ Described the supporting documentation the hospital facility may require an individual to submit as part of his
or her application
X Provided the contact information of hospital facility staff who can provide an individual with information
about the FAP and FAP application process
d [ Provided the contact information of nonprofit organizations or government agencies that may be sources
of assistance with FAP applications
e ] other (describe in Section C)
16 Was widely publicized within the community served by the hospital facility? . ... . ...... .. L 16 X
If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy (check all that apply):
The FAP was widely available on a website (list url); WWW,CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG
(2] Therap application form was widely available on a website (list url): WWW.CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG
(x] A plain language summary of the FAP was widely available on a website (list url): W#W,CLEVELANDCLINIC.ORG
(X ] The FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the hospital facility and by mail)
E’ The FAP application form was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the hospital
facility and by mail)
X Aplain language summary of the FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in
the hospital facility and by mail)
g X Individuals were notified about the FAP by being offered a paper copy of the plain language summary of the FAP,
by receiving a conspicuous written notice about the FAP on their billing statements, and via conspicuous public
displays or other measures reasonably calculated to attract patients’ attention

ARG

O o 0 O o

h X  Notified members of the community who are most likely to require financial assistance about availability of the FAP
i X The FAP, FAP application form, and plain language summary of the FAP were translated into the primary language(s)
spoken by LEP populations
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H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Inform
and Collections
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group ~ CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION

Yes No
17 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written financial
assistance policy (FAP) that explained all of the actions the hospital facility or other authorized party may take upon
nonpayment? = R L . o o R . 17 X
18 Check all of the following actions against an individual that were permitted under the hospital facility’s policies during the
tax before making reasonable efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the facility's FAP:
a Reporting to credit agency(ies)
Selling an individual's debt to another party
c Deferring, denying, or requiring a payment before providing medically necessary care due to nonpayment of a
previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility’s FAP
Actions that require a legal or judicial process
Other similar actions (describe in Section C)
t [x1 Noneof these actions or other similar actions were permitted
19 Did the hospital facility or other authorized party perform any of the following actions during the tax year before making
reasonable efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the facility's FAP? 19 X
If "Yes," check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged:
a Reporting to credit agency(ies)
Selling an individual's debt to another party
c Deferring, denying, or requiring a payment before providing medically necessary care due to nonpayment of a
previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility's FAP
d Actions that require a legal or judicial process

Other similar actions (describe in Section C)
20 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility or other authorized party made before initiating any of the actions listed (whether or
not checked) in line 19 (check all that apply):
a [X1 Provided a written notice about upcoming ECAs (Extraordinary Collection Action) and a plain language summary of the
FAP at least 30 days before initiating those ECAs
[x] Made a reasonable effort to orally notify individuals about the FAP and FAP application process
E Processed incomplete and complete FAP applications
Made presumptive eligibility determinations
Other (describe in Section C)
None of efforts were made
Pol Relati to Medical Care
21 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care
that required the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to
individuals regardless of their eligibility under the hospital facility’s financial assistance policy? . 21 X
If "No," indicate why:
a E The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions
b |___| The hospital facility's policy was not in writing
¢ [ The hospital facility limited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions (describe in Section C)
in Section

o

- 0o a o
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Faci Information
Charges to Individuals Eliaible for Assistance Under the FAP (FAP-Eligible Individuals)
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group ~ CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION
Yes

22 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged to FAP-eligible
individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care.

a The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-service during a prior
12-month period

b The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-service and all private
health insurers that pay claims to the hospital facility during a prior 12-month period

c The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicaid, either alone or in combination

with Medicare fee-for-service and all private health insurers that pay claims to the hospital facility during a prior
12-month period
d X The hospital facility used g praspective Medicare or Medicaid method
23 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility provided
emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to individuals who had
insurance covering such care? = .. .. . o SR 23 X
If "Yes," explain in Section C.
24 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal to the gross charge for any
service provided to that individual?
in Section C.

24 X
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Schedule THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

Section B. Facility Policies and Practices
(Complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group REPORTING GROUP A

Line number of hospital facility, or line numbers of hospital
facilities in a facility reporting group (from Part V, SectionA): 3 4 5 6

Health Needs

1 Was the hospital facility first licensed, registered, or similarly recognized by a state as a hospital facility in the
current tax year or the immediately preceding tax year? o o o

2 Was the hospital facility acquired or placed into service as a tax-exempt hospital in the current tax year or
the immediately preceding tax year? If “Yes," provide details of the acquisition in Section C .

3 During the tax year or either of the two immediately preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a
community health needs assessment (CHNA)? If "No," skip to line 12
If ! eck all y):

a ospital

34-0714585

Yes No

ithin th nity that are available to respond to the health needs

of the e
l:l How da tained

The significant health needs of the community
L]

- 0o a

groups

Primary and chronic disease needs and other health issues of uninsured persons, low-income persons, and minority

g The process for identifying and prioritizing community health needs and services to meet the community health needs
h

The process for consulting with persons representing the community’s interests

i The impact of any actions taken to address the significant health needs identified in the hospital facility's prior CHNA(s)

j Other (describe in Section C)
4 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last conducted a CHNA: 20

§ In conducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from persons who represent the broad
interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with special knowledge of or expertise in public
health? If "Yes," describe in Section C how the hospital facility took into account input from persons who represent the

community, and identify the persons the hospital facility consulted = o o .
6a Was the hospital facility’s CHNA conducted with one or more other hospital facilities? If "Yes," list the other
hospital facilities in Section C o L . L . B
b Was the hospital facility's CHNA conducted with one or more organizations other than hospital facilities? if "Yes,"
list the other organizations in SectionC o )
7 Did the hospital facility make its CHNA report widely available to the public?
If "Yes," indicate how the CHNA report was made widely available {check all that apply)
a Hospital facility's website (list url):
b L] Other website (list url):
c Made a paper copy available for public inspection without charge at the hospital facility
d L1 other (describe in Section C)
8 Did the hospital facility adopt an implementation strategy to meet the significant community health needs
identified through its most recently conducted CHNA? If "No," skip to line 11
9 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last adopted an implementation strategy: 20
10 Is the hospital facility's most recently adopted implementation strategy posted on a website?
a If "Yes," (list url):
b If "No," is the hospital facility’s most recently adopted implementation strategy attached to this return?

11 Describe in Section G how the hospital facility is addressing the significant needs identified in its most
recently conducted CHNA and any such needs that are not being addressed together with the reasons why
such needs are not being addressed.

12a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility's failure to conduct a
CHNA as required by section 501(r)(3)?
b If "Yes" to line 12a, did the organization file Form 4720 to report the section 4959 excise tax? o
c If "Yes" to line 12b, what is the total amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form 4720
for all of its
632094 11-02-16
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
Faci Information
Fi Policy (FAP)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group REPORTING GROUP A
Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that:

13 Explained eligibility criteria for financial assistance, and whether such assistance included free or discounted care?
If "Yes," indicate the eligibility criteria explained in the FAP:

a [X] Federal poverty guidelines (FPG), with FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care of 250
and FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care of 400 %
Income level other than FPG (describe in Section C)
Asset level

Medical indigency

Insurance status

Underinsurance status

Residency

Other (describe in Section C)

14 Explained the basis for calculating amounts charged to patients?

15 Explained the method for applying for financial assistance? ... . .. .. ... .. . ..
If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility's FAP or FAP application form (|nclud|ng accompanymg |nstruct|ons)
explained the method for applying for financial assistance (check all that apply):

HESEE

34-0714585

Described the information the hospital facility may require an individual to provide as part of his or her application
b Described the supporting documentation the hospital facility may require an individual to submit as part of his

or her application
c Provided the contact information of hospital facility staff who can provide an individual with information
about the FAP and FAP application process
d D Provided the contact information of nonprofit organizations or government agencies that may be sources
of assistance with FAP applications
e l:l Other (describe in Section C)
16 Was widely publicized within the community served by the hospital facility? .
If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy (check all that apply):
The FAP was widely available on a website (list url)
The FAP application form was widely available on a website (list url):
A plain language summary of the FAP was widely available on a website (list url):

®o a6 T o

B EECOO

The FAP application form was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the hospital
facility and by mail)

A plain language summatry of the FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in
the hospital facility and by mail)

Yes No
13 X
%
14 X
15 X
16 X

The FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the hospital facility and by mail)

Individuals were notified about the FAP by being offered a paper copy of the plain language summary of the FAP,

by receiving a conspicuous written notice about the FAP on their billing statements, and via conspicuous public

displays or other measures reasonably calculated to attract patients' attention

od

spoken by LEP populations

632095 11-02-16
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Notified members of the community who are most likely to require financial assistance about availability of the FAP
The FAP, FAP application form, and plain language summary of the FAP were translated into the primary language(s)
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Schedule H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Facil Information

Billing and Collections

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group =~ REPORTING GROUP A

Yes No
17 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written financial
assistance policy (FAP) that explained all of the actions the hospital facility or other authorized party may take upon
nonpayment? . o o L . o ) . L o 177 X
18 Check all of the following actions against an individual that were permitted under the hospital facility's policies during the
t ar ine the individual's eligibifity under the facility’s FAP:
a
b
c efore providing medically necessary care due to nonpayment of a
al facility's FAP
da [
e [
f E were permitted
19 Did the hospital facility or other authorized party perform any of the following actions during the tax year before making
reasonable efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the facility's FAP? o L . 19 X
If "Yes," check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged
a Reporting to credit agency(ies)
b Selling an individual’s debt to another party
Deferring, denying, or requiring a payment before providing medically necessary care due to nonpayment of a
previous bilt for care covered under the hospital facility’s FAP
Actions that require a legal or judicial process
Other similar actions (describe in Section C)
20 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility or other authorized party made before initiating any of the actions listed (whether or
not checked) in line 19 (check all that apply):
a X Provided a written notice about upcoming ECAs (Extraordinary Collection Action) and a plain language summary of the
FAP at least 30 days before initiating those ECAs
b X Made a reasonable effort to orally notify individuals about the FAP and FAP application process
¢ X Processed incomplete and complete FAP applications
d IZI Made presumptive eligibility determinations
e [ Other (describe in Section C)
f |:| None of these efforts were made
Relati to Medical Care
21 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care
that required the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to
individuals regardless of their eligibility under the hospital facility’s financial assistance policy? 21 X
If "No," indicate why:
a The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions
b The hospital facility’s policy was not in writing
The hospital facility limited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions (describe in Section C)

in Section
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Schedule H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 7
rartv  Facilit on
Charges to Individuals Eligible for Under the FAP (FAP-Eliaible Individuals)
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group =~ REPORTING GROUP A
Yes No
22 |ndicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged to FAP-eligible
individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care.
a |:| The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-service during a prior
12-month period
b ] The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-service and all private
health insurers that pay claims to the hospital facility during a prior 12-month period
c The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicaid, either alone or in combination
with Medicare fee-for-service and all private health insurers that pay claims to the hospital facility during a prior
12-month period
d X The hospital facility used a prospective Medicare or Medicaid method
23 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility provided
emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to individuals who had
insurance covering such care? | . U 23 X
If "Yes," explain in Section C.
24 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal to the gross charge for any
service provided to that individual? . L 24 X
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Schedule H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 8

Faci
o n r Vv, B, 2,3j,5, 6a, 6b, 7d, 11, 13b,
d c f ch | fa in a facility reporting
g ] , on M "'B,2," "B, 3," etc.) and

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION:

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 5: INPUT FROM THE COMMUNITY WAS RECEIVED THROUGH
KEY INFORMANT INTERVIEWS WHICH TOOK PLACE JANUARY 2016 THROUGH JULY 2016
THE KEY INFORMANTS WERE IDENTIFIED BY EACH HOSPITAL FACILITY'S LEADERSHIP
AS PERSONS OR ORGANIZATIONS THAT REPRESENTED THE BROAD INTERESTS OF EACH
FACILITY'S "COMMUNITY," AS DEFINED IN THE RELEVANT CHNA REPORT, THEY WERE
SELECTED BASED ON THEIR INVOLVEMENT WITH THE COMMUNITY AND THEIR
PARTICIPATION IN OVERALL COMMUNITY HEALTH, THE KEY INFORMANTS INCLUDED
PERSONS WITH SPECIAL KNOWLEDGE OF OR EXPERTISE IN PUBLIC HEALTH; LOCAL
PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENTS; AGENCIES WITH CURRENT DATA OR INFORMATION ABOUT
THE HEALTH NEEDS AND SOCIAL NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY; REPRESENTATIVES OF
SOCIAL SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS; AND LEADERS REPRESENTATIVES, AND MEMBERS OF
MEDICALLY UNDERSERVED LOW-INCOME AND MINORITY POPULATIONS, EACH KEY
INFORMANT WAS INTERVIEWED OVER THE PHONE BY THE CONSULTANT VERITE
HEALTHCARE CONSULTING, LLC, USING THE SAME SET OF QUESTIONS FOR EACH
PARTICIPANT. A LIST OF EACH PARTICIPANT ORGANIZATION IS IDENTIFIED IN

APPENDIX G OF THE RELEVANT HOSPITAL FACILITY'S CHNA

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION:

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 6A: CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION MAIN CAMPUS

COLLABORATED WITH OTHER CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM HOSPITALS,

INCLUDING: AKRON GENERAL MEDICAL CENTER, CLEVELAND CLINIC CHILDREN'S

HOSPITAL CLEVELAND CLINIC CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL FOR REHABILITATION EDWIN

SHAW REHABILITATION INSTITUTE EUCLID HOSPITAL, FAIRVIEW HOSPITAL

HILLCREST HOSPITAL, LODI COMMUNITY HOSPITAL LUTHERAN HOSPITAL MARYMOUNT

632098 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Facil Information
Section C. Su mental Information for Part V, n r B, 2,3}, 5, 6a, 11, 13b,
13h, 15¢, 16j, 19e, 20e, 21c, 21d, 23, and 24. c f | fa in a facility g
group, design  d by facility reporting group letter S , A "'B,2," "B ) and

name of hosp  facllity.

HOSPITAL MEDINA HOSPITAL SOUTH POINTE HOSPITAL, CLEVELAND CLINIC FLORIDA
HEALTH SYSTEM, CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION MAIN CAMPUS ALSO COLLABORATED

WITH ASHTABULA COUNTY MEDICAL CENTER AND GLENBEIGH,

CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION:
PART V, SECTION B, LINE 2: CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION OPENED IN

DECEMBER 2015,

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION:

PART V SECTION B, LINE 11: IN GENERAL THE KEY NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN ALL
CCHS HOSPITAL FACILITIES WERE THE FOLLOWING: ACCESS TO AFFORDABLE
HEALTHCARE; CHRONIC DISEASE AND OTHER HEALTH CONDITIONS; ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY CONDITIONS; HEALTH PROFESSIONS EDUCATION AND
RESEARCH; HEALTHCARE FOR THE ELDERLY; AND WELLNESS, HOW THE FACILITY WILL
ADDRESS EACH NEED IS DESCRIBED IN DETAIL IN THE RELEVANT HOSPITAL
FACILITY'S IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGY REPORT

CLEVELAND CLINIC CANNOT DIRECTLY ADDRESS THOSE COMMUNITY NEEDS THAT DO NOT
RELATE DIRECTLY TO THE HOSPITAL'S MISSION TO DELIVER HEALTH CARE., THESE
ARE NEEDS THAT OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AND/OR NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS HAVE THE
MORE APPROPRIATE EXPERTISE AND RESOURCES TO ADDRESS. ALTHOUGH CLEVELAND
CLINIC CANNOT ADDRESS THESE NEEDS DIRECTLY, IT DOES SUPPORT GOVERNMENTAL
AND OTHER AGENCIES IN THEIR EFFORTS TO HELP WITH THESE NEEDS,

CLEVELAND CLINIC CANNOT ADDRESS THE FOLLOWING COMMUNITY NEED IDENTIFIED IN
THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY
CONDITIONS (INCLUDING BETTER EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES LOWER CRIME RATES

632098 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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6 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 8

nformation

Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B. Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines 2, 3j, 5, 6a, 6b, 7d, 11, 13b
13h, 15¢, 16j, 18e, 19¢, 20e, 21¢, 21d, 23, and 24. If applicable, provide separate descriptions for each hospital facility in a faci ity g

o] , ??]signatelufj b); facility reporting group letter and hospital facility line number from Part V, Section A ("A, 1," "A, 4," 'B, 2," "B, 3," etc.) and

n of hospital facilitv.

ADEQUATE SOCIAL SERVICES AND OTHER ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS)

CLEVELAND CLINIC CANNOT FOCUS ON OR OTHERWISE ADDRESS THE NEED FOR
COMMUNITY SERVICES UNRELATED TO THE DELIVERY OF HEALTHCARE, ALTHOUGH
CLEVELAND CLINIC IS NOT DIRECTLY INVOLVED WITH DEVELOPING COMMUNITY
INFRASTRUCTURE AND IMPROVING THE ECONOMY BECAUSE ITS MISSION RELATES TO
DELIVERY OF QUALITY HEALTHCARE IT DOES AND WILL CONTINUE TO SUPPORT LOCAL
CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATIONS, COLLABORATE
WITH LEADERS OF REGIONAL ECONOMIC IMPROVEMENT AND PROVIDE IN-KIND DONATION

OF TIME SKILL AND/OR SPONSORSHIPS TO SUPPORT EFFORTS IN THESE AREAS,

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION:

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 13B: PATIENTS WHO DO NOT MEET FINANCIAL CRITERIA
FOR ASSISTANCE BASED ON FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL MAY NONETHELESS QUALIFY FOR
ASSISTANCE IF THEIR MEDICAL EXPENSES EXCEED 15% OF THEIR ANNUAL FAMILY

INCOME,

CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION:

PART V, SECTION B LINE 13B: PATIENTS WHO DO NOT MEET FINANCIAL CRITERIA
FOR ASSISTANCE BASED ON FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL MAY NONETHELESS QUALIFY FOR
ASSISTANCE IF THEIR MEDICAL EXPENSES EXCEED 15% OF THEIR ANNUAL FAMILY

INCOME,

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION:
PART V, SECTION B LINE 15E: IN ADDITION TO APPLYING BY COMPLETING A

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION PATIENTS MAY BE EVALUATED UPON

632098 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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H 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 8
Faci Information

Section C. Information for Part V, n r B, 2, 3j, 5, 643, 11, 13b,
13h, 15e, 16, 19e, 20e, 21¢, 21d, 23, and 24. c f |fa in a facility g
reporting group letter s , AR ""B,2,""B .) and

SCHEDULING OR PRIOR TO ADMISSION BY CCHS., UNINSURED PATIENTS THAT CCHS
DETERMINES THROUGH THIRD PARTY VERIFICATION SOURCES TQO HAVE ANNUAL FAMILY
INCOME UNDER 400% OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY GUIDELINES WILL BE DEEMED
ELIGIBLE AND NOTIFIED AS SUCH IN WRITING, IF THE PATIENT BELIEVES THEY
QUALIFY FOR ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE THEY MAY SUBMIT A COMPLETED APPLICATION

FOR CONSIDERATION

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION:

PART V SECTION B, LINE 16J: INFORMING THE PUBLIC THAT FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE IS AVAILABLE IS AN IMPORTANT ELEMENT OF OUR FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AND THE CLEVELAND CLINIC CONTINUOUSLY STRIVES TO
IMPROVE ITS COMMUNICATIONS WITH PATIENTS ON THE AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE, INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY IS
AVAILABLE ON THE CLEVELAND CLINIC WEBSITE. PATIENT BILLS INCLUDE DETAILED
INFORMATION REGARDING THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, A PLAIN LANGUAGE
SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY IS AVAILABLE THROUGHOUT CCF,
INCLUDING IN PATIENT REGISTRATION AREAS ONLINE AND WITH FINANCIAL
COUNSELORS WHO ARE PRESENT ON-SITE AT EACH CLEVELAND CLINIC HOSPITAL AND
OHIO FAMILY HEALTH CENTER TO ASSIST PATIENTS IN QUALIFYING FOR
GOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, A DESCRIPTION
OF THE POLICY IS ALSO INCLUDED IN OUR INSURANCE AND BILLING INFORMATION
PATIENT BROCHURE, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT REGISTRATION DESKS WITH FINANCIAL

COUNSELORS,

CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION:

PART V SECTION B LINE 16J: INFCRMING THE PUBLIC THAT FINANCIAL
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Schedule H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Faci
o r ) Provide d on r Vv, B, 2,3j, 5, 63, 6b, 7d, 11, 13b,
d f e, provide te f ch | fa in a faci ity reporting
g roup letter and hospital facility line nu be , on A "'B,2," "B, 3," etc.) and

ASSISTANCE IS AVAILABLE IS AN IMPORTANT ELEMENT OF OUR FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AND CLEVELAND CLINIC REHABILITATION CONTINUOQUSLY
STRIVES TO IMPROVE ITS COMMUNICATIONS WITH PATIENTS ON THE AVAILABILITY OF
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, INFORMATION ABOUT THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY
IS AVAILABLE ON THE CLEVELAND CLINIC WEBSITE, PATIENT BILLS INCLUDE
DETAILED INFORMATION REGARDING THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY, A PLAIN
LANGUAGE SUMMARY OF THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY IS AVAILABLE
THROUGHOUT THE FACILITY INCLUDING IN PATIENT REGISTRATION AREAS ONLINE
AND WITH FINANCIAL COUNSELORS WHO ARE PRESENT ON-SITE TO ASSIST PATIENTS
IN QUALIFYING FOR GOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE. A DESCRIPTION OF THE POLICY IS ALSO INCLUDED IN QUR INSURANCE
AND BILLING INFORMATION PATIENT BROCHURE WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT

REGISTRATION DESKS WITH FINANCIAL COUNSELORS

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION:

PART V SECTION B LINE 20E: IN ADDITION TO ITEMS LISTED IN 20A-D CCHS
NOTIFIES INDIVIDUALS OF THE AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN
COMMUNICATIONS WITH PATIENTS ABOUT APPOINTMENT REMINDERS, IN THEIR
DISCHARGE SUMMARY, IN THE ON HOLD MESSAGE IF THEY CALL CUSTOMER SERVICE

AND ON WEB PAGES INCLUDING THE ONLINE BILL PAY PORTAL

SCHEDULE H PART V SECTION B, FACILITY REPORTING GROUP A

FACILITY REPORTING GROUP A CONSISTS OF:

- FACILITY 4: SELECT SPECIALTY - REGENCY WEST

- FACILITY 5: SELECT SPECIALTY - REGENCY EAST

- FACILITY 3: SELECT SPECIALTY - FAIRHILL

632098 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016

66
10291030 352590 CCF990 2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



H 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Faci Information
Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B. Provide de r B, lines 2, 3j, 5, 6a, 6b, 7d, 11, 13b,
1 6j, 9 21d, 23 24. cable, provid f | facility in a facility g
g gn 3{ rting gro tter spital facility , S A4, B, 2," "B, 3," etc.) and
n SD ili

- FACILITY 6: SELECT SPECIALTY - GATEWAY

GROUP A-FACILITY 4 -- SELECT SPECIALTY - REGENCY WEST
PART V SECTION B LINE 2; ON JULY 1, 2016, THE CLEVELAND CLINIC
FOUNDATION ENTERED INTO A JOINT VENTURE TO OPERATE THE LONG TERM ACUTE

CARE FACILITY

GROUP A-FACILITY 5 -- SELECT SPECTALTY - REGENCY EAST
PART V SECTION B, LINE 2: ON JULY 1, 2016, THE CLEVELAND CLINIC
FOUNDATION ENTERED INTO A JOINT VENTURE TO OPERATE THE LONG TERM ACUTE

CARE FACILITY,

GROUP A-FACILITY 3 -- SELECT SPECIALTY - FAIRHILL
PART V SECTION B LINE 2: ON JULY 1, 2016, THE CLEVELAND CLINIC
FOUNDATION ENTERED INTO A JOINT VENTURE TO OPERATE THE LONG TERM ACUTE

CARE FACILITY

GROUP A-FACILITY 6 -- SELECT SPECIALTY - GATEWAY
PART V, SECTION B, LINE 2: ON JULY 1, 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC
FOUNDATION ENTERED INTO A JOINT VENTURE TO OPERATE THE LONG TERM ACUTE

CARE FACILITY
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H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 9

Faci on
Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 113

Name and address of Facil
1 RICHARD E, JACOBS HEALTH CENTER

33100 CLEVELAND CLINIC BOULEVARD
AVON OH 44011 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
2  BEACHWOOD FAMILY HEALTH & SURGERY CE
26900 CEDAR ROAD
BEACHWOOD, OH 44122 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
3  TWINSBURG FAMILY HEALTH & SURGERY CE
8701 DARROW ROAD
TWINSBURG OH 44087 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
4  STRONGSVILLE FAMILY HEALTH & SURGERY
16761 SOUTH PARK CENTER
STRONGSVILLE OH 44136 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
5  INDEPENDENCE FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
5001 ROCKSIDE RD CROWN CENTRE II
INDEPENDENCE OH 44131 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
6 LORAIN FAMILY HEALTH & SURGERY CENTE
5700 COOPER FOSTER PARK ROAD
LORAIN OH 44053 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
7  WILLOUGHBY HILLS FAMILY HEALTH CENTE
2550 & 2570 SCM CENTER ROAD
WILLOUGHBY HILLS, OH 44094 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
8  WOOSTER FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
1740 CLEVELAND ROAD
WOOSTER OH 44691 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
9 CLEVELAND CLINIC CANCER CENTERS
417 QUARRY LAKES DRIVE
SANDUSKY OH 44870 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
10 BRUNSWICK FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
3574 CENTER ROAD
BRUNSWICK OH 44212 FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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H 2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 113

Name and address

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

CLEVELAND CLINIC CANCER CENTERS

1125 ASPIRA COURT

MANSFIELD, OH 44906

SOLON FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

29800 BAINBRIDGE ROAD

SOLON, OH 44139

ELYRIA FAMILY HEALTH & SURGERY CENTE
303 CHESTNUT COMMONS DRIVE

ELYRIA OH 44035

CLEVELAND CLINIC HEART & VASCULAR
1400 WEST MAIN STREET (BELLEVUE HOSP
BELLEVUE, OH 44811

SUPERIOR MEDICAL SHEFFIELD FAMILY HE
5334 MEADOW LANE CT

SHEFFIELD VILLAGE, OH 44035
STEPHANIE TUBBS JONES HEALTH CENTER
13944 EUCLID AVENUE

EAST CLEVELAND OH 44112

NORTH COAST CANCER

509 W, MCPHERSON HIGHWAY

CLYDE OH 43410

LANDERBROOK OFFICE AND ENDOSCOPY CEN
5900 LANDERBROOK DRIVE

MAYFIELD HEIGHTS OH 44124

AVON POINTE FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
36901 AMERICAN WAY

AVON OH 44011

NORTH COAST GASTROENTEROLOGY

30701 CLEMENS ROAD

WESTLAKE OH 44145

632099 11-02-16
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OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
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Faci Information

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATICN

34-0714585

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 113

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

CHAGRIN FALLS FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
551 EAST WASHINGTON STREET

CHAGRIN FALLS OH 44022

CLEVELAND CLINIC LYNDHURST CAMPUS
1950 RICHMOND ROAD

LYNDHURST OH 44124

SUPERIOR MEDICAL AMHERST FAMILY HEAL
5172 LEAVITT ROAD

LORAIN OH 44053

AVON LAKE FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

450 AVON BELDEN ROAD

AVON LAKE OH 44012

CLEVELAND CLINIC UROLOGICAL INSTITUT
20997 LORAIN

FAIRVIEW PARK OH 44126

MADISON MEDICAL OFFICE

2999 MCMACKIN ROAD

MADISON, OH 44057

OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP PD/HOME DIALYS
11203 STOKES BOULEVARD

CLEVELAND OH 44104

MENTOR MEDICAL OFFICE

7060 WAYSIDE DRIVE

MENTOR OH 44060

CCF GASTROENTEROLOGY

7530 FREDLE DRIVE

CONCORD, OH 44077

COMMUNITY PEDIATRICS

8254 MAYFIELD ROAD

CHESTERLAND OH 44026
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OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

QUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

DIALYSIS CENTER & DIAGNOSTIC

CENTER

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

aci Information

34-0714585

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

Name and address
31 ASHLAND OPHTHALMOLOGY/SUGARBUSH EYE

21 SUGARBUSH COURT
ASHLAND, OH 44805
32 CLEVELAND CLINIC SUMMIT OPHTHALMOLOG
1 PARK WEST BOULEVARD, STE 150
AKRON, OH 44320
33 WESTERN RESERVE NEUROSURGERY
1900 23RD STREET
CUYAHOGA FALLS, OH 44223
34 MENTOR REHABILITATION AND SPORTS THE
7533 CENTER STREET
MENTOR OH 44060
35 MIDDLEBURG HEIGHTS OQORTHOPAEDICS
7010 ENGLE ROAD STE 105
MIDDLEBURG HEIGHTS. OH 44130
36 NORTH COAST CANCER
272 BENEDICT AVENUE
NORWALK, OH 44857
37 CLEVELAND CLINIC SUPERIOR MEDICAL CA
1959 COOPER FOSTER PARK ROAD
LORAIN, OH 44053
38 OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP, WESTLAKE
26024 DETROIT AVENUE
WESTLAKE OH 44145
39 OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP WEST
14670 SNOW ROAD
BROOKPARK OH 44142
40 SOUTH RUSSELL FAMILY PRACTICE
5192 CHILLICOTHE ROAD
SOUTH RUSSELL OH 44022
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Fac

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 113

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

WILLOUGHBY HILLS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

2785 SOM CENTER ROAD
WILLOUGHBY HILLS, OH 44054
LAKEWOOD FAMILY HEALTH CENTER
16215 MADISON AVENUE

LAKEWOOD OH 44107

COMMUNITY PEDIATRICS

2001 CROCKER ROAD

WESTLAKE OH 44145

OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP SOLON
6020 ENTERPRISE PARKWAY

SOLON, OH 44139

LORAIN ORTHOPAEDICS

5275 NORTH ABBE ROAD

ELYRIA, OH 44035

NORTH RIDGEVILLE MEDICAL OFFICE
35105 CENTER RIDGE ROAD

NORTH RIDGEVILLE, OH 44039
THERAPY SERVICES CUYAHOGA FALLS
63 GRAHAM ROAD

CUYAHOGA FALLS, OH 44223

OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP, FARNSWORTH

3764 PEARL RD

CLEVELAND OH 44109

OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP, EUCLID
26450 EUCLID AVENUE

EUCLID OH 44132

OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP OF NORTH RANDA

4750 NORTHFIELD ROAD
NORTH RANDALL OH 44128
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OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

FAMILY HEALTH CENTER

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

DIALYSIS CENTER

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

QUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

DIALYSIS CENTER

DIALYSIS CENTER

DIALYSIS CENTER
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Fac Information
Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 113

Name and
51 CANFIELD ORTHOPAEDICS AND REHABILITA

3736 BOARDMAN CANFIELD ROAD

CANFIELD OH 44406 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
52 CHARDON REHABILITATION AND SPORTS TH

325 CENTER STREET

CHARDON OH 44024 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
53 OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP, ELYRIA

1050 N, ABBE RD, N

ELYRIA, OH 44035 DIALYSIS CENTER
54 CLEVELAND CLINIC DIABETES AND ENDOCR

3733 PARK EAST DRIVE, STE 105

BEACHWOOD, OH 44122 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
55 LORAIN KOLCZUN ORTHOPAEDICS

5800 COOPER FOSTER PARK ROAD

LORAIN, OH 44053 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
56 OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP , OHIO ACUTES

2500 METROHEALTH DRIVE

CLEVELAND, OH 44109 DIALYSIS CENTER
57 MOHICAN EYE CENTER

484 PARK AVENUE WEST

MANSFIELD OH 44906 QUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
58 OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP MENTOR

8840 TYLER BLVD

MENTOR OH 44060 DIALYSIS CENTER
59 OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP, WADSWORTH

1160 WILLIAMS RESERVE BLVD

WADSWORTH, OH 44281 DIALYSIS CENTER
60 OBERLIN OPHTHALMOLOGY/LAKELAND EYE

309 WEST LORAIN STREET

OBERLIN OH 44074 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
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6 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

ation

34-0714585

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

Name and add

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

OHIO RENAL CARE GROUP, LAKEWOOD
13900 DETROIT RD

LAKEWOOD OH 44109

WADSWORTH PRIMARY CARE

ONE PARK CENTER DRIVE

WADSWORTH OH 44281

MOHICAN EYE CENTER

637 NORTH UNION STREET
LOUDONVILLE, OH 44842

CLEVELAND CLINIC CHILDREN'S CENTER F
21016 HILLIARD BOULEVARD

ROCKY RIVER, OH 44116

NPCS - CANAL PLACE

520 SOUTH MAIN STREET

AKRON, OH 44311

SUGARBUSH EYE AND LASER CENTER
1456 PARK AVENUE WEST STE P
MANSFIELD OH 44906

EXPRESS CARE

313 EUCLID AVENUE

CLEVELAND OH 44114

THE LANGSTON HUGHES CENTER CLEVELAND
2390 E 79TH ST.

CLEVELAND OH 44104

OLMSTED TOWNSHIP PRIMARY CARE
27089 BAGLEY ROAD

OLMSTED TOWNSHIP OH 44138
ACCESS TO CARE

29000 AURORA ROAD

SOLON OH 44139

632099 11-02-16
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H 2016
Information

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FQUNDATION

34-0714585

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

Name and address

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

ASHTABULA COUNTY MEDICAL CENTER
2422 LAKE AVENUE
ASHTABULA, OH 44004
BOARDMAN STAR IMAGING
7067 TIFFANY BOULEVARD
BOARDMAN OH 44512

CCF GASTROENTEROLOGY
3700 PARK EAST DRIVE
BEACHWOOD ., OH 44122
CENTER FOR ARTHRITIS
1716 NORTH ROAD SE
WARREN, OH 44484

CLEVELAND CLINIC ADMINISTRATIVE CAMP

3275 SCIENCE PARK DRIVE, BLDG 5
BEACHWOOD, OH 44122

CLEVELAND CLINIC EYE CARE

21245 LORAIN ROAD

FAIRVIEW PARK, OH 44126
CLEVELAND CLINIC FAMILY MEDICINE
19300 DETROIT AVENUE

ROCKY RIVER, OH 44116

CLEVELAND CLINIC SPINE & SURGERY
34 EXECUTIVE DRIVE

NORWALK OH 44857

CLEVELAND CLINIC STAR IMAGING
1449 BOARDMAN-CANFIELD ROAD
BOARDMAN OH 44512

CLUB VIEW VISION CENTER OPTOMETRIC
1650 E. MANSFIELD STREET

BUCYRUS OH 44820
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

ion

34-0714585

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

Name and address

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

30

COLE EYE INSTITUTE
2000 AUBURN DRIVE STE 100
BEACHWOOD, OH 44122
COLUMBUS STAR IMAGING

1550 KENNY ROAD

COLUMBUS , OH 43212
COLUMBUS STAR IMAGING

921 JASONWAY AVENUE
COLUMBUS, OH 43214
COLUMBUS STAR IMAGING

6096 EAST MAIN STREET
COLUMBUS, OH 44213
COLUMBUS STAR IMAGING

975 & 985 BETHEL ROAD
COLUMBUS OH 43214

DAYTON STAR IMAGING

5529 FAR HILLS AVENUE
DAYTON OH 45429

FAIRVIEW WESTOWN PHYSICIAN CENTER

10694 LORAIN AVENUE
CLEVELAND, OH 44111
GRADISEK FAMILY VISION CARE
1142 W, 37TH STREET

LORAIN OH 44052
INDEPENDENCE CANCER CENTER
6100 WEST CREEK ROAD
INDEPENDENCE OH 44131
KINDRED HEALTH CARE CLEVELAND
11900 FAIRHILL ROAD
CLEVELAND OH 44120
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Schedule H
Facil

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION
on

34-0714585 9

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

91 LAKE HEALTH (REGIONAL NEUROSCIENCES)

36001 EUCLID AVENUE
WILLOUGHBY OH 44094

92 LAKEWEST MEDICAL BUILDING
36100 EUCLID AVENUE STE 280

WILLOUGHBY OH 44094

93 LAKEWOOD FAMILY MEDICINE - ROCKPORT

11851 DETROIT AVENUE
LAKEWOOD OH 44107

94 MARYMOUNT REHABILITATION AND SPORTS
2525 EAST ROYALTON ROAD
BROADVIEW HEIGHTS, OH 44147

95 NILES STAR IMAGING

652 YOUNGSTOWN WARREN ROAD

NILES, OH 44446
96 NILES STAR IMAGING

650 YOUNGSTOWN-WARREN ROAD

NILES OH 44446
97 NPCS - BEACEWOOD
26110 EMERY ROAD

WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OH 44128
98 OUTPATIENT PEDIATRIC CLINIC

1912 HAYES AVENUE
SANDUSKY, OH 44870

99 ROCKSIDE MEDICAL CENTER

6701 ROCKSIDE ROAD

INDEPENDENCE, OH 44131
100 SLEEP DISORDERS CENTER

24901 COUNTRY CLUB BOULEVARD
NORTH OLMSTED OH 44070
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CENTER

PHYSICIAN

PHYSICIAN

PHYSICIAN

PHYSICIAN

CENTER

113

CLINIC

CLINIC

CLINIC

CLINIC

CLINIC

CLINIC

CLINIC

CLINIC

Schedule H (Form 990) 2016

2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990_1



H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Facil Information
Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 113

Name and address
101 SLEEP DISORDERS CENTER

8971 WILCOX DRIVE

TWINSBURG, OH 44087 DIAGNOSTIC CENTER
102 SLEEP DISORDERS CENTER

5051 WEST CREEK ROAD

INDEPENDENCE, OH 44131 DIAGNOSTIC CENTER
103 SLEEP DISORDERS CENTER

3122 EASTPOINTE DRIVE

MEDINA OH 44256 DIAGNOSTIC CENTER
104 SLEEP DISORDERS CENTER

5785 HEISLEY ROAD

MENTOR OH 44060 DIAGNOSTIC CENTER
105 SUMMIT OPHTHALMOLOGY

1587 BOETTLER ROAD

GREEN, OH 44685 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
106 THERAPY SERVICES SOUTH

17800 JEFFERSON PARK DRIVE STE 101

MIDDLEBURG HTS, OH 44130 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
107 THERAPY SERVICES WEST

826 WESTPOINT PKWY, STE 1200

WESTLAKE OH 44145 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
108 VALLEY CITY FAMILY MEDICINE

6605 CENTER ROAD

VALLEY CITY OH 44280 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
109 WELLINGTON MEDICAL OFFICE

805 PATRIOT DRIVE, UNIT E

WELLINGTON OH 44090 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC
110 WEST VALLEY MEDICAL

20455 LORAIN ROAD #301

FAIRVIEW PARK OH 44126 OUTPATIENT PHYSICIAN CLINIC

Schedule H (Form 990) 2016

632098 11-02-16

78
10291030 352590 CCF990 2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Information

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility

(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

Name and address

111 WILLOUGHBY HILLS REHABILITATION AND

29017 CHARDON ROAD

WILLOUGHBY HILLS, OH 44094
112 WOOSTER MILLTOWN SPECIALTY & SURGERY

721 EAST MILLTOWN ROAD
WOOSTER, OH 44691

113 WOOSTER WOMEN S HEALTH CENTER

1739 CLEVELAND ROAD
WOOSTER, OH 44691

632099 11-02-16
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 10
nformation

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any

CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other heatth
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

PART I, LINE 3C:

CCF PROVIDES MEDICALLY NECESSARY SERVICES TO ALL PATIENTS REGARDLESS OF

RACE COLOR CREED, GENDER OR COUNTRY OF NATIONAL ORIGIN AND WITHOUT

REGARD TO THE PATIENT'S ABILITY TO PAY, CCF HAS A FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

POLICY THAT IS AMONG THE MOST GENEROUS IN NORTHEAST OHIO, THIS POLICY

APPLIES TO ALL CCF FACILITIES, AND THE AMOUNT OF CARE PROVIDED UNDER THE

POLICY IS DETERMINED BY NEED AND IS NOT LIMITED OR RATIONED BY BUDGETED

AMOUNTS

UNDER THE POLICY CCF PROVIDES FREE CARE TO INDIVIDUALS WITHOUT INSURANCE

WITH INCOMES UP TO 250% OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL AND DISCOUNTED CARE

ON A SLIDING SCALE UP TO 400% OF THE FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL., 1IN ADDITION,

THE POLICY CONTAINS ADDITIONAL WAYS TO QUALIFY BASED ON FINANCIAL OR

MEDICAL NEED. UNLIKE THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICIES OF MOST HOSPITALS,

THE CCF POLICY APPLIES TO BOTH HOSPITAL CHARGES AND CERTAIN PROFESSIONAL

FEES FOR SERVICES PROVIDED BY CCF EMPLOYED PHYSICIANS,

PART I LINE 7:

THE BEST AVAILABLE DATA WAS USED TO CALCULATE THE COST AMOUNTS REPORTED IN
632100 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FQUNDATION 34-0714585 10
Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 8a, and 7; Part Il and Part I}, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any

CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educatses patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the arganization's hospital facilities or cther health
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system, If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

ITEM 7. FOR CERTAIN CATEGORIES, THE BEST AVAILABLE DATA WAS DERIVED FROM

A COST ACCOUNTING SYSTEM, IN OTHER CATEGORIES, SPECIFIC COST-TO-CHARGE

RATIOS WERE CALCULATED AND APPLIED TO THAT CATEGORY.

PART I, LINE 7G:

CCF EMPLOYS ITS PHYSICIANS, THEREFORE THE ASSOCIATED COSTS AND CHARGES

RELATING TO THESE PHYSICIAN SERVICES ARE INCLUDED IN ALL RELEVANT

CATEGORIES OF PART I,

PART I LN 7 COL(F):

ADDITIONAL BAD DEBT EXPENSE ADDED FOR PURPOSES OF CALCULATING THE

PERCENTAGES BUT NOT REPORTED ON FORM 990 IS $891,819

PART I LINE 6A

SCH H PART I LINE 6A - AN ANNUAL COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORT IS PREPARED

FOR THE HEALTH SYSTEM AS A WHOLE, WHICH INCLUDES THE PARENT

ORGANIZATION AND RELATED AFFILIATES

632100 11-02-16 Schedule H {Form 990) 2016
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Schedule H THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

lemental

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Il, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any

CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves,

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other health
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

PART I LINE 7

NOTE THAT THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND OTHER COMMUNITY

BENEFITS OF $566 580 222 AS REPORTED ON PART I, LINE 7 DIFFERS FROM THE

TOTAL COMMUNITY BENEFIT FOR CLEVELAND CLINIC AS REPORTED AS A COMPONENT

OF THE OVERALL SYSTEM'S COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORT, THE AMOUNT DIFFERS

IN TWO RESPECTS:

1)

IRS DOES NOT CONSIDER COMMUNITY BUILDING ACTIVITIES AS REPORTED IN

PART II TO BE COMMUNITY BENEFIT WHERE THESE ACTIVITIES ARE INCLUDED IN

COMMUNITY BENEFIT PER CHA GUIDELINES, AND

2) THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF JOINT VENTURE COMMUNITY BENEFIT IS

INCLUDED IN LINE 7

PART II, COMMUNITY BUILDING ACTIVITIES:

CLEVELAND CLINIC ADDRESSES VARIOUS COMMUNITY CONCERNS INCLUDING HEALTH

IMPROVEMENT POVERTY WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT, AND ACCESS TO HEALTH CARE,

CLEVELAND CLINIC DEVOTES EMPLOYEE TIME AND TALENT TO PARTICIPATE IN

COMMUNITY COLLABORATION BOARDS, HEALTH ADVOCACY PROGRAMS AND PHYSICAL
632100 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
Su Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part I, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any

CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other health
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS TO PROMOTE THE HEALTH OF THE COMMUNITIES THE

ORGANIZATION SERVES

PART III, LINE 2:

ANY DISCOUNTS PROVIDED OR PAYMENTS MADE TO A PARTICULAR PATIENT ACCOUNT

ARE APPLIED TO THAT PATIENT ACCOUNT PRIOR TO ANY BAD DEBT WRITE-OFF AND

ARE THUS, NOT INCLUDED IN BAD DEBT EXPENSE,

PART III LINE 4:

TEXT OF FOOTNOTE FROM AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

PATIENT RECEIVABLES ARE REDUCED BY AN ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE

ACCOUNTS, THE ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS IS BASED UPON

MANAGEMENT 'S ASSESSMENT OF HISTORICAL AND EXPECTED NET COLLECTIONS

CONSIDERING HISTORICAL BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS TRENDS IN

HEALTHCARE COVERAGE, MAJOR PAYOR SOURCES AND OTHER COLLECTION INDICATORS

PERIODICALLY THROUGHOUT THE YEAR, MANAGEMENT ASSESSES THE ADEQUACY OF THE

ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS BASED UPON HISTORICAL WRITE-OFF

632100 11-02-16
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 10
ental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the desctiptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, tines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any

CHNASs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promaotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other health
care faciltties further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system, If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

EXPERIENCE BY PAYOR CATEGORY., THE RESULTS OF THIS REVIEW ARE THEN USED TO

MAKE MODIFICATIONS TO THE PROVISION FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS TO

ESTABLISH AN APPROPRIATE ALLOWANCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE RECEIVABLES, AFTER

SATISFACTION OF AMOUNTS DUE FROM INSURANCE THE SYSTEM FOLLOWS ESTABLISHED

GUIDELINES FOR PLACING CERTAIN PAST-DUE PATIENT BALANCES WITH COLLECTION

AGENCIES SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS ON COLLECTION

EFFORTS AS DETERMINED BY THE SYSTEM

PART IITI LINE 8.

MEDICARE ALLOWABLE COSTS ARE CALCULATED USING A COST~TO-CHARGE RATIO

CCF HAS USED THE CHA METHODOLOGY FOR REPORTING COMMUNITY BENEFIT SINCE

2004 AS IT WAS THE EMERGING COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORTING STANDARD AND NOW

HAS BEEN ADOPTED IN LARGE PART BY THE IRS FOR 990 REPORTING PURPOSES, THE

CHA MODEL DOES NOT INCLUDE MEDICARE SHORTFALL AS COMMUNITY BENEFIT

PART III LINE 9B:

YES

CLEVELAND CLINIC HAS A WRITTEN DEBT COLLECTION POLICY, IT IS OUR
Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part 1, lines 3c, 8a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any

CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other health
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organizatlon, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

POLICY NOT TO PURSUE COLLECTION PRACTICES AGAINST PATIENTS KNOWN TO

QUALIFY FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS OR BEFORE REASONABLE EFFORTS

HAVE BEEN MADE TO MAKE SUCH DETERMINATION, IN CERTAIN CASES IT MAY NOT BE

EASILY DETERMINED WHETHER OR NOT A PATIENT QUALIFIES FOR FINANCIAL

ASSISTANCE; HOWEVER, IF AFTER COLLECTION PRACTICES HAVE BEGUN IT LATER

BECOMES KNOWN THAT A PATIENT QUALIFIES THE COLLECTION EFFORTS CEASE

ADDITIONALLY, OUR EXTERNAL THIRD-PARTY (COLLECTION) AGENCIES ARE TRAINED

ON OUR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY AND ASSIST A PATIENT IN NEED BY

SUPPLYING OUR APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE,

PART IIT LINE 5 6 & 7

IN ADDITION TO THE MEDICARE PROGRAMS REFLECTED IN THE COST REPORTS CCF

INCURS COSTS AND RECEIVES REIMBURSEMENT FOR OTHER MEDICARE ELIGIBLE

SERVICES, THE TOTAL REVENUE RECEIVED AND COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE

ADDITIONAL MEDICARE SERVICES ARE $650 730 2397 AND $961 492 542

RESPECTIVELY, THIS RESULTS IN ADDITIONAL MEDICARE SHORTFALL OF

$310,762,245 WHICH, NETTED WITH THE SURPLUS OF $2,907,587 AS REPORTED

ON THE COST REPORTS BRINGS THE TOTAL MEDICARE SHORTFALL TO

632100 11-02-16
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2016 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 10
lemental Information

Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part 1, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part || and Part I1l, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any
CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

§ Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or other health
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

$307,854 661

PART VI, LINE 2:

IN ADDITION TO THE CHNA PROCESS CCF'S INSTITUTES AND DEPARTMENTS MAY
GATHER ANALYZE, AND REVIEW RELEVANT HEALTH STATISTICS AND DEMOGRAPHIC
DATA FOR THE COMMUNITY FOR THAT PARTICULAR FACILITY'S COMMUNITY. THE DATA
IS USED TO EVALUATE POTENTIAL NEW OR REVISED HEALTH SERVICES THAT CCF MAY

PROVIDE TO PARTICULAR GROUPS OF PATIENTS WITHIN THE COMMUNITIES IT SERVES.

PART VI, LINE 3:
INFORMING THE PUBLIC THAT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IS AVAILABLE IS AN
IMPORTANT ELEMENT OF OUR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AND THE CLEVELAND
CLINIC CONTINUOUSLY STRIVES TO IMPROVE ITS COMMUNICATIONS WITH PATIENTS ON
THE AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, INFORMATION ABOUT THE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY IS POSTED ON THE CLEVELAND CLINIC WEBSITE,

ALL PATIENT BILLS INCLUDE DETAILED INFORMATION REGARDING THE FINANCIAL

ASSISTANCE POLICY AND AN INSERT DESCRIBING THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
632100 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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rmation

Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the arganization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any
CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or other health
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. if applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

PROGRAM IS INCLUDED WITH BILLING STATEMENTS, A PLAIN LANGUAGE SUMMARY OF
THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY IS AVAILABLE THROUGHOUT CCF, INCLUDING IN
PATIENT REGISTRATION AREAS ONLINE AND WITH FINANCIAL COUNSELORS WHO ARE
PRESENT ON-SITE AT EACH CLEVELAND CLINIC HOSPITAL AND OHIO FAMILY HEALTH
CENTER TO ASSIST PATIENTS IN QUALIFYING FOR GOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE
PROGRAMS AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, A DESCRIPTION OF THE POLICY IS ALSO
INCLUDED IN OUR INSURANCE AND BILLING INFORMATION PATIENT BROCHURE, WHICH

IS AVAILABLE AT REGISTRATION DESKS AND WITH FINANCIAL COUNSELORS,

PART VI, LINE 4:

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC'S COMMUNITY IS DEFINED BY BOTH MISSION AND GEOGRAPHY.
THE GEOGRAPHIC COMMUNITY IS DEFINED BY THE HOSPITAL FACILITY'S IMMEDIATELY
CONTIGUOUS AREAS AS WELL AS THE BROADER SURROUNDING COUNTIES/REGIONS FROM
WHICH THE MAJORITY OF DISCHARGED INPATIENTS RESIDE, ADDITIONALLY, THE
COMMUNITY INCLUDES PATIENTS WHO REQUIRE THE EXPERTISE AND SPECIALIZED
SERVICES OF THE CLEVELAND CLINIC, THE COMMUNITY FOR MEDICAL RESEARCH AND

EDUCATION IS THE PUBLIC AT LARGE
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lemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part IIl, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any

CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization's financial
assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or other health
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

PART VI, LINE 5:

ONE OF THE HALLMARKS OF A CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION IS THAT THE ORGANIZATION

SERVES A BROAD, INDEFINITE CHARITABLE CLASS. ONE OF THE KEY INDICATORS

THAT AN ORGANIZATION SERVES THE BROADER COMMUNITY IS CONTROL OF THE

ORGANIZATION BY INDEPENDENT COMMUNITY LEADERS, CCF AND ITS NORTHEAST OHIO

REGIONAL HOSPITAL GOVERNING BOARDS ARE MADE UP OF MEMBERS OF THE COMMUNITY

WHO DIRECT AND GUIDE MANAGEMENT IN CARRYING OUT THE MISSION OF CCF AND ITS

SUBORDINATES, TRUSTEES/DIRECTORS ARE SELECTED ON THE BASIS OF THEIR

EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE IN A VARIETY OF AREAS BENEFICIAL TO THE CLEVELAND

CLINIC AND THE HEALTH SYSTEM AND ARE NOT COMPENSATED FOR THEIR SERVICES,

ANOTHER HALLMARK OF A CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION IS THAT SURPLUS FUNDS ARE

USED TO FURTHER CHARITABLE PURPOSES AND ACTIVITIES, SURPLUS FUNDS FOR

CCF AND ITS SUBORDINATES ARE REINVESTED AND USED TO CARRY OUT THE

ORGANIZATION'S EXEMPT MISSION -- PATIENT CARE, RESEARCH, AND EDUCATION

PART VI LINE 6:

CLEVELAND CLINIC IS THE PARENT ORGANIZATION OF THE HEALTH SYSTEM, AN
632100 11-02-16 Schedule H (Form 990) 2016
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[Part VI| Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

2

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3¢, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to any

CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may be billed
for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the organization’s financial
assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or other health
care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community board, use of surplus
funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the organization
and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report, If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files a
community benefit report.

INTEGRATED HEALTH SYSTEM CONSISTING OF AN ACADEMIC MEDICAL CENTER, MEDICAL

SCHOOL, COMMUNITY HOSPITALS, FAMILY HEALTH CENTERS, VARIOUS ANCILLARY

SERVICES, AND A LARGE GROUP OF EMPLOYED PHYSICIANS AND PHYSICIAN

RESEARCHERS,
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585 2
on

KNOWLEDGE, AWARENESS AND QUALITY OF PATIENT CARE AND RESEARCH THROUGH

EDUCATION,

THE INDIGENT AID LISTED IS PERFORMED IN FURTHERANCE OF THE CLEVELAND
CLINIC FOUNDATION'S MISSION TO PROVIDE BETTER CARE OF THE SICK AND THE

INVESTIGATION INTO THEIR PROBLEMS.

Schedule [ (Form 990)
632291
04-01-16

101
10291030 352590 CCF990 2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990_1



SCHEDULE J Compensation Information

OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) For ainO e plo Highest
p Comp if the g rm IV, line 23.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Internal Aevenue Service Information andits i Inspection
Name of the organ Employer
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
ons om
Yes No
1a Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form 990,
Part VI, Se  nA, line 1a. Complete Part !ll to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
First-c or charter travel (x ] Housing allowance or residence for personal use
Travel for companions Payments for business use of personal residence
@ Tax indemnification and gross-up payments Health or social club dues or initiation fees
Discretionary spending account D Personal services (such as, maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of alf of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part Il to explain b X
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all directors,
trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line 1a? B 2 X
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the organization's
CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a related organization to
establi on of the CEO/Executive Director, but expl
IZ] C ommlttee
EI end o ion consultant
[:] 990 h zations ensation committee
4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? . 4a X
b Participate in, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? a X
¢ Participate in, or receive payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement? . - 4c X
If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part Ill.
Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the revenues of:
a The organization? . 5a
b Any related organization? . 5b X
If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part Il
6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any compensation
contingent on the net earnings of:
a The organization? 6a X
b Any related organization? 6b X
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part Ill.
7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed payments
not described on lines 5 and 67 If "Yes," describe in Part Il 7 X
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VI, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject to the
initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe in Part Il 8 X
9 If "Yes" on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
section 9

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

632111 09-09-16

10291030 352590 CCF990

102

Schedule J {Form 990) 2016

2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1
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SCHEDULE L Transactions With Interested Persons OME No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) P> Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a,
28b, or 28¢, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b.

Department of the Treasury ! P Attach to Form 990 or Iform 990-'EZ.. Open To Public
Internal Revenua Service P> Information about Schedule L (Form 990 or 890-EZ) and its Instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of Employer

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
(section 501(c)(8), section 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations
if the on Form 990 Part or or Form Part V 40b.
) - b) Relationship between disqualified " : Corrected?
(a) Name of disqualified person () persrlm ;nd organizatic?n (c) Description of transaction Yes No

2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under
section 4958 NV
> $

3 Enter the amount of tax, if any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization

[Partll] Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or Form 990, Part IV, line 26; or if the organization

an amount on Form line or 22
(a) Name of Relationship  (c) Purpose (d’f boan 1o.of (e) Original (f) Balance due (g)In Bf, bon (i) Written
interested person organization of loan orgmisation?  PYincipal amount default?  cgmmi agreement?
To From Yes No Yes No Yes No
D, COSGROVE JEO/PRES [NSURANC X 229,247, 6,571,698, X X X
Total 6 571 698,
or ce
if answered "Yes" on Form IV line 27
(a) Name of interested person {b) Relationship between {c) Amount of (d) Type of (e) Purpose of
interested person and assistance assistance assistance
the organization
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2016

SEE PART V FOR CONTINUATIONS
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10291030 352590 CCF990

6 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION

34-0714585

ness ons
if ization answered "Yes" on Form or 28c
(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between interested (c) Amount of (d) Description of s
person and the organization transaction transaction
Yes No
KATHERINE MCHUGH 'AMILY MEMBER OF LI 37,605, SMPLOYMENT X
I Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions).

SCHEDULE L, PART II, LOANS TO AND FROM INTERESTED PERSONS:
(A) NAME OF PERSON: D, COSGROVE
(B) RELATIONSHIP WITH ORGANIZATION: CEO/PRESIDENT

(C) PURPOSE OF LOAN: INSURANCE PREMIUM PAYMENTS TREATED AS A LOAN

SCH L, PART IV, BUSINESS TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING INTERESTED PERSONS:
(A) NAME OF PERSON: KATHERINE MCHUGH

(B) RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN INTERESTED PERSON AND ORGANIZATION:

FAMILY MEMBER OF LINDA MCHUGH, CCF OFFICER

(C) AMOUNT OF TRANSACTION § 37,605

(D) DESCRIPTION OF TRANSACTION: EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH CCF

(E) SHARING OF ORGANIZATION REVENUES? = NO

632132 10-24-16
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SCHEDULEM Noncash Contributions OME No. 1546-0047
(Form 990)

» Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 980, Part [V, lines 29 or 30.

Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990. Open To Public
Internal Revenue Service > about Schedule M at Inspection
organ number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585
(a) (b) (c)
Check if Number of Noncash contribution Method of determining
applicable contributions or amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts
ftems contribited Farm 990. Part VL. line 1a
1 Art-Works of art i X 20 1,018,746,
2  Art- Historical treasures
3 Art- Fractional interests o
4 Books and publications . . .. . .. X 31,344, COMPARABLE GOODS
5 Clothing and household goods . . ... ... X 318,429, COMPARABLE GOODS
6 Carsandothervehicles .= . ... . X 1 29,935,
7 Boatsandplanes .
8 Intellectual property L
9 Securities - Publicly traded e . X 154 7,736,844, HIGH/LOW
10 Securities - Closely held stock . .
11 Securities - Partnership, LLC, or

trust interests .
12 Securities - Miscellaneous .. . . ...
13 Qualified conservation contribution -

Historic structures .
14 Qualified conservation contribution - Other
15 Real estate - Residential = . ... X 1 210,000,
16 Real estate - Commercial
17 Real estate - Other
18 Collectibles . ... ... .
19 Food inventory L X 6 8,192
20 Drugs and medical supplies
21 Taxidermy
22 Historical artifacts
23 Scientific specimens
24 Archeological artifacts

25 Other P> ( MEDICAL EQUIP o X 2 22,355 COMPARABLE GOOD
26 Other P> ( EVENT TICKETS X S 1,472, T
27 Other P
28 Other »
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions
for which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement 29 11
Yes
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through 28, that it
must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required to be used for
exempt purposes for the entire holding period? .. .. . . .. ... ... L 30a X
b If "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part Il.
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions? o 31 X
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
contributions? ... .. .. R . L . ... 32a X
b If "Yes," describe in Part Il.
33 If the organization didn't report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a} is checked,
describe in Part 1l
LHA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule M (Form 990} (2016)
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THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

Iemental Information. provide the information required by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether the organization
is reporting in Part |, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete
this part for any additional information.

SCHEDULE M LINE 32B:
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION WILL AT TIMES HIRE INDEPENDENT THIRD
PARTIES TO SELL CERTAIN NON-CASH CONTRIBUTIONS SUCH AS AUCTION ITEMS OR

REAL ESTATE

632142 08-23-16 Schedule M (Form 990) (2016)
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OMB No 1545-0047

SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. .
Department of the Treasury P> Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service
Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

PART III - STATEMENT OF PROGRAM SERVICE ACCOMPLISHMENTS

CLEVELAND CLINIC WAS ESTABLISHED IN 1921 WITH THE SAME MISSION THAT
CONTINUES TODAY: BETTER CARE FOR THE SICK INVESTIGATION OF THEIR
PROBLEMS, AND FURTHER EDUCATION OF THOSE WHO SERVE, CONSISTENT WITH
ITS TRIPARTITE MISSION CLEVELAND CLINIC'S PRIMARY PROGRAM SERVICES ARE
FOCUSED ON PATIENT CARE PROVIDED ON A CHARITABLE BASIS, MEDICAL
RESEARCH, AND EDUCATION OF BOTH MEDICAL PROFESSIONALS AND THE
COMMUNITY, THE FOUNDERS RECOGNIZED THAT IT IS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF
PATIENTS TO POOL THE TALENTS OF MEDICAL SPECIALISTS TO DEVELOP TEACH
AND APPLY THE BEST MEDICAL TECHNIQUES.

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT INTENDED TO IDENTIFY ALL THE ACTIVITIES BY WHICH
CLEVELAND CLINIC FULFILLS ITS CHARITABLE PURPOSES BUT RATHER IS A
SUMMARY OF ITS PRIMARY PROGRAM SERVICES AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE
COMMUNITY

CLEVELAND CLINIC IS THE PARENT OF THE CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM
AND REPORTS COMMUNITY BENEFIT ON A SYSTEM-WIDE BASIS, THEREFORE THE
COMMUNITY BENEFIT NUMBERS REPORTED HERE ARE FOR THE HEALTH SYSTEM, THE
COMMUNITY BENEFIT THAT THE CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM PROVIDES
INCLUDES PATIENT CARE PROVIDED ON A CHARITABLE BASIS, RESEARCH
EDUCATION MEDICAID SHORTFALL, SUBSIDIZED HEALTH SERVICES, AND
COMMUNITY OUTREACH PROGRAMS

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM DEFINES AND MEASURES COMMUNITY
BENEFIT (INCLUDING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE) USING THE CATHOLIC HEALTH
ASSOCIATION ("CHA") COMMUNITY BENEFIT MODEL, WHICH RECOMMENDS REPORTING
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ON A COST BASIS, USING THIS MODEL IN 2016
CLEVELAND CLINIC AND ITS AFFILIATES PROVIDED $808.7 MILLION IN BENEFITS

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2016)
632211 08-25-16
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Schedule O 990 or
Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

TO THE COMMUNITIES WE SERVE,

THE CURRENT COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORT IS AVAILABLE ON OUR WEBSITE AT
CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG. (COMMUNITY BENEFIT AMOUNTS REPORTED IN THIS
PROGRAM SERVICE STATEMENT REFER TO OUR 2016 COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS

BASED ON THE CHA REPORTING METHODOLOGY, SEE FORM 990, SCHEDULE H FOR A

RECONCILIATION OF SCHEDULE H TO COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORTING, )

I. PATIENT CARE

CLEVELAND CLINIC IS DEDICATED TO THE COMMUNITIES WE SERVE, STRIVING TO
PROVIDE COMPASSIONATE HIGH QUALITY HEALTHCARE TO ALL WHO NEED IT AND
SUPPORTING PROGRAMS AND INITIATIVES THAT IMPROVE THE HEALTH AND
WELL-BEING OF OUR COMMUNITIES. THROUGH OUR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
EFFORTS AND AS A LEADING MEDICAID PROVIDER IN OHIO WE PROVIDE
HEALTHCARE TO THOSE WHO OTHERWISE COULD NOT AFFORD IT,

DURING 2016 CLEVELAND CLINIC RECORDED 1,274 TOTAL STAFFED BEDS

153,716 EMERGENCY VISITS 92 188 SURGICAL CASES 52,424 ADMISSIONS, AND
MORE THAN 6,0 MILLION TOTAL CLINIC VISITS. IT IS THE POLICY OF
CLEVELAND CLINIC TO TREAT ALL PATIENTS WITH COMPASSION DIGNITY AND
RESPECT, REGARDLESS OF THEIR RACE CREED OR ABILITY TO PAY.

CLEVELAND CLINIC'S PATIENT CARE SERVICES ARE PROVIDED VIA
PATIENT-ORIENTED INSTITUTES, WHICH ARE STRUCTURED ON THE BASIS OF ORGAN
SYSTEM OR DISEASE, THE INSTITUTES FACILITATE A MULTIDISCIPLINARY
APPROACH AND ARE DESIGNED TO ENHANCE CONVENIENCE FOR PATIENTS AND THE
EXCHANGE OF KNOWLEDGE RESEARCH AND EDUCATIONAL COLLABORATION FOR
BETTER PATIENT OUTCOMES, SOME OF THE INSTITUTES ARE: ANESTHESIOLOGY,
COLE EYE, DIGESTIVE DISEASE, EMERGENCY SERVICES ENDOCRINOLOGY &
METABOLISM, GLICKMAN UROLOGICAL & KIDNEY, HEAD & NECK MILLER FAMILY

HEART & VASCULAR IMAGING MEDICINE NEUROLOGICAL NURSING OB/GYN &

632212 08-25-16 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2016)
120
10291030 352590 CCF990 2016.04030 THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDA CCF990 1



2

Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

WOMEN'S HEALTH ORTHOPAEDIC & RHEUMATOLOGY, PATHOLOGY & LABORATORY
MEDICINE PEDIATRIC & CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL, RESPIRATORY, TAUSSIG CANCER

AND WELLNESS

NOTABLE ACHIEVEMENTS

CLEVELAND CLINIC WAS AGAIN RECOGNIZED FOR ITS QUALITY OF CARE IN U,S
NEWS & WORLD REPORT'S PRESTIGIOUS ANNUAL “AMERICA'S BEST HOSPITALS"
SURVEY IN 2016. OVERALL, CLEVELAND CLINIC WAS RANKED 2ND AMONG THE
NATION'S MORE THAN 5 000 HOSPITALS, CLEVELAND CLINIC WAS RANKED
AMERICA'S NUMBER ONE CENTER FOR CARDIAC CARE FOR THE 22ND YEAR IN A
ROW, UROLOGY NEPHROLOGY, AND GASTROENTEROLOGY PROGRAMS WERE ALL

RANKED SECOND IN THE NATION

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY ASSISTS POOR AND
INDIGENT PATIENTS BY PROVIDING FREE CARE FOR MEDICALLY NECESSARY
SERVICES TO UNINSURED PATIENTS WITH INCOMES UP TO 250 PERCENT OF THE
FEDERAL POVERTY LEVEL AND ALSO OFFERS DISCOUNTS ON MEDICALLY NECESSARY
SERVICES FOR UNINSURED PATIENTS WHOSE INCOME IS UP TO 400 PERCENT OF
THE POVERTY LEVEL

PATIENTS WITH EXCEPTIONAL CIRCUMSTANCES MAY ALSO BE ELIGIBLE FOR
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, THIS POLICY IS DESIGNED TO PREVENT MEDICAL BILLS
FROM CAUSING A PATIENT OR FAMILY UNDUE FINANCIAL HARDSHIP

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM PROVIDED FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AT A

COST OF $86,2 MILLION IN 2016,

II. RESEARCH

CLEVELAND CLINIC'S MISSION INCLUDES CONDUCTING RESEARCH TO ADVANCE

632212 08-25-16 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2016)
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o} 990 or 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

BIOMEDICAL SCIENCE TO ULTIMATELY IMPROVE PATIENT CARE, PREVENT DISEASE,
AND FIND CURES FOR MEDICAL ISSUES. CLEVELAND CLINIC'S LERNER RESEARCH
INSTITUTE (“LRI") IS ITS RESEARCH INSTITUTE LOCATED ON THE MAIN CAMPUS
AND HOME TO A COMPLETE SPECTRUM OF LABORATORY- TRANSLATIONAL- AND
CLINICAL-BASED RESEARCH

LRI HAS APPROXIMATELY 175 FACULTY-LEVEL SCIENTISTS ORGANIZED IN THE
FOLLOWING DEPARTMENTS: BIOMEDICAL ENGINEERING CANCER BIOLOGY, CELLULAR
AND MOLECULAR MEDICINE, GENOMIC MEDICINE IMMUNOLOGY, MOLECULAR
CARDIOLOGY NEUROSCIENCES, OPHTHALMIC RESEARCH PATHOBIOLOGY,
QUANTITATIVE HEALTH SCIENCES, STEM CELL BIOLOGY AND REGENERATIVE
MEDICINE, AND TRANSLATIONAL HEMATOLOGY AND ONCOLOGY RESEARCH,

LRI IS ONE OF THE LEADING NIH-FUNDED RESEARCH INSTITUTES IN THE UNITED
STATES AND HAS SPEARHEADED NUMEROUS ADVANCES IN THE DIAGNOSIS AND
TREATMENT OF COMPLEX MEDICAL PROBLEMS, SCIENTISTS AND THEIR TEAMS ARE
PURSUING A WIDE RANGE OF BIOMEDICAL QUESTIONS AT LRI INCLUDING THOSE
RELATED TO CARDIOVASCULAR, CANCER, NEUROLOGICAL MUSCULOSKELETAL, AND
METABOLIC DISEASES, ALTOGETHER, NEARLY 1 500 SCIENTISTS AND SUPPORT
PERSONNEL WORK AT LRI, THIS INCLUDES APPROXIMATELY 240 RESEARCH
FELLOWS, 150 GRADUATE STUDENTS AND 200 UNDERGRADUATE STUDENTS,

IN ADDITION TO BASIC PRE-CLINICAL RESEARCH, THE CLEVELAND CLINIC AND
ITS EMPLOYED PHYSICIANS PARTICIPATE OR ARE PRIMARY INVESTIGATORS IN
MANY CLINICAL TRIALS, 1IN 2016 CLEVELAND CLINIC WAS INVOLVED IN
APPROXIMATELY 5 500 ACTIVE HUMAN SUBJECTS' RESEARCH STUDIES. THE
ONGOING COLLABORATION BETWEEN PHYSICIAN INVESTIGATORS AND STUDY
VOLUNTEERS IS CENTRAL TO TESTING THE SAFETY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF DRUGS
AND MEDICAL PROCEDURES AND HELPS TO SET THE STANDARDS FOR PATIENT CARE
RESEARCH AT CLEVELAND CLINIC IS FUNDED BY EXTERNAL SOURCES SUCH AS

FEDERAL GRANTS BUT IS ALSO SUBSTANTIALLY SUPPORTED BY THE CLINIC'S OWN
632212 08-25-16 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2016)
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Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

INTERNAL RESOURCES, 1IN 2016 CLEVELAND CLINIC PROVIDED COMMUNITY
BENEFIT IN RESEARCH OF $212,5 MILLION WHICH INCLUDED
EXTERNALLY-SPONSORED FUNDING OF $148,5 MILLION,

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC'S RESEARCH ACTIVITIES ARE INTENDED TO IMPROVE
PATIENT CARE AND THE HEALTH OF THE PUBLIC AT LARGE BY PROVIDING THE
LATEST ADVANCES IN MEDICINE DIRECTLY TO PATIENTS AND BY REFINING THE
PRACTICE OF MEDICINE THROUGH THE DEVELOPMENT AND PROMULGATION OF NEW

TECHNIQUES, DEVICES AND TREATMENT PROTOCOLS.

III. EDUCATION

ON ITS MAIN CAMPUS, CLEVELAND CLINIC OPERATES A MEDICAL SCHOOL AND
RELATED RESEARCH INSTITUTE, THE PRIMARY FOCUS OF CLEVELAND CLINIC
LERNER COLLEGE OF MEDICINE OF CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNIVERSITY (THE
"LERNER COLLEGE OF MEDICINE") IS THE TEACHING AND TRAINING OF MEDICAL
STUDENTS WHO HAVE A PARTICULAR INTEREST IN RESEARCH, MANY CLEVELAND
CLINIC PHYSICIANS SERVE AS FACULTY FOR THE LERNER COLLEGE OF MEDICINE,
FURTHERING THE INTEGRATION OF CLINICAL CARE WITH RESEARCH AND
EDUCATION, THE LERNER COLLEGE OF MEDICINE CURRENTLY PROVIDES ALL
STUDENTS WITH FULL TUITION SCHOLARSHIPS,

IN ADDITION TO TRAINING THIS NATION'S FUTURE DOCTORS CLEVELAND CLINIC
SPONSORS A WIDE RANGE OF HIGH QUALITY MEDICAL EDUCATION TRAINING
THROUGH ITS EDUCATION INSTITUTE INCLUDING ACCREDITED TRAINING PROGRAMS
FOR NURSES AND HEALTH SCIENCE PROFESSIONALS,

CLEVELAND CLINIC DEVOTES SUBSTANTIAL RESOURCES TO EDUCATION PROGRAMS,
WHICH IN 2016, PROVIDED A NET COMMUNITY BENEFIT OF $272.3 MILLION,
THESE EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES ENSURE RESIDENTS AND PATIENTS IN ALL OF
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC'S COMMUNITIES ARE RECEIVING THE HIGHEST STANDARD
OF MEDICAL CARE AND HAVE TRAINED HEALTH PROFESSIONALS TO CARE FOR THEM
632212 08-25-16 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2016)
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Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

IN THE FUTURE, SOME OF THESE EDUCATION PROGRAMS INCLUDE:

-GRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION: CLEVELAND CLINIC MAINTAINS ONE OF THE
LARGEST GRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS IN THE COUNTRY IN 2016,
1 125 RESIDENTS AND FELLOWS TRAINED IN 75 ACCREDITED TRAINING PROGRAMS
APPROVED BY THE ACCREDITATION COUNCIL FOR GRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION
(ACGME) INCLUDING 130 ADVANCED FELLOWS IN 80 FELLOWSHIP PROGRAMS
LERNER COLLEGE OF MEDICINE: SINCE ITS INCEPTION IN MAY 2002 THE
CLEVELAND CLINIC LERNER COLLEGE OF MEDICINE OF CASE WESTERN RESERVE
UNIVERSITY HAS LINKED ONE OF THE NATION'S TOP HOSPITALS WITH ONE OF THE
NATION'S LEADING RESEARCH UNIVERSITIES, THERE WERE MORE THAN 1,700
APPLICANTS FOR 32 POSITIONS FOR THE 2016-17 ACADEMIC YEAR, THE
PROGRAM'S STUDENTS HAVE MATCHED AT SOME OF THE MOST PRESTIGIOUS
HOSPITALS THROUGHOUT THE UNITED STATES AND HAVE CONTRIBUTED 97
PUBLICATIONS TO THE WORLD'S STORE OF SCIENTIFIC KNOWLEDGE BASED ON 2016
CALENDAR YEAR (WHICH INCLUDES PUBLISHED ARTICLES AND ABSTRACT
SUBMISSIONS), AND 60 STUDENTS PARTICIPATED IN LOCAL AND NATIONAL
MEETINGS WITH PRESENTATIONS AND POSTERS,

-VISITING MEDICAL STUDENTS: VISITING MEDICAL STUDENT EDUCATION
REPRESENTS A MAJOR ACADEMIC COMMITMENT BY CLEVELAND CLINIC, 1IN 2016
557 MEDICAL STUDENTS FROM 237 MEDICAL SCHOOLS AROUND THE WORLD ROTATED
THROUGH CLEVELAND CLINIC

CENTER FOR CONTINUING EDUCATION: CLEVELAND CLINIC MAINTAINS ONE OF THE
LARGEST CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION (CME) PROGRAMS IN THE COUNTRY AND
ENJOYS THE HIGHEST ACCME RANKING: "ACCREDITATION WITH COMMENDATION"

IN 2016, THE CENTER FOR CONTINUING EDUCATION CERTIFIED 1,659 CME
ACTIVITIES THAT OFFERED OVER 10,000 CME CREDITS TO 228 261
PARTICIPANTS, OF THAT NUMBER, 1,023 WERE LIVE COURSES THAT ATTRACTED

81 407 PARTICIPANTS, CLEVELAND CLINIC IS ONE OF THE LARGEST PROVIDERS
632212 08-25-16 Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2016)
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Name of the organization Employer identification number
THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION 34-0714585

OF ONLINE CME AMONG THE NATION'S ACADEMIC MEDICAL CENTERS, THE
CENTER'S WEBSITE HAD 397 ACTIVITIES THAT ATTRACTED 116,541 ACTIVITY
VIEWERS, JOURNAL CME CONTINUES TO REACH A LARGE NUMBER OF LEARNERS
WITH THE CLEVELAND CLINIC JOURNAL OF MEDICINE (CCJM) PARTICIPANTS
RECEIVING MORE THAN 83 000 CERTIFICATES, 1IN 2016 THE CENTER ISSUED
202 443 CME CERTIFICATES FOR ALL ACTIVITIES COMBINED

-THE CCJM ENJOYED A CIRCULATION OF MORE THAN 108 000 AND RANKED NO. 1
IN READERSHIP AMONG JOURNALS DIRECTED TO OFFICE-BASED INTERNISTS AND
CARDIOLOGISTS. EACH YEAR, THE PRINT AND ONLINE VERSIONS ARE READ OR
ACCESSED BY APPROXIMATELY 2 MILLION PEOPLE AROUND THE WORLD, IN 2016
THE CCJM WEBSITE RECORDED 2 240 297 PAGE VIEWS FROM 664,548 UNIQUE
VISITCORS,

-CENTER FOR HEALTH SCIENCES EDUCATION: CLEVELAND CLINIC IS A MAJOR
EDUCATION AND TRAINING SITE FOR A NUMBER OF HEALTH SCIENCE STUDENTS
FROM VARIOUS ACADEMIC PROGRAMS THROUGHOUT THE REGION, THE CLEVELAND
CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM CURRENTLY OFFERS 14 IN-HOUSE ALLIED HEALTH
PROGRAMS AND HAS 54 AFFILIATED PROGRAMS WITH REGIONAL ACADEMIC
INSTITUTIONS, IN 2016, CLEVELAND CLINIC HOSTED MORE THAN 2,500
CLINICAL ROTATIONS FOR HEALTH SCIENCE STUDENTS

-CENTER FOR INTERNATIONAL MEDICAL EDUCATION: THIS CENTER IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR COORDINATING CLEVELAND CLINIC'S INTERNATIONAL EDUCATIONAL
INITIATIVES AND FOR ENSURING THE PROVISION OF HIGH QUALITY EDUCATIONAL
EXPERIENCES FOR THE GLOBAL MEDICAL COMMUNITY, 1IN 2016 816
INTERNATIONAL PHYSICIANS AND MEDICAL STUDENTS TRAVELED TO CLEVELAND
CLINIC TO PARTICIPATE IN OBSERVERSHIPS; 355 PHYSICIANS ATTENDED
SYMPOSIA HELD AT CLEVELAND CLINIC ON PATIENT EXPERIENCE, CARDIOLOGY,
COLORECTAL SURGERY SPINE SURGERY GASTROENTEROLQOGY, LEUKEMIA, UROLOGY,
CONGENITAL HEART DISEASE, BREAST CANCER, AND OBESITY; AND OUR OWN
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STAFF TRAVELED TO MORE THAN 16 COUNTRIES TO SHARE CLINICAL AND SURGICAL

INNOVATIONS.

IV. ADDITIONAL COMMUNITY BENEFIT

PATIENT CARE PROVIDED ON A CHARITABLE BASIS, RESEARCH AND EDUCATION
DESCRIBED ABOVE ARE INTEGRAL COMPONENTS OF THE COMMUNITY BENEFIT THE
CLEVELAND CLINIC ANNUALLY REPORTS TO THE COMMUNITY, THE OTHER

COMPONENTS OF OUR COMMUNITY BENEFIT ARE:

COMMUNITY EDUCATION

EDUCATING THE COMMUNITY HAS ALSO BEEN A PRIORITY AT CLEVELAND CLINIC.
OUR CENTER FOR CONSUMER HEALTH INFORMATION EXPANDS KNOWLEDGE THROUGH A
VARIETY OF MEDIA TO PATIENTS AND THE NORTHEAST OHIO COMMUNITY,
FOLLOWING ARE SOME OF THE PROGRAMS OFFERED DURING 2016:

-HEALTH INFORMATION RESOURCE CENTER: THE ON-CAMPUS PATIENT AND FAMILY
HEALTH AND EDUCATION CENTER IS A PLACE WHERE PATIENTS, VISITORS AND
EMPLOYEES CAN TAKE ADVANTAGE OF HEALTH INFORMATION RESOURCES. THE
CONSUMER HEALTH INFORMATION STAFF ALSO FULFILLS REQUESTS FOR HEALTH
INFORMATION MADE IN WRITING, BY EMAIL, OR BY PHONE, IN 2016, THE
CENTER FULFILLED 23 753 REQUESTS AND SERVED 10 777 PEOPLE WHO CAME INTO
THE CENTER FOR INFORMATION,

-HEALTH TALKS AND CCTV: THE CENTER FOR CONSUMER HEALTH INFORMATION
HOSTED 27 COMMUNITY HEALTH TALKS/HEALTH EXCHANGE PROGRAMS AND MANAGED
2 275 SCHEDULED CLOSED-CIRCUIT TELEVISION WEEKLY PROGRAMS AND 1 007
WEEKLY ON-DEMAND TELEVISED PROGRAMS

-INTERNET SITE: THE CENTER FOR CONSUMER HEALTH INFORMATION WEBSITE
(WWW, CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG/HEALTH) CONTINUES TO BE A SOURCE OF

INFORMATION FOR USERS AROUND THE WORLD, THE WEBSITE ALSO FEATURES LIVE
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WEBCHATS WITH A HEALTH EDUCATOR, ALLOWING THE PUBLIC TO POST QUESTIONS

AND HAVE THEM ANSWERED IN REAL TIME, WEBCHATS TAKE PLACE MONDAY

THROUGH FRIDAY, FROM $ AM TO 3:00 PM, BY THE END OF 2016, WE HELD 6,793

WEBCHATS.

MEDICAID SHORTFALL

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM IS A LEADING PROVIDER OF MEDICAID

SERVICES IN OHIO. 1IN MANY STATES, INCLUDING OHIO, MEDICAID PAYMENTS

HAVE NOT BEEN SUFFICIENT TO COVER THE COST OF TREATING MEDICAID

BENEFICIARIES, IN 2016, THE HEALTH SYSTEM'S UNPAID MEDICAID COSTS WERE

$328,5 MILLION (THIS FIGURE IS NET OF AN HCAP BENEFIT OF $3.1 MILLION),

SUBSIDIZED HEALTH SERVICES

IN ADDITION TO FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND COSTS NOT COVERED BY MEDICAID

PAYMENTS, ANOTHER CLINICAL COMMUNITY BENEFIT CATEGORY IS "SUBSIDIZED

HEALTH SERVICES," THESE SERVICES YIELD LOW OR NEGATIVE MARGINS BUT ARE

NEEDED IN THE COMMUNITY, CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM PROVIDED

SUBSIDIZED HEALTH SERVICES IN 2016 AT A COST OF $19,6 MILLION,

COMMUNITY OUTREACH PROGRAMS

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC HEALTH SYSTEM IS ACTIVELY ENGAGED IN A BROAD ARRAY

OF COMMUNITY OUTREACH PROGRAMS, PROVIDING OR CONTRIBUTING TO MORE THAN

300 SUCH PROGRAMS IN 2016 FOR A TOTAL NET COMMUNITY BENEFIT OF $38.1

MILLION, THESE PROGRAMS ARE DESIGNED TO SERVE THE VULNERABLE AND

AT-RISK POPULATIONS IN OUR COMMUNITIES., OUR WELL-ESTABLISHED OUTREACH

PROGRAMS RANGE FROM FREE WELLNESS INITIATIVES, HEALTH SCREENINGS,

CLINICAL SERVICES, AND EDUCATION TO ENROLLMENT ASSISTANCE FOR

GOVERNMENT-FUNDED HEALTH PROGRAMS,
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OUTREACH PROGRAMS ADDRESS DOCUMENTED HEALTH NEEDS OF OUR COMMUNITIES
AND FALL INTO THREE MAIN CATEGORIES: COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES CASH
AND IN-KIND DONATIONS, AND COMMUNITY BUILDING, 1IN 2016, SOME
HIGHLIGHTS INCLUDED:

-WELLNESS INITIATIVES IN THE AREAS OF DISEASE/INJURY PREVENTION AND
BEHAVIORAL CHANGE, INCLUDING TOBACCO CESSATION, NUTRITION IMPROVEMENT
EXERCISE HELP WITH SUBSTANCE ABUSE CHILD SAFETY, TEEN PARENTING AND
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, PROGRAMS WERE PROVIDED TO SCHOOLS, FAITH-BASED
ORGANIZATIONS COMMUNITY CENTERS, COLLABORATING CITIES AND COUNTIES
-HEALTH FAIRS PROVIDED THOUSANDS OF PEQOPLE WITH FREE SCREENINGS., THE
CLEVELAND CLINIC MINORITY MEN'S HEALTH FAIR, CELEBRATING SISTERHOOD

AND NEIGHBORHOOD FAIRS EDUCATED COMMUNITY MEMBERS ON THE BENEFITS OF
PREVENTATIVE CARE,

~CLEVELAND CLINIC PROVIDED NO-COST CLINICAL CARE TO UNDER- AND
UNINSURED FAMILIES AT COMMUNITY SITES INCLUDING LANGSTON HUGHES HEALTH
& EDUCATION CENTER AND THE PEDIATRIC MOBILE UNIT WHICH PROVIDED
WELLNESS SERVICES TO OUR COMMUNITIES, 1IN ADDITION LABORATORY AND
VISION SERVICES WERE DONATED TO CLEVELAND-AREA ORGANIZATIONS,
-COMMUNITY CLASSES AND INTERACTIVE WEBCHATS OFFERED HEALTH EDUCATION IN
THE AREAS OF HEART DISEASE STROKE, CANCER, DIABETES, ASTHMA AND BRAIN
HEALTH, OUR HOSPITALS AND FAMILY HEALTH CENTERS PROVIDED CLASSES FOR
HEALTH SENIOR AND YOUTH LIFESTYLES

-LET'S MOVE IT INITIATIVE CONNECTED RESIDENTS WITH LOCAL RESOURCES IN A
COLLABORATIVE EFFORT TO STRENGTHEN COMMUNITIES THROUGH WELLNESS
ACTIVITIES, ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT AND CAREER PREPAREDNESS

-COMMUNITY FARMERS MARKETS URBAN GARDENS, AND A MOBILE FOOD PANTRY

PROVIDED ACCESS TO FRESH LOCAL PRODUCTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAMS
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V. CONCLUSION

THE PURPOSE OF THE CLEVELAND CLINIC IS TO BENEFIT HUMANITY THROUGH THE
EFFICIENT, EFFECTIVE AND ETHICAL PRACTICE OF MEDICINE, BY ADVANCING
SCIENTIFIC INVESTIGATION AND MEDICAL EDUCATION, BY MAINTAINING THE
HIGHEST STANDARDS OF QUALITY AND BY FOSTERING CREATIVITY AND

INNOVATION,

FORM 990, PART V LINE 4B, LIST OF FOREIGN COUNTRIES:
CANADA CAYMAN ISLANDS GREECE, TURKEY,

LUXEMBOURG SOUTH KOREA UNITED KINGDOM, SAUDI ARABIA
GERMANY IRELAND, BELGIUM, ITALY,

ISRAEL SWEDEN

FORM 990, PART VI SECTION A LINE 2:

RONALD WEINBERG AND WILLIAM PEACOCK - BUSINESS

FORM 990 PART VI SECTION A, LINE 3:
CCF HOTEL SERVICES, LLC, A SINGLE MEMBER DISREGARDED ENTITY OF CCF HAS
ENTERED INTO A MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH INTERCONTINENTAL HOTELS

CORPORATION TO MANAGE THE TWO HOTELS OWNED BY CCF HOTEL SERVICES LLC

THE CLEVELAND CLINIC FOUNDATION ("CCF") HAS ENTERED INTO A MANAGEMENT
AGREEMENT WITH KESSLER REHABILITATION SERVICES, INC, AS PART OF A JOINT
VENTURE WITH HOSPITAL HOLDINGS CORPORATION ("SELECT MEDICAL") TO MANAGE AND

OPERATE AN INPATIENT REHABILITATION HOSPITAL FACILITY OWNED BY CCF

FORM 990 PART VI SECTION A LINE 6:

PURSUANT TO NONPROFIT CORPORATION LAW THERE CAN BE NO SHAREHOLDERS OR
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OTHER "EQUITY OWNERS" OF A NONPROFIT CORPORATION  MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL
RIGHTS ARE HELD AND EXERCISED BY THE "MEMBERS" OF THE NONPROFIT
CORPORATION. CCF IS AN OHIO NONPROFIT CORPORATION AND IT HAS BOTH MEMBERS

AND TRUSTEES, IT DOES NOT HAVE STOCKHOLDERS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A LINE 7A:

PURSUANT TO NONPROFIT CORPORATION LAW, THE "MEMBERS" OF THE CORPORATION
ELECT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (TRUSTEES), AND THE BOARD THEN CONDUCTS THE
AFFAIRS OF THE CORPORATION IN ADDITION, ONE NONPROFIT CORPORATION MAY BE
THE "MEMBER" OF ANOTHER NONPROFIT CORPORATION., CCF IS AN OHIO NONPROFIT

CORPORATION AND IT HAS MEMBERS WHO ELECT THE DIRECTORS,

FORM 990, PART VI SECTION A, LINE 7B:

PURSUANT TO NONPROFIT CORPORATION LAW CERTAIN OF THE DECISIONS OF THE
GOVERNING BODIES MUST BE APPROVED BY THE MEMBERS, FOR EXAMPLE, ANY CHANGES
TO THE ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND CODE OF REGULATIONS MUST BE APPROVED

BY A VOTE OF THE MEMBERS

FORM 990 PART VI, SECTION B LINE 11B:

THE FORM 990 IS REVIEWED BY EXPERIENCED AND QUALIFIED MEMBERS OF THE
FINANCE DIVISION TAX DEPARTMENT. PRIOR TO FILING KEY SECTIONS OF THE FORM
ARE REVIEWED WITH EXPERIENCED AND QUALIFIED MEMBERS OF THE LAW DEPARTMENT
IN ADDITION, THE ENTIRE RETURN IS ALSO REVIEWED WITH THE CFO THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE VICE CHAIRPERSON, THE PAID
PREPARER (BIG 4 PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM) CONDUCTS AN IN DEPTH REVIEW OF THE
FORM, ANNUALLY THE 990 FILING IS REVIEWED AND DISCUSSED WITH THE ENTIRE
AUDIT COMMITTEE, UPON CONFIRMATION OF SUCCESSFUL E-FILING FROM THE IRS A

COPY OF THE FINAL E-FILED RETURN WILL BE MADE AVAILABLE TO APPROPRIATE
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MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY, 1IN ADDITION TO POSTING ON GUIDESTAR, THE

FINAL E-FILED RETURN WILL BE POSTED ON THE ORGANIZATION'S WEBSITE AT

WWW , CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG,

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

CCF HAS ADOPTED A CONFLICT OF INTEREST ("COI") POLICY CONSISTENT WITH THE

MODEL IRS COI POLICY., IT APPLIES TO DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND TRUSTEES OF CCF

AND ALL ITS AFFILIATES, BOTH EXEMPT AND TAXABLE, UNDER THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS POLICY AND PROCEDURES FOR DEALING WITH CONFLICT OF INTEREST

ISSUES (THE POLICY), A TRUSTEE OR DIRECTOR WHO HAS A CONFLICT OF INTEREST

WITH RESPECT TQ A PROPOSED CONTRACT, TRANSACTION, OR ARRANGEMENT MUST

REFRAIN FROM VOTING ON ANY MATTER RELATING TO THE CONTRACT, TRANSACTION, OR

ARRANGEMENT. IN ADDITION, THE TRUSTEES, DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS MUST

ANNUALLY DISCLOSE ANY INTERESTS AS DEFINED IN THE POLICY THAT MAY BE

CONSIDERED A POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST., FAILURE TO TIMELY REPLY IS TO

BE ADDRESSED BY THE COMMITTEE UNDER THE POLICY, THE TRUSTEES, OFFICERS AND

DIRECTORS HAVE A CONTINUING OBLIGATION TO NOTIFY THE CHIEF GOVERNANCE

OFFICER AT ANY TIME DURING THE YEAR IF ANY OF THEIR DISCLOSURES CHANGE OR

IF A NEW DISCLOSURE IS REQUIRED UNDER THE POLICY, THE BOARD CONFLICT OF

INTEREST COMMITTEE MEETS AT LEAST FOUR TIMES A YEAR AND REVIEWS THE

DISCLOSURES, ANY PROPOSED ARRANGEMENTS THAT MAY INVOLVE A POTENTIAL

CONFLICT OF INTEREST, AND DOCUMENTS THEIR CONCLUSIONS. UNDER THE POLICY,

THE INTERESTED PERSONS MAY ATTEND A MEETING AT THE DISCRETION OF THE BOARD

OR COMMITTEE TO PROVIDE INFORMATION OR ANSWER QUESTIONS K6 BUT THEY MAY NOT

BE PRESENT DURING FINAL CONSIDERATION OR VOTING ON THE ARRANGEMENTS,

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

ALL CCF OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEE POSITIONS HAVE THEIR COMPENSATION
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REVIEWED IN ADVANCE ANNUALLY BY THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF THE CCF BOARD
OF DIRECTORS, WHICH IS VESTED WITH BOARD-DELEGATED POWERS TO ACT ON BEHALF
OF THE BOARD WITH RESPECT TO COMPENSATION MATTERS., 1IN REVIEWING AND
ESTABLISHING COMPENSATION FOR THESE OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES THE
COMMITTEE USES A PROCESS WHICH IS INTENDED TO CREATE THE PRESUMPTION IN
REGULATION 53,4958-6(A) THAT PAYMENTS OF COMPENSATION TO THESE PERSONS
CONSTITUTE REASONABLE COMPENSATION DEFINED AS AMOUNTS THAT ARE WITHIN THE
RANGE OF COMPENSATION PAID BY SIMILARLY SITUATED ORGANIZATIONS TO SIMILARLY

QUALIFIED PERSONS IN FUNCTIONALLY COMPARABLE POSITIONS.

IN THIS PROCESS, NO MEMBER OF THE COMMITTEE WHO HAS A CONFLICT OF INTEREST
WITHIN THE MEANING OF REGULATION 53,4958-6(C)(1)(III) WITH RESPECT TO THE
COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT AT ISSUE IS PERMITTED TO PARTICIPATE IN THE REVIEW

AND APPROVAL OF THAT COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENT,

IN ESTABLISHING COMPENSATION FOR EMPLOYED PHYSICIANS FOR PHYSICIAN
SERVICES, CCF PARTICIPATES IN PRODUCTIVITY AND COMPENSATION SURVEYS WITH
SIMILARLY SITUATED ORGANIZATIONS ACROSS THE U,S. IN ADDITION CCF ENGAGES
THE SERVICES OF AN INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANT WHO EACH YEAR
PROVIDES CCF WITH A CUSTOMIZED COMPENSATION REPORT REGARDING PHYSICIAN
COMPENSATION. BY USING THIS DATA, CCF HAS BEEN ABLE TO DEVELOP

MARKET-BASED COMPENSATION FOR PHYSICIAN SERVICES,

IN ESTABLISHING COMPENSATION FOR OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES PERFORMING

NON-PHYSICIAN SERVICES, THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE RETAINS AND CONSULTS

WITH AN INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTANT, WHO PREPARES A CUSTOMIZED

REPORT FOR THE COMMITTEE REGARDING AMOUNTS PAID BY SIMILARLY SITUATED

ORGANIZATIONS TO SIMILARLY QUALIFIED PERSONS IN FUNCTIONALLY COMPARABLE
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POSITIONS, THE COMMITTEE USES THE MARKET-BASED DATA PROVIDED BY THE
CONSULTANT AND WHERE APPROPRIATE PERFORMANCE REVIEWS AND COMPENSATION
RECOMMENDATIONS BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF OF STAFF, TO

ESTABLISH MARKET-BASED COMPENSATION

AFTER MAKING ITS COMPENSATION DECISIONS, THE COMMITTEE CONTEMPORANEOUSLY
DOCUMENTS ITS DELIBERATIONS AND DECISIONS IN CCF'S WRITTEN OR ELECTRONIC

BOOKS AND RECORDS

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 17 LIST OF STATES RECEIVING COPY OF FORM 990:
AK,CA,CO,FL,GA,IL KS KY LA MA MD MN MS NC ND NH,NJ,NM,OH,6OK,OR,6PA SC,TN,UT

WA WI NY NV

FORM 990 PART VI SECTION C LINE 19:

CCF MAKES CERTAIN OF ITS KEY DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC ON ITS
WEBSITE WWW,CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG, UNDER THE "ABOUT CLEVELAND CLINIC"
SECTION., IN THIS SECTION, THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, ANNUAL REPORT
COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORT, CCF'S CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY AND CORPORATE

COMPLIANCE POLICIES ARE AVAILABLE,

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C LINE 18:

THE MOST RECENTLY FILED FORM 990 IS AVAILABLE ON THE CCF WEBSITE
WWW, CLEVELANDCLINIC,ORG, UNDER THE "ABOUT CLEVELAND CLINIC" SECTION,
ALL OTHER DOCUMENTS WHICH ARE REQUIRED TO BE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC

CAN BE OBTAINED UPON REQUEST,

FORM 990 PART XI LINE 9 CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:
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DONATED CAPITAL AND ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTION FOR

CAPITAL PURPOSES 724,049,
GIFTS AND BEQUESTS 83 871,770,
TRANSFERS OF NET ASSETS -19 560 757,

NET INVESTMENT INCOME 21 810 647,

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTION FOR OPERATIONS -36 211 245
RETIREMENT BENEFITS ADJUSTMENT -6 834 750,

NET CHANGE IN UNREALIZED GAINS ON NON-TRADING INVESTMENTS 320 129
EQUITY AND OTHER TRANSFERS -2 406 501
CURRENT YEAR ELIMINATION ADJUSTMENT -650 000
ROUNDING -2
TOTAL TO FORM 990 PART XI, LINE 9 41,063,340,
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Cleveland Clinic

August 1,2017

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Cleveland Clinic Foundation and its
controlled affiliates (System) as of and for the years ended December 31,2016 and 2015 have been
reissued to reflect the retrospective adoption of Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2017-07.

In March 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2017-07, Compensation —
Retirement Benefits (Topic 715): Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net
Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost. This ASU requires the service cost component of net periodic
benefit cost related to defined benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans to be reported in the
same financial statement line as other compensation costs arising from services rendered during the
period. The other components of net periodic benefit cost are required to be presented separately from
service costs and outside of operating income in the statement of operations. Only the service cost
component of net periodic benefit cost will be eligible for capitalization in assets. ASU 2017-07 is
effective for the System for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,2018 and interim
periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 with early adoption
permitted in the first quarter 0of2017. Upon adoption, the System is required to apply the new guidance
retrospectively to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements, except for the
guidance limiting the capitalization of net periodic benefit costs in assets which is required to be
applied prospectively. The System early adopted ASU 2017-07 on January 1, 2017. The adoption of
ASU 2017-07 for the System was applied retrospectively to the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2013. The following table presents the impact of adoption on the System’s consolidated statements
of operations and changes in net assets (in thousands):

Year ended December 31 2016

Previously Impact of As

Reported Reported
Salaries, wages and benefits $ 4,534,869 $ (103,887) $ 4,430,982
Operating income 139,352 103,887 243,239
Other, net (7,212) (103,887) (111,099)
Net nonoperating gains 374,155 (103,887) 270,268

Year ended December 31, 2015

Previously Impact of As

Reported Adoption Reported
Salaries, wages and benefits $ 3,799,214 $ (9,738) $ 3,789,476
Operating income 480,224 9,738 489,962
Other, net 793 (9,738) (8,945)
Net nonoperating gains 137,994 (9,738) 128,256

The adoption and retrospective application of ASU 2017-07 had no impact on excess of revenues over
expenses or the consolidated balance sheets.

9500 Euclid Ave / RK45
The Cleveland Clinic Foundation Cleveland, Ohio 44195
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
The Cleveland Clinic Foundation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Cleveland Clinic Foundation
and controlled affiliates, d.b.a. Cleveland Clinic Health System, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of The Cleveland Clinic Foundation and controlled affiliates, d.b.a.
Cleveland Clinic Health System, at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted

accounting principles.
M ¥ MLLP

1707-2370778 1

March 21, 2017, except for paragraph 6 of
Note 3 and Note 21, as to which the date is
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In Thousands)
December 31
2016 2015
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 520,628 $ 249,580
Patient receivables, net of allowances for uncollectible
accounts of $186,241 in 2016 and $213,516 in 2015 1,059,171 950,304
Investments for current use 52,126 53,852
Other current assets 396,892 408,139
Total current assets 2,028,817 1,661,875
Investments:
Long-term investments 6,476,259 6,184,378
Funds held by trustees 75,892 125,723
Assets held for self-insurance 128,128 93,662
Donor-restricted assets 612,221 565,161
7,292,500 6,968,924
Property, plant, and equipment, net 4,512,078 4,388,667
Other assets:
Pledges receivable, net 150,709 141,468
Trusts and interests in foundations 67,219 86,741
Other noncurrent assets 410,007 353,751
627,935 581,960
Total assets $ 14,461,330 $ 13.601.426

2 1707-2370778



December 31

2016 2015
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 482427 § 412,559
Compensation and amounts withheld from payroll 322,493 295,668
Current portion of long-term debt 81,739 95,694
Variable rate debt classified as current 527,115 519,252
Other current liabilities 462,561 467,042
Total current liabilities 1,876,335 1,790,215
Long-term debt:
Hospital revenue bonds 2,926,949 2,727,471
Notes payable and capital leases 516,719 466,020
3,443,668 3,193,491
Other liabilities:
Professional and general liability insurance reserves 146,109 139,617
Accrued retirement benefits 478,874 490,753
Other noncurrent liabilities 490,545 478,352
1,115,528 1,108,722
Total liabilities 6,435,531 6,092,428
Net assets:
Unrestricted 7,088,209 6,627,406
Temporarily restricted 627,426 586,276
Permanently restricted 310,164 295,316
Total net assets 8,025,799 7,508,998
Total liabilities and net assets $ 14.461,330 _$ 13,601,426

See accompanying notes.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidated Statements of Operations

and Changes in Net Assets

(In Thousands)

Operations

Unrestricted revenues

Net patient service revenue

Provision for uncollectible accounts

Net patient service revenue less provision
for uncollectible accounts

Other

Total unrestricted revenues

Expenses

Salaries, wages, and benefits
Supplies

Pharmaceuticals

Purchased services and other fees
Administrative services

Facilities

Insurance

Operating income before interest, depreciation,
and amortization expenses

Interest
Depreciation and amortization
Operating income before special charges

Special charges — Note 20
Operating income

Nonoperating gains and losses

Investment return

Derivative losses

Gain on remeasurement of Akron General equity investment
Akron General member substitution contribution

Goodwill impairment loss

Other, net

Net nonoperating gains

Excess of revenues over expenses

(continued on next page)

1707-2370778

Year Ended December 31

2016

2015

$ 7,551,066 $ 6,712,483

(301,694)

7,249,372
787,835
8,037,207

4,430,982
749,073
862,697
506,107
196,958
343,377

66.746

7,155,940

881,267

136,105
476.305
268,857

25,618
243,239

404,191
(22,824)

(111.099

513,507

(231,304)

6,481,179
675,793
7,156,972

3,789,476
664,846
701,236
398,378
175,834
300,652

62,067

6,092,489

1,064,483

124,141
409,453
530,889

40,927
489,962

(56,328)
(25,010)
38,777
242,822
(63,060)

(8,945)

618,218



Changes in Net Assets
Net Assets

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Balances at January 1, 2015 $5,998,053 § 519,730 $ 284,712 $6,802,495

Excess of revenues over expenses 618,218 — - 618,218
Donated capital and assets released from

restrictions for capital purposes 5,806 (5,760) - 46
Gifts and bequests - 107,982 24,639 132,621
Net investment loss - (732) - (732)
Net assets released from restrictions used for

operations included in other unrestricted revenues - (44,493) - (44,493)
Retirement benefits adjustment 21,747 - = 21,747
Change in interests in foundations — (17,351) (17,480) (34,831)
Change in value of perpetual trusts - - (676) (676)
Net change in unrealized losses on

nontrading investments (4,947) - - (4,947)
Akron General member substitution contribution — 27,553 4,121 31,674
Other (11,471) (653) — (12,124)
Increase in net assets 629,353 66,546 10,604 706,503

Balances at December 31, 2015 6,627,406 586,276 295,316 7,508,998

Excess of revenues over expenses 513,507 - - 513,507
Donated capital and assets released from

restrictions for capital purposes 23,448 (22,683) - 765
Gifts and bequests - 84,256 16,939 101,195
Net investment income - 24,451 - 24,451
Net assets released from restrictions used for

operations included in other unrestricted revenues - (45,292) - (45,292)
Retirement benefits adjustment (17,789) - - (17,789)
Change in interests in foundations - 432 - 432
Change in value of perpetual trusts - - (2,091) (2,091)
Foreign currency translation loss (59,181) - - (59,181)
Net change in unrealized gains on

nontrading investments 320 - - 320
Other 498 (14) - 484
Increase in net assets 460,803 41,150 14,848 516,801

Balances at December 31, 2016 7,088,209 627,426 $ 310.164 3 8,025.799

See accompanying notes.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In Thousands)

Year Ended December 31
2016 2015
Operating activities and net nonoperating gains and losses
Increase in net assets $ 516,801 $ 706,503
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities and net nonoperating gains and losses:

Loss on extinguishment of debt 3,925 209
Retirement benefits adjustment 17,789 (21,747
Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments (382,146) 97,816
Depreciation and amortization 491,292 418,890
Provision for uncollectible accounts 301,694 231,304
Foreign currency translation loss 59,181
Gain on change in terms of long-term lease (6,856)
Donated capital (765) (46)
Restricted gifts, bequests, investment income, and other (123,987) (96,382)
Amortization of bond premiums and debt issuance costs (1,657) (2,552)
Net gain in value of derivatives (8,835) (558)
Goodwill impairment loss 63,060
Gain on remeasurement of Akron General equity investment (38,777
Akron General member substitution contribution (274,496)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient receivables (410,561) (299,939)
Other current assets 31,113 (48,770)
Other noncurrent assets (58,559) (77,581)
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 91,924 35,818
Other liabilities 8,928 (3,495)
Net cash provided by operating activities and net
nonoperating gains and losses 536,137 682,401
Financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 502,448 375,000
Payments for advance refunding and redemption of long-term debt (148,260)
Principal payments on long-term debt (127,011) (71,073)
Debt issuance costs (949) (89)
Change in pledges receivable, trusts, and interests in foundations (10,203) 63,560
Restricted gifts, bequests, investment income, and other 123,987 96,382
Net cash provided by financing activities 340,012 463,780
Investing activities
Expenditures for property and equipment (664,703) (453,536)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 1,585 1,170
Cash acquired through member substitution 15,367
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (420,144)
Net change in cash equivalents reported in long-term investments 146,064 305,575
Purchases of investments 2,757,671) (2,828,674)
Sales of investments 2,671,903 2,413,319
Net cash used in investing activities (602,822) (966,923)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 2279
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 271,048 179,258

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activity
Assets acquired through capital leases S 15479 § 17.333

See accompanying notes.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015

1. Organization and Consolidation

The Cleveland Clinic Foundation (Foundation) is a nonprofit, tax-exempt, Ohio corporation
organized and operated to provide medical and hospital care, medical research, and education.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Foundation and
its controlled affiliates, d.b.a. Cleveland Clinic Health System (System).

The System is the leading provider of healthcare services in northeast Ohio. The System operates
14 hospitals with approximately 3,900 staffed beds. Thirteen of the hospitals are operated in the
Northeast Ohio area, anchored by the Foundation. The System operates 21 outpatient Family
Health Centers, 10 ambulatory surgery centers, as well as numerous physician offices located
throughout a seven-county area of northeast Ohio, and specialized cancer centers in Sandusky and
Mansfield, Ohio. In addition, the System operates a hospital and a clinic in Weston, Florida, health
and wellness centers in West Palm Beach, Florida and Toronto, Canada, and a specialized
neurological clinical center in Las Vegas, Nevada. Pursuant to agreements, the System also
provides management services for Ashtabula County Medical Center, located in Ashtabula, Ohio,
with approximately 180 staffed beds, Cleveland Clinic Abu Dhabi, a multispecialty hospital
offering critical and acute care services that is part of Mubadala Development Company’s network
of healthcare facilities located in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates with approximately 250 staffed
beds, and in cooperation with Abu Dhabi Health Services Company, the Sheikh Khalifa Medical
City, a network of healthcare facilities in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates with approximately
711 stafted beds.

In November 2015, the Foundation became the sole member of Akron General Health System
(Akron General), an integrated healthcare delivery system with a 532-registered bed flagship
medical center located in Akron, Ohio. In addition to the flagship medical center, Akron General
also includes Lodi Community Hospital, Edwin Shaw Rehabilitation Institute, three health and
wellness centers, Visiting Nurse Services and affiliates, a physician group practice and other
outpatient locations. The System previously had a 35% special membership interest in Akron
General pursuant to an affiliation agreement as further described in Note 2.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

1707-2370778 7



Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Business Combinations

Effective November 1, 2015, the Foundation became the sole member of Akron General through
a non-cash business combination transaction. The business combination was recorded under the
acquisition method of accounting. Prior to November 1, 2015, the Foundation was a minority
member in Akron General with limited reserve powers pursuant to an affiliation agreement that
was effective in September 2014. The affiliation agreement provided for a $100 million capital
investment, comprised of $10 million cash and $90 million note payable, in Akron General in
exchange for a 35% special membership interest.

The Foundation’s investment in Akron General was $147.8 million at October 31, 2015, which
was recorded under the equity method of accounting. The Foundation recorded $5.5 million in
equity earnings in 2015 prior to the business combination transaction. Equity earnings on the
Foundation’s investment in Akron General are recorded in other unrestricted revenues in the
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

On October 31, 2015, immediately prior to the business combination transaction, the investment
in Akron General was remeasured to fair value using a combination of techniques consistent with
the income and market approaches. As a result of this remeasurement, the System recorded a
$38.8 million gain on remeasurement of the 35% equity investment, which is reported in
nonoperating gains and losses in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets
for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Foundation’s investment in Akron General of
$147.8 million was derecognized on November 1, 2015 in conjunction with the accounting for the
business combination transaction.

The fair value of Akron General’s net assets as of November 1, 2015 by major type is as follows
(in thousands):

Net working capital $ 29,869
Intangible assets 32,280
Property and equipment 330,176
Investments 215,966
Other assets 92,106
Noncurrent liabilities assumed (278,096)
Subtotal

Less October 31, 2015 investment in Akron General
Fair value of net assets
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Business Combinations (continued)

The fair value of net assets of $274.5 million in the preceding table was recognized in the
consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31,
2015 as a nonoperating member substitution contribution of $242.8 million, contributions of
temporarily restricted net assets of $27.6 million and contributions of permanently restricted net
assets of $4.1 million.

The results of operations for Akron General are included in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets beginning on November 1, 2015, For the two months ended
December 31, 2015, Akron General had total unrestricted revenues of $121.8 million, operating
income of $5.9 million and an excess of revenues over expenses of $4.1 million. Additionally, for
the two months ended December 31, 2015, Akron General recognized an increase in unrestricted
net assets of $1.1 million, including excess of revenues over expenses of $4.1 million, and a
decrease in temporarily and permanently restricted net assets of $1.0 million.

On October 13, 2015, the Foundation through its subsidiary purchased all of the share capital of
33 Grosvenor Place Limited (Grosvenor Place) for approximately $424.8 million, including net
working capital. Grosvenor Place is a limited liability company existing under Luxembourg law
and a private company incorporated under Jersey law that has a long-term leasehold interest in a
six-story 198,000 square-foot building in London, England. Upon acquisition, Grosvenor Place
currently leased office space to various tenants. The Foundation has established a plan to convert
the building to a healthcare facility. The business combination was recorded under the acquisition
method of accounting. Purchase price amounts have been assigned to assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their respective fair values. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value
of acquired net assets has been recorded as goodwill.

The fair value of Grosvenor Place’s net assets as of October 13, 2015 by major type is as follows
(in thousands):

Net working capital $ 2,833
Goodwill 63,060
Property 358,875
Fair value of net assets $ 424,768
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Business Combinations (continued)

The results of operations for Grosvenor Place are included in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets beginning on October 13, 2015. From October 13, 2015
through December 31, 2015, Grosvenor Place had total unrestricted revenues of $3.9 million,
operating income of $0.1 million and a deficiency of revenues over expenses of $63.0 million.
The operations of Grosvenor Place had no impact on temporarily and permanently restricted net
assets.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of
operations and changes in net assets of the System, Akron General and Grosvenor Place for the
year ended December 31, 2015, as though the business combination transactions had occurred on
January 1, 2015 (in thousands):

Total unrestricted revenues $ 7,734,115
Total unrestricted expenses 7.242.571
Operating income 491,544
Nonoperating gains and losses (80,814)
Excess of revenues over expenses 410,730
Increase in unrestricted net assets 426,459
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 38,922
Increase in permanently restricted net assets 6,547

This pro forma financial information is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations and
changes in net assets that would have occurred had the System, Akron General and Grosvenor
Place constituted a single entity during this period, nor is it necessarily indicative of future
operating results and changes in net assets.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Business Combinations (continued)

The pro forma financial information in the table above includes certain adjustments attributable to
the Akron Genera] and Grosvenor Place business combination transactions. The nonoperating
gains and losses, excess of revenues over expenses and the increase in unrestricted net assets for
the year ended December 31, 2015 in the table above excludes the gain on remeasurement,
unrestricted member substitution contribution and impairment loss of $38.8 million,
$242.8 million and $63.1 million, respectively, that were reflected in the consolidated statement
of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2015. In addition, the
increases in temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets for the year
ended December 31, 2015 in the table above exclude the member substitution contributions of
$27.6 million and $4.1 million, respectively, that were reflected in the consolidated statement of
operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2015.

3. Accounting Policies
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards
Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which outlines a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific
guidance, and requires significantly expanded disclosures about revenue recognition. The core
principle of the revenue model is that an entity recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The guidance in ASU 2014-
09, including subsequent amendments, is effective for the System as of January 1, 2018.
The System is currently evaluating the impact on the consolidated financial statements and the
options of adopting using either a full retrospective or a modified approach.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s
Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, which requires an entity’s management to evaluate
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued. This update is effective for annual periods ending after
December 15,2016. The System adopted ASU 2014-15 in 2016. The adoption of this standard had
no impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Accounting Policies (continued)

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Imputation of Interest, Simplifying the Presentation
of Debt Issuance Costs. This ASU requires debt issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet
as a direct deduction from the associated debt liability, consistent with the presentation of a debt
discount. This amends current guidance that requires debt issuance costs to be presented as assets
on the balance sheet. ASU 2015-03 is effective for the System for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2015. The System adopted ASU 2015-03 in 2016 and applied the new guidance
retrospectively to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. The System has
$23.2 million of debt issuance costs at both December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, that have
been reclassified under the new guidance.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases. This ASU requires lessees to recognize
assets and liabilities on the balance sheet for leases with lease terms greater than twelve months.
The recognition, measurement and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease
by a lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. This amends
current guidance that requires only capital leases to be recognized on the lessee balance sheet.
ASU 2016-02 will also require additional disclosures on the amount, timing and uncertainty of
cash flows arising from leases. The guidance is effective for the System for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018 with early adoption permitted. The System is currently
evaluating the impact that ASU 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial statements and will
adopt the provisions upon the effective date.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements for Not-for-
Profit Entities. This standard intends to make certain improvements to the current reporting
requirements for not-for-profit entities. This standard sets forth changes to net asset classification
requirements and the information presented about a not-for-profit entity’s liquidity, financial
performance and cash flows. ASU 2016-14 is effective for the System for reporting periods
beginning after December 15,2017. The System is currently evaluating the impact that ASU 2016-
14 will have on its financial statements and will adopt the provisions upon the effective date.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07, Compensation — Retirement Benefits (Topic 715):
Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit
Cost. This ASU requires the service cost component of net periodic benefit cost related to defined
benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans to be reported in the same financial statement line
as other compensation costs arising from services rendered during the period. The other
components of net periodic benefit cost are required to be presented separately from service costs
and outside of operating income in the statement of operations. Only the service cost component
of net periodic benefit cost will be eligible for capitalization in assets. ASU 2017-07 is effective

1707-2370778 12



Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Accounting Policies (continued)

for the System for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and interim periods
within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted
in the first quarter of 2017. Upon adoption, the System is required to apply the new guidance
retrospectively to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements, except for the
guidance limiting the capitalization of net periodic benefit costs in assets which is required to be
applied prospectively. The System early adopted ASU 2017-07 on January 1, 2017. The adoption
of ASU 2017-07 for the System was applied retrospectively to the years ended December 31,2016
and 2015. The following table presents the impact of adoption on the System’s consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets (in thousands):

Year ended December 31, 2016
Previously  Impact of
Reported Adoption As Reported

Salaries, wages, and benefits $ 4,534,869 $ (103,887) $ 4,430,982
Operating income 139,352 103,887 243,239
Other, net (7,212) (103,887) (111,099)
Net nonoperating gains 374,155 (103,887) 270,268

Year ended December 31, 2015
Previously  Impact of
Reported Adoption As Reported

Salaries, wages, and benefits $ 3,799,214 §$ (9,738) $ 3,789,476
Operating income 480,224 9,738 489,962
Other, net 793 (9,738) (8,945)
Net nonoperating gains 137,994 (9,738) 128,256

The adoption and retrospective application of ASU 2017-07 had no impact on excess of revenues
over expenses or the consolidated balance sheets.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Accounting Policies (continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Net Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors, and others, including retroactive adjustments under payment agreements with
third-party payors. The System has agreements with third-party payors that generally provide for
payments to the System at amounts different from its established rates. For uninsured patients who
do not qualify for charity care, the System recognizes revenue based on established rates, subject
to certain discounts as determined by the System. An estimated provision for uncollectible
accounts is recorded that results in net patient service revenue being reported at the net amount
expected to be received. The System has determined, based on an assessment at the consolidated
entity level, that patient service revenue is primarily recorded prior to assessing the patient’s ability
to pay and as such, the entire provision for uncollectible accounts related to patient service revenue
is recorded as a deduction from patient service revenue.

The System is paid a prospectively determined rate for the majority of inpatient acute care and
outpatient, skilled nursing, and rehabilitation services provided (principally Medicare, Medicaid,
and certain insurers). These rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on
clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Payments for capital are received on a prospective basis for
Medicare and on a cost reimbursement methodology for Medicaid. Payments are received on a
prospective basis for the System’s medical education costs, subject to certain limits. The System
is paid for cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate, with final settlement determined after
submission of annual cost reports by the System and audits thereof by the Medicare Administrative
Contractor. Provision for estimated retroactive adjustments, if any, resulting from regulatory
matters or other adjustments under payment agreements are estimated in the period the related
services are provided. The System recorded an increase in net patient service revenue of
$12.0 million and $24.0 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively, related to changes in estimates.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Accounting Policies (continued)

In 2014, the Provider Reimbursement Review Board provided a favorable decision to the System
regarding the graduate medical education program for Weston Hospital. The decision requires the
Centers for Med i ices to rei e ton Hospital on its annual
cost reports for ion ew pr r  ations, which includes all
years since the hospital opened in 2001. The System recorded an increase in net patient service
revenue of $7.5 million and $3.2 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively, related to changes in
estimates.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation as well as significant regulatory action, and, in the normal course of business, the
System is subject to contractual reviews and audits, including audits initiated by the Medicare
Recovery Audit Contractor program. As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that
recorded estimates will change in the near term. The System believes it is in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs and that adequate
provisions have been made for any adjustments that may result from final settlements.

As part of integration efforts involving Akron General and through review of contractual
relationships between Akron General and some of its independent physician practice groups, the
System identified possible violations to the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute and Limitations on
Certain Physician Referrals regulation (commonly referred to as the “Stark Law”), which may
have resulted in false claims to federal and/or state health care programs and may result in liability
under the False Claims Act. Akron General is cooperating with the appropriate government
authorities on such possible violations.

There is a probable liability associated with the matters described above, which may put at risk
federal reimbursements related to services provided to patients at Akron General by the practice
groups, and potential fines and penalties that could be assessed. It is not possible to estimate the
amount of the liability at this time and therefore no amount has been recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

Patient receivables are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts. The allowance for
uncollectible accounts is based upon management’s assessment of historical and expected net
collections considering historical business and economic conditions, trends in healthcare coverage,
major payor sources and other collection indicators. Periodically throughout the year, management
assesses the adequacy of the allowance for uncollectible accounts based upon historical write-off
experience by payor category. The results of this review are then used to make modifications to
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Accounting Policies (continued)

the provision for uncollectible accounts to establish an appropriate allowance for uncollectible
receivables. After satisfaction of amounts due from insurance, the System follows established
guidelines for placing certain past-due patient balances with collection agencies, subject to the
terms of certain restrictions on collection efforts as determined by the System.

Electronic Health Record Incentive Program

CMS implemented provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 that
provide annual incentive payments for the meaningful use of certified electronic health record
(EHR) technology. CMS has defined meaningful use as meeting certain objectives and clinical
quality measures based on current and updated technology capabilities over predetermined
reporting periods as established by CMS. The objectives and clinical quality measures are
implemented in stages with increasing requirements for participation. The Medicare EHR
incentive program provides annual incentive payments to eligible professionals and eligible
hospitals, as defined, that are meaningful users of certified EHR technology. The Medicaid EHR
incentive program provides annual incentive payments to eligible professionals and hospitals for
efforts to adopt, implement, and meaningfully use certified EHR technology in the first year of
participation and successfully demonstrating meaningful use of certified EHR technology in
subsequent participation years. Incentive payments are subject to retrospective adjustments after
the submission of the annual cost reports by the System and audits thereof by the Medicare
administrative contractor.

The System utilizes a grant accounting model to recognize EHR incentive revenues. The System
records EHR incentive revenue ratably throughout the incentive reporting period when it is
reasonably assured that it will meet the meaningful use objectives for the required reporting period
and that the grants will be received. Beginning in 2015, CMS updated the EHR incentive reporting
period for all hospitals to be based on the calendar year. The System believes that the professionals
and hospitals that met meaningful use objectives for 2015, and that are eligible for EHR incentive
payments in the 2016 program year, will continue to meet these objectives for the 2016 program
year. Therefore, for the year ended December 31, 2016, the System has accrued EHR revenues
related to the EHR reporting period in 2016. In 2016, the System recorded EHR incentive revenues
of $4.3 million, comprised of $3.0 million of Medicare revenues and $1.3 million of Medicaid
revenues. In 2015, the System recorded EHR incentive revenues of $7.0 million, comprised of
$5.7 million of Medicare revenues and $1.3 million of Medicaid revenues. EHR incentive
revenues are included in other unrestricted revenues in the consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Accounting Policies (continued)
Charity Care

The System provides care to patients who do not have the ability to pay and who qualify for charity
care pursuant to established policies of the System. Charity care is defined as services for which
patients have the obligation and willingness to pay but do not have the ability to do so. The System
does not report charity care as net patient service revenue. The cost of charity care provided in
2016 and 2015 approximated $87 million and $65 million, respectively. The System estimated
these costs by calculating a ratio of cost to gross charges and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to charity patients.

The System participates in the Hospital Care Assurance Program (HCAP). Ohio created HCAP to
financially support those hospitals that service a disproportionate share of low-income patients
unable to pay for care. HCAP funds basic, medically necessary hospital services for patients whose
family income is at or below the federal poverty level, which includes Medicaid patients and
patients without health insurance. The System recorded HCAP revenues of $3.1 million and
$9.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which are included in
net patient service revenue.

Management Service Agreements

The System has management service agreements with regional, national and international
organizations to provide advisory services for various healthcare ventures. The scope of these
services range from managing current healthcare operations that are designed to improve clinical
quality, innovation, patient care, medical education and research at other healthcare organizations
and educational institutions to managing the construction, training, organizational infrastructure,
and operational management of healthcare entities. The System recognizes revenues related to
management service agreements on a pro rata basis over the term of the agreements as services are
provided. Payments received in advance are recorded as deferred revenue until the services have
been provided. The System has recorded deferred revenue related to management service
agreements, included in other current liabilities, of $13.6 million and $15.0 million at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Revenue related to management service agreements
for 2016 and 2015 was $99.5 million and $58.3 million, respectively, and is included in other
unrestricted revenues.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The System considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are recorded at fair value in the
consolidated balance sheets and exclude amounts included in long-term investments and
investments for current use.

Inventories

Inventories (primarily supplies and pharmaceuticals) are stated at an average cost or the lower of
cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and are recorded in other current assets.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment purchased by the System are recorded at cost. Donated property,
plant, and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Expenditures that
substantially increase the useful lives of existing assets are capitalized. Routine maintenance and
repairs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation, including amortization of capital leased assets, is
computed by the straight-line method using the estimated useful lives of individual assets.
Buildings and building components are assigned useful lives ranging from five years to forty years.
Equipment is assigned a useful life ranging from three to twenty years. Interest cost incurred on
borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets and interest income on
unexpended project funds are capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets.
The System records costs and legal obligations associated with long-lived asset retirements. Assets
acquired though capital lease arrangements are excluded from the consolidated statements of cash
flows.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The System evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets and the related estimated remaining
lives when indicators of impairment are present. For purposes of impairment analysis, assets are
grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are
largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. The System records an
impairment charge or changes the useful life if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable or the useful life has changed.
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3. Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and Investment Income

Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are recorded at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investments, excluding
alternative investments, are primarily classified as trading. Investment transactions are recorded
on a settlement date basis. Realized gains and losses are determined using the average cost method.

Commingled investment funds are valued using, as a practical expedient, the net asset value as
provided by the respective investment companies and partnerships. There are no significant
redemption restrictions on the commingled investment funds.

Investments in alternative investments, which include hedge funds, private equity/venture funds
and real estate funds, are primarily limited partnerships that invest in marketable securities,
privately held securities, real estate, and derivative products and are reported using the equity
method of accounting based on net asset value information provided by the respective partnership
or third-party fund administrators. Investments held by the partnerships consist of marketable
securities as well as securities that do not have readily determinable values. The values of the
securities held by the limited partnerships that do not have readily determinable values are
determined by the general partner and are based on historical cost, appraisals, or other valuation
estimates that require varying degrees of judgment. There is inherent uncertainty in such
valuations, and the estimated fair values may differ from the values that would have been used had
a ready market for the securities existed. Generally, the equity method investment balance of the
System’s holdings in alternative investments reflects net contributions to the partnerships and the
System’s share of realized and unrealized investment income and expenses. The investments may
individually expose the System to securities lending, short sales, and trading in futures and forward
contract options and other derivative products. The System’s risk is limited to its carrying value.
The financial statements of the limited partnerships are audited annually.

Alternative investments can be divested only at specified times in accordance with terms of the
partnership agreements. Hedge fund redemptions typically contain restrictions that allow for a
portion of the withdrawal proceeds to be held back from distribution while the underlying
investments are liquidated. These redemptions are subject to lock-up provisions that are generally
imposed upon initial investment in the fund. Private equity/venture funds and real estate funds are
generally closed-end funds and have significant redemption restrictions that prohibit redemptions
during the fund’s life.
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3. Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment return, including equity method income on alternative investments, is reported as
nonoperating gains and losses, except for earnings on funds held by bond trustees and interest and
dividends earned on assets held for self-insurance, which are included in other unrestricted
revenues. Donor-restricted investment return on temporarily and permanently restricted
investments is included in temporarily restricted net assets.

Certain of the System’s assets and liabilities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate,
market, and credit risks.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value measurements are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Authoritative guidance provides an option to elect fair value as an alternative measurement for
selected financial assets and liabilities not previously recorded at fair value. The System did not
elect fair value accounting for any assets or liabilities that are not currently required to be measured
at fair value.

The framework for measuring fair value is comprised of a three-level hierarchy based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three
levels are defined as follows:

* Level 1 —inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets.

* Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

* Level 3 —inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
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3. Accounting Policies (continued)
Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill has resulted from business combinations, primarily international business and physician
practice acquisitions, and is based on the purchase price in excess of the fair values of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. Annually, or when indicators of
impairment exist, the System evaluates goodwill for impairment to determine whether there are
events or circumstances that indicate it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its carrying amount. The System considers assets to be impaired and writes them down
to fair value if the expected undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amounts.

Intangible assets other than goodwill are recorded at fair value in the period of acquisition.
Intangible assets with finite lives, which consist primarily of patient medical records, non-compete
agreements and leasehold interests, are amortized over their estimated useful lives, ranging from
two to five years, with a weighted-average amortization period of approximately three years.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The System’s derivative financial instruments consist of interest rate swaps and foreign currency
forward contracts (Note 13), which are recognized as assets or liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheets at fair value.

The System accounts for changes in the fair value of derivative instruments depending on whether
they are designated and qualified as part of a hedging relationship and further, on the type of
hedging relationship. The System has not designated any derivative instruments as hedges.
Accordingly, the changes in fair value of derivative instruments and the related cash payments are
recorded in derivative losses in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Foreign Currency Translation

The statements of operations of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currencies are other than the
U.S. dollar are translated into U.S. dollars using average exchange rates for the period. The assets
and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currencies are other than the U.S. dollar are
translated into U.S. dollars using exchange rates as of the balance sheet date. The U.S. dollar effects
that arise from translating the net assets of these subsidiaries at changing rates are recorded as
foreign currency translation gains and losses in the consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets. Cumulative foreign currency translation losses included in unrestricted net
assets were $71.4 million and $12.2 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are amortized over the period the obligation is outstanding using the
straight-line method, which approximates the interest method.

Contributions

Unconditional donor pledges to give cash, marketable securities, and other assets are reported at
fair value at the date the pledge is made to the extent estimated to be collectible by the System.
Conditional donor promises to give and indications of intentions to give are not recognized until
the condition is satisfied. Pledges received with donor restrictions that limit the use of the donated
assets are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are transferred to unresiricted net assets and
reported in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as other unrestricted
revenues if the purpose relates to operations or reported as a change in unrestricted net assets if
the purpose relates to capital.

No amounts have been reflected in the consolidated financial statements for donated services.
The System pays for most services requiring specific expertise. However, many individuals
volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the System with various programs.

Grants

Grant revenue is recognized in the period it is earned based on when the applicable project
expenses are incurred and project milestones are achieved. Grant payments received in advance of
related project expenses are deferred until the expenditure has been incurred and recorded as
deferred revenue and included in other current liabilities. The System recorded research grant
revenue, included in other unrestricted revenues, of $189.2 million and $176.5 million in 2016 and
2015, respectively.
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Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are used to differentiate resources, the use of which is restricted
by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose, from resources on which no restrictions
have been placed or that arise from the general operations of the System. Temporarily restricted
gifts and bequests are recorded as an addition to temporarily restricted net assets in the period
received. Permanently restricted net assets consist of amounts held in perpetuity or for terms
designated by donors, including the fair value of several perpetual trusts for which the System is
an income beneficiary, or the beneficial interest in the fair value of underlying trust assets. Earnings
on permanently restricted net assets are recorded as investment income in temporarily restricted
net assets and subsequently used in accordance with the donor’s designation. Temporarily and
permanently restricted net assets are primarily restricted for research, education, and strategic
capital projects.

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include excess of revenues
over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from excess of revenues
over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on
investments classified as nontrading, retirement benefits adjustments, foreign currency translation
gains and losses, contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using grants or
contributions that by donor restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring such assets),
and transfers of net assets to maintain donor-restricted endowment funds at the level required by
donor stipulations or law.
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4. Net Patient Service Revenue and Patient Receivables

Net patient service revenue before the provision for uncollectible accounts by major payor source
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows (in thousands):

2016 2015
Medicare $ 2,521,242 33% $ 2,012,743 30%
Medicaid 572,130 8 420,960 6
Managed care and commercial 4,288,570 57 3,983,065 60
Self-pay 169,124 2 295,715 4
$ 7 100% $ 6,71 83 100%

The System has experienced an increase in Medicare and Medicaid revenue primarily as a result
of the Affordable Care Act and other industry trends. The State of Ohio expanded Medicaid
eligibility in 2014, which has increased enrollment in the Medicaid program and allowed former
uninsured patients to shift into the expanded Medicaid program. The System records an estimated
provision for uncollectible accounts in the year of service for self-pay accounts receivable, which
includes patient reccivables associated with self-pay patients and deductible and copayment
balances for which third-party coverage provides for a portion of the services provided.
The System’s allowance for doubtful accounts was 15% and 18% of accounts receivable at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Write-offs on self-pay accounts receivable increased
$81.1 million in 2016 compared to 2015. The System does not maintain a material allowance for
uncollectible accounts for third-party payors.

The System’s concentration of credit risk relating to patient receivables is limited due to the
diversity of patients and payors. Patient receivables consist of amounts due from government
programs, commercial insurance companies, other group insurance programs, and private pay
patients. Patient receivables due from Medicare, Medicaid, and one commercial payor account for
approximately 29%, 8%, and 23% at December 31, 2016, and 25%, 6%, and 24% at December 31,
2015, respectively, of the System’s total patient receivables. Revenues from the Medicare and
Medicaid programs and one commercial payor account for approximately 33%, 8%, and 17% for
2016, and 30%, 6%, and 17% for 2015, respectively, of the System’s net patient service revenue.
Excluding these payors, no one payor represents more than 10% of the System’s patient receivables
or net patient service revenue.
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5. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The composition of cash, cash equivalents, and investments at December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as
follows (in thousands):

2016 2015

Cash and cash equivalents $ 687,410 3 562,406
Fixed income securities:

U.S. treasuries 963,715 810,036

U.S. government agencies 20,270 22,158

U.S. corporate 167,025 147,703

U.S. government agencies asset-backed securities 25,102 18,519

Corporate asset-backed securities 2,829 7,295

Foreign 44,759 40,774
Fixed income mutual funds 222,670 172,996
Commingled fixed income funds 663,154 690,372
Common and preferred stocks:

U.S. 422,947 418,135

Foreign 267,061 252,376
Equity mutual funds 381,686 262,774
Commingled equity funds 1,591,389 1,453,528
Commingled commodity funds 122,297 117,100
Alternative investments:

Hedge funds 1,134,136 1,350,427

Private equity/venture funds 696,786 541,009

Real estate 452,018 404,748
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 7865254 § 7,272,356

Investments are primarily maintained in a master trust fund administered using a bank as trustee.
The management of the majority of the System’s investments is conducted by numerous external
investment management organizations that are monitored by management and an external
third-party advisor. Of these investment managers, 20 managers focus on equity investments,
11 managers focus on fixed income investments, and 107 managers focus on alternative
investments. The alternative investments have separate administrators and custodian
arrangements. Alternative investments also include three holdings in which the System invests
directly.

1707-2370778 25



Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)

Total investment return (loss) is comprised of the following for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

2016 2015

Other unrestricted revenues:

Interest income and dividends $ 2,750 $ 2,123
Nonoperating gains (losses), net:
Interest income and dividends 61,430 49,851
Net realized gains on sales of investments 157,358 156,710
Net change in unrealized gains (losses) on investments 100,079 (314,771)
Equity method income on alternative investments 104,184 69,600
Investment management fees (18,860) (17,718)
404,191 (56,328)
Other changes in net assets:
Net change in unrealized gains (losses)
on nontrading investments 320 (4,947)
Investment income (loss) on restricted investments 24,451 (732)
Total investment return (loss) $§ 431,712 § (59,884)
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6. Other Current Assets and Liabilities and Other Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

Other current and noncurrent assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015, consist of the following

(in thousands):

2016 2015
Current:
Inventories $ 133,074 125,536
Pledges receivable current (see Note 10) 58,188 37,703
Prepaid expenses 52,989 54,211
Estimated amounts due from third-party payors 41,162 90,045
Research receivables 36,390 35,099
Other 75,089 65,545
Total other current assets $ 396,892 408,139
2016 2015
Noncurrent:
Deferred compensation plan assets $ 162,820 136,012
Goodwill and other intangible assets 92,574 90,407
Note receivable 37,455 13,535
Investments in affiliates 37,244 33,868
Other 79,914 79,929
Total other noncurrent assets $ 410,007 353,751
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6. Other Current Assets and Liabilities and Other Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities
(continued)

Other current and noncurrent liabilities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of the following
(in thousands):

2016 2015
Current:
Research deferred revenue $ 71,885 $ 73,639
Interest payable 64,141 61,314
Current portion of professional and general
liability insurance reserves (see Note 14) 52,125 52,223
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors 45,000 48,639
Management contracts and other deferred revenue 38,602 40,432
Employee benefit related liabilities 34,384 38,452
Foreign currency forward contracts (see Note 13) 11,076 -
State assessment liabilities 5,185 40,869
Other 140,163 111,474
Total other current liabilities $ 462,561 $ 467,042
2016 2015
Noncurrent:
Employee benefit related liabilities $ 216,666 $ 190,962
Interest rate swap liabilities (see Note 13) 139,422 159,333
Pledge liabilities 34,134 33,518
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors 24,523 16,284
Gift annuity liabilities 11,114 10,480
Accrued income tax liabilities (see Note 16) 2,258 4,062
Other 62,428 63,713
Total other noncurrent liabilities $ 490,545 $§ 478,352
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In 2016, the System recorded goodwill of $4.1 million related to the acquisitions of various
physician practices. In 2015, the System recorded goodwill of $79.2 million related to the
acquisitions of Grosvenor Place and various physician practices. Subsequent to the acquisition of
Grosvenor Place, the System established a plan to change the use of the facility. As a result of the
expected changes in the business, the System determined that the fair value of the reporting unit
was below the carrying amount. The fair value of the reporting unit was determined using
techniques consistent with the market approach. The System recorded a goodwill impairment loss
of $63.1 million in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year
ended December 31, 2015. Goodwill is recorded in other noncurrent assets in the consolidated
balance sheets.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31,2016 and 2015
are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31
2016 2015
Balance, beginning of year $ 54411 § 38,319
Goodwill acquired 4,086 79,152
Goodwill impairment loss - (63,060)
Balance, end of year $ 58,497 $ 54,411

In 2016, the System acquired other intangible assets of $0.4 million related to physician practice
acquisitions. In 2015, the System acquired other intangible assets of $34.7 million, comprised of
$32.3 million related to the member substitution of Akron General and $2.4 million related to
physician practice acquisitions. Other intangible assets are recorded in other noncurrent assets in
the consolidated balance sheets.
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continued)

Other intangible assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of the following (in thousands):

2016 2015
Historical Accumulated Historical Accumulated
Cost Amortization Cost Amortization
Trade name $ 31,700 $ $ 31,700 $
Finite-lived intangible
assets 6,643 4,266 6,261 1,965
Total $ 38343 § 4,266 $ 37,961 $ 1,965

Amortization related to finite-lived intangible assets was $2.3 million and $1.3 million in 2016
and 2015, respectively, and is included in depreciation and amortization in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets. Future amortization is as follows
(in thousands): 2017 — $1,576; 2018 — $623; 2019 — $152; and 2020 — $26.

8. Fair Value Measurements

The carrying values of accounts receivable and accounts payable are reasonable estimates of fair
value due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments. Investments, other than
alternative investments, are recorded at their fair value. Other current and noncurrent assets and
liabilities have carrying values that approximate fair value.

The fair value of the System’s pledges receivable is based on discounted cash flow analysis using
treasury yield curve interest rates consistent with the maturities of the pledges receivable and
adjusted for consideration of the donor’s credit. The fair value of pledges receivable was
$211.7 million and $185.4 million (see carrying value at Note 10) at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Pledges receivable would be classified as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the System’s long-term debt is estimated by discounted cash flow analyses using
current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements and adjusted for the System’s
credit. Inputs, which include reported/comparable trades, broker/dealer quotes, bids and offerings,
are obtained from various sources, including market participants, dealers, brokers and various
news media/market information. The fair value of long-term debt was $3.6 billion and $3.5 billion
(see carrying value at Note 12) at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Long-term debt
would be classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.
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8. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The following tables present the financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis
as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, based on the valuation hierarchy (in thousands):

December 31, 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 687410 $ -$ - $ 687,410
Fixed income securities:
U.S. treasuries 963,715 - - 963,715
U.S. government agencies - 20,270 - 20,270
U.S. corporate - 167,025 - 167,025
U.S. government agencies asset-
backed securities = 25,102 - 25,102
Corporate asset-backed
securities - 2,829 - 2,829
Foreign - 44,759 - 44,759
Fixed income mutual funds 222,670 - - 222,670
Common and preferred stocks:
U.S. 420,744 2,203 - 422,947
Foreign 265,689 1,372 - 267,061
Equity mutual funds 381,686 - — 381,686
Total cash and investments 2,941,914 263,560 - 3,205,474
Perpetual and charitable trusts - 45,350 - 45,350
Total assets at fair value $ 2,941,914 § 308,910 § - $ 3,250,824
Liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ - 8§ 139422 § - $ 139,422
Foreign currency forward contracts — 11,076 - 11,076
Total liabilities at fair value $ - $ 150,498 $ - $ 150,498
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8. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

December 31, 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 562,350 $ 56 $ - § 562,406
Fixed income securities:
U.S. treasuries 810,036 - - 810,036
U.S. government agencies - 22,158 — 22,158
U.S. corporate - 147,703 - 147,703
U.S. government agencies asset-
backed securities - 18,519 - 18,519
Corporate asset-backed
securities - 7,295 - 7,295
Foreign - 40,774 - 40,774
Fixed income mutual funds 172,996 - - 172,996
Common and preferred stocks:
uU.S. 416,316 1,819 - 418,135
Foreign 251,046 1,330 - 252,376
Equity mutual funds 262,774 — — 262,774
Total cash and investments 2,475,518 239,654 - 2,715,172
Perpetual and charitable trusts — 65,305 - 65,305
Total assets at fair value $ 2,475,518 $ 304,959 § — $ 2,780,477
Liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ - $ 159333 §$ - $ 159,333
Total liabilities at fair value $ - $ 159,333 $ - $ 159,333
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8. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Financial instruments at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are reflected in the consolidated balance
sheets as follows (in thousands):

2016 2015

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments measured

at fair value $ 3,205,474 $ 2,715,172
Commingled funds measured at net asset value 2,376,840 2,261,000
Alternative investments accounted for under the

equity method 2,282,940 2,296,184
Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 7,865,254 $ 7,272,356
Perpetual and charitable trusts measured at fair value $ 45,350 $ 65,305
Interests in foundations 21,869 21,436
Trusts and interests in foundations $ 67,219 § 86,741

Interest rate swaps and forward currency forward contracts (Note 13) are reported in other
noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

The following is a description of the System’s valuation methodologies for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value. Fair value for Level 1 is based upon quoted market prices. Fair value for
Level 2 is determined as follows:

Investments classified as Level 2 are primarily determined using techniques that are consistent
with the market approach. Valuations are based on quoted prices for similar instruments in
active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active,
and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in
the market or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of
the assets. Inputs, which include broker/dealer quotes, reported/comparable trades, and
benchmark yields, are obtained from various sources, including market participants, dealers,
and brokers.
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8. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

The fair value of perpetual and charitable trusts in which the System receives periodic
payments from the trust is determined based on the present value of expected cash flows to be
received from the trust using discount rates ranging from 1.9% to 5 .0%, which are based on
Treasury yield curve interest rates or the assumed yield of the trust assets. The fair value of
charitable trusts in which the System is a remainder beneficiary is based on the System’s
beneficial interest in the investments held in the trust, which are measured at fair value.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is determined based on the present value of expected future
cash flows using discount rates appropriate with the risks involved. The valuations include a
credit spread adjustment to market interest rate curves to appropriately reflect nonperformance
risk. The credit spread adjustment is derived from other comparably rated entities’ bonds
recently priced in the market. The System manages credit risk based on the net portfolio
exposure with each counterparty.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is based on the difference between the
contracted forward rate and current market foreign currency exchange rates. A credit spread
adjustment is included in the valuations to appropriately reflect nonperformance risk. The
credit spread adjustment is derived from other comparably rated entities’ bonds recently priced
in the market.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of
net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. F urthermore, while the System believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.
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9. Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of the following

(in thousands):
2016 2015

Land and improvements $ 390,669 $§ 382,832
Buildings 5,350,756 5,075,427
Leasehold improvements 30,609 30,254
Equipment 1,599,562 1,541,883
Computer hardware and software 797,300 760,757
Construction-in-progress 611,587 468,380
Leased facilities and equipment 150,561 144,794
8,931,044 8,404,327

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,418,966)  (4,015,660)
$ 4,512,078 $§ 4,388,667

Included in the preceding table is unamortized computer software of $188.3 million and
$81.1 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Amortization of computer software
totaled $48.9 million and $32.1 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively. Amortization of computer

software for the five years subsequent to December 31, 2016, is as follows (in millions): 2017 -

$43.9; 2018 — $33.5; 2019 — $23.5; 2020 — $17.4; and 2021 — $15.9.

Accumulated amortization of leased facilities and equipment was $58.8 million and $40.2 million
at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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10. Pledges Receivable

Outstanding pledges receivable from various corporations, foundations, and individuals at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows (in thousands):

2016 2015
Pledges due
In less than one year $ 72,117 $ 58,082
In one to five years 108,075 83,460
In more than five years 88.540 99,958
268,732 241,500
Allowance for uncollectible pledges and discounting (59,835) (62,329)
Current portion (net of allowance for uncollectible pledges
of $13.9 million in 2016 and $20.4 million in 2015) (58,188) (37,703)

$ 150,709 $§ 141,468

11. Notes Payable and Capital Leases

Notes payable and capital leases at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of the following
(in thousands):

2016 2015
Notes payable with interest rates up to 6.0% $ 381,308 $ 390,099
Revolving credit facility 60,000 -
Capital leases for facilities and equipment 96,435 108,085
City of Lakewood lease 1 715

539,308 500,899
Unamortized debt issuance costs (620) -
Less current portion
Total notes payable and capital leases $ 516,719 $ 466,020

In 2015, the System executed a $375.0 million term loan agreement with a financial institution.
The proceeds of the term loan were used to finance the System’s international business strategy.
The term loan matures in 2018 and bears interest at a variable rate based on the London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus an applicable spread. The interest rate on the term loan ranged from

0.73% to 1.11% in 2016 (average rate 0.99%) and from 0.69% to 0.73% in 2015 (average rate
0.72%).
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11. Notes Payable and Capital Leases (continued)

In 2016, the System entered into a $300.0 million revolving credit facility with multiple financial
institutions. The revolving credit facility expires in 2019 with provisions allowing the Foundation
to extend the term for one-year periods. The facility allows the System to enter into short-term
loans that automatically renew throughout the term of the facility. At December 31, 2016, the
System has the intent and the ability to refinance the short-term loans beyond one year.
The revolving credit facility bears interest at a variable rate based on the London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR) plus an applicable spread. Amounts outstanding on the revolving credit facility as
of December 31, 2016 totaled $60.0 million. The proceeds were used to pay the full outstanding
amount on a line of credit executed in January 2016 that was used to defease the Series 2012 Akron
Bonds and redeem the Series 2012 taxable Akron Bonds (Note 12). The line of credit was
terminated in 2016. The interest rate on the revolving credit facility ranged from 1.38% to 1.53%
in 2016 (average rate 1.40%).

Maturities of the notes payable and revolving credit facility for the five years subsequent to
December 31, 2016, are as follows (in thousands): 2017 — $4,866; 2018 — $376,416; 2019 —
$60,026; 2020 — $0; and 2021 — $0.

Future minimum capital lease payments, including total interest of $22.7 million, are as follows
(in thousands): 2017 — $20,712; 2018 — $18,744; 2019 — $18,437; 2020 — $12,181; and 2021 —
$10,809; and thereafter — $38,264. Assets acquired through capital lease arrangements are included
in property, plant, and equipment.

The City of Lakewood, Ohio (the City) leases real and personal property to Lakewood Hospital
Association (LHA) for the purpose of enabling the operation of certain healthcare services at
Lakewood Hospital. In connection with executing an Amended Lease with the City, LHA had
agreed to make additional payments to the City. In 2015, the Amended Lease was further amended
to shorten the lease term and to reduce the total payments due under the lease. The payments under
the current lease as amended range in annual amounts up to $1.2 million through 2018, or until
certain provisions in the lease are satisfied. The net present value of the additional payments
discounted at an interest rate of 6% is $1.6 million and $2.7 million at December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively. The System recorded a $6.9 million gain in special charges (Note 20) related
to the change in lease terms for the year ended December 31, 2015. LHA has approximately
$27 million of net assets, included in the System’s unrestricted net assets at December 31, 2016,
available for use under the terms of the current lease but unavailable to other members of the
System.
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12. Bonds

Bonds at December 31, 2016 and 2015 consist of the following (in thousands):

Interest

s)

Series 2016, Private Placement 3.35%
Series 2016, Term Loan Variable rate

Series 2014 4.86%
Series 2014A CP Notes Variable rate

Variable rate
Variable rate

Series 2014A, Akron
Series 2014B, Akron

Series 2013A 3.62% to 4.04%
Series 2013B Variable rate
Series 2013, Keep Memory Alive Variable rate
Series 2012A 1.23% to 4.07%

3.80% to 5.00%
Variable rate

Series 2012, Akron
Series 2012 taxable, Akron

Series 2011A

2.45%t0 4.83%

Series 2011B 2.94%
Series 2011C 2.73% to 4.72%
Series 2009A 5.58%
Series 2009B 3.74% to 5.58%
Series 2008A 4.24% to 5.55%
Series 2008B Variable rate
Series 2003C Variable rate
Series 2002 Variable rate

Net unamortized premium

Unamortized debt issuance costs

Current portion

Long-term variable rate debt classified
as current

1707-2370778

Final
Maturitv

2046
2026
2114
2044
2031
2031
2042
2039
2037
2039
2031
2019
2032
2031
2032
2039
2039
2043
2043
2035
2032

Amount Outstanding at
December 31
2016 2015
$ 325000 $ -
17,370 -
400,000 400,000
70,955
70,925
20,000
73,150 81,225
201,160 201,160
63,135 65,030
460,080 469,485
39,835
17,370
172,030 181,180
29,120 31,250
170,995 170,995
305,400 305,400
366,215 380,455
409,740 419,690
369,250 369,250
41,905 41,905
9.635 9,940
3,485,140 3,275,095
51,287 55,630
(22,593) (23,187)
(59,770) (60,815)

$ 2,926,949 § 2,727,471
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12. Bonds (continued)

The majority of the System’s outstanding revenue bonds are limited obligations of various issuing
authorities payable solely by the System pursuant to loan agreements between the borrowing
entities and the issuing authorities. Under various financing agreements, the System must meet
certain operating and financial performance covenants. The Series 2016 private placement, the
Series 2016 term loan and the Series 2014 bonds are issued directly by the Foundation. The Series
2013 Keep Memory Alive bonds are issued directly by Keep Memory Alive, a non-obligated
affiliate of the System.

In January 2016, the System entered into a line of credit with a financial institution totaling
$60.0 million. The System drew the full amount on the line of credit and also issued $100.0 million
of Taxable Hospital Revenue Commercial Paper Notes (Series 2014A CP Notes). The proceeds
from the draw on the line of credit and a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of the Series
2014A CP Notes were used to defease the Series 2012 Akron Bonds and redeem the Series 2012
taxable Akron Bonds, the Series 2014A Akron Bonds and the Series 2014B Akron Bonds.
The System recorded a loss on extinguishment of debt of $3.9 million in 2016 related to this
transaction, which is recorded in other nonoperating gains and losses in the consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets.

In August 2016, the Foundation issued private placement debt totaling $325.0 million that was
purchased by a financial institution. The private placement debt matures in 2046 and bears interest
at a fixed rate of 3.35%. The proceeds of the private placement debt were used for the general
corporate purposes of the Foundation.

In November 2016, the System entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution totaling
$17.4 million. The loan matures in 2026 and bears interest at a variable rate based on the LIBOR
index rate plus an applicable spread. The proceeds of the loan were used to pay a portion of the
outstanding Series 2014A CP Notes.

Certain of the System’s current outstanding bonds bear interest at a variable rate. During 2016 and
2015, the rates for the System’s variable rate bonds ranged from 0.01% to 1.78% (average rate
0.45%) and 0.01% to 1.59% (average rate 0.11%), respectively.
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12. Bonds (continued)

Certain variable rate revenue bonds are secured by irrevocable direct pay letters of credit and
standby bond purchase agreements totaling $377.5 million at December 31, 2016. Bonds are
classified as current in the consolidated balance sheets if they are supported by lines of credit or
standby bond purchase agreements that expire within one year, require repayment of a remarketing
draw within one year or contain a subjective clause that, if declared by the lender, could cause
immediate repayment of the bonds.

The System provides self-liquidity on the Series 2003C Bonds, certain sub-series of the Series
2008B Bonds and the Series 2014A CP Notes. These bonds are classified as current liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheets.

During the term of agreements with the issuing authorities, the System is required to make
specified deposits with trustees to fund principal and interest payments when due. Also,
unexpended bond proceeds are held by the trustee and released to the System for approved
requisition requests for capital projects. Unexpended bond proceeds representing a reserve fund
related to the Series 2012 Akron Bonds was $4.0 million at December 31, 2015. There was no
unexpended bond proceeds at December 31, 2016. The current portion of the funds held by
trustees, which consists of deposits with the trustees to fund current principal and interest
payments, was $1.6 million at December 31, 2015 and is included in investments for current use.
There was no current portion of funds held by trustees at December 31, 2016.

The System is subject to certain restrictive covenants, including provisions relating to certain debt
ratios, days cash on hand, and other matters. The System was in compliance with these covenants
at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Combined current aggregate scheduled maturities, assuming the remarketing of the variable rate
demand bonds, for the five years subsequent to December 31, 20186, are as follows (in thousands):
2017 - $59,770; 2018 — $62,020; 2019 — $64,040; 2020 — $66,235; and 2021 — $69,210.

Total interest paid approximated $134.4 million and $122.1 million in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Capitalized interest cost approximated $1.1 million and $2.8 million in 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

1707-2370778 40



Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

13. Derivative Instruments

The System has entered into various derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk
and foreign currency exposures.

The System’s objective with respect to interest rate risk is to manage the risk of rising interest rates
on the System’s variable rate debt and certain variable rate operating lease payments. Consistent
with its interest rate risk management objective, the System entered into various interest rate swap
agreements with a total outstanding notional amount of $633.1 million and $653.1 million at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. During the term of these transactions, the System pays
interest at a fixed rate and receives interest at a variable rate based on the London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR) or the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Index (SIFMA).
The swap agreements are not designated as hedging instruments. Net interest paid or received
under the swap agreements is included in derivative losses in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets.

The following table summarizes the System’s interest rate swap agreements (in thousands):

Notional Amount at

Swap  Expiration System December 31
Tvpe Date Pavs System Receives 2016 2015
Fixed 2016 5.28% 100% of SIFMA § $ 4,150
Fixed 2021 3.21% 68% of LIBOR 33,265 34,770
Fixed 2024 3.42% 68% of LIBOR 27,800 28,300
Fixed 2027 3.56% 68% of LIBOR 128,333 132,212
Fixed 2028 5.12% 100% of LIBOR 38,800 39,815
Fixed 2028 3.51% 68% of LIBOR 29,965 30,755
Fixed 2030 5.07% 100% of LIBOR 60,825 62,500
Fixed 2030 5.06% 100% of LIBOR 60,800 62,500
Fixed 2031 3.04% 68% of LIBOR 52,625 53,900
Fixed 2032 4.32% 79% of LIBOR 2,361 2,438
Fixed 2032 4.33% 70% of LIBOR 4,723 4,874
Fixed 2032 3.78% 70% of LIBOR 2,361 2,438
Fixed 2036 4.90% 100% of LIBOR 49,725 50,000
Fixed 2036 4.90% 100% of LIBOR 78,350 79,375
Fixed 2037 4.62% 100% of SIFMA 63,135 65,030

$ 633,068 $ 653,057
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13. Derivative Instruments (continued)

The System is exposed to fluctuations in various foreign currencies against its functional currency,
the U.S. dollar (USD). The System uses foreign currency derivatives including currency forward
contracts and currency options to manage its exposure to fluctuations in the USD — British Pound
(GBP) exchange rate. Currency forward contracts involve fixing the USD — GBP exchange rate
for delivery of a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified date. The currency forward
contracts are typically cash settled in USD for their fair value at or close to their settlement date.
The System has also used currency option contracts to manage its foreign currency exchange risk.

In June 2016, the System entered into five foreign currency contracts, expiring between September
2016 and September 2017, with a total outstanding notional amount of $150 million. At
December 31, 2016, the System has three outstanding foreign currency forward contracts with a
total notional amount of $75 million. The foreign currency contracts are not designated as hedging
instruments,

The following table summarizes the location and fair value for the System’s derivative instruments
(in thousands):

Derivatives Liability
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet

Location Fair Value Location Fair Value

Derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments

Interest rate swap Other noncurrent Other noncurrent
agreements liabilities $ 139,422 liabilities $ 159,333
Foreign currency contracts Other current
liabilities $ 11,076 $ —
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The following table summarizes the location and amounts of derivative losses on the System’s
interest rate swap agreements (in thousands):

Location of Loss Year Ended December 31
Recognized 2016 2015
Derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments
Interest rate swap
agreements Derivative losses $ 4,539) $ (25,010)
Foreign currency contracts  Derivative losses $ (18,285) § -

The System has used various derivative contracts in connection with certain prior obligations and
investments. Although minimum credit ratings are required for counterparties, this does not
eliminate the risk that a counterparty may fail to honor its obligations. Derivative contracts are
subject to periodic “mark-to-market” valuations. A derivative contract may, at any time, have a
positive or negative value to the System. In the event that the negative value reaches certain
thresholds established in the derivative contracts, the System is required to post collateral, which
could adversely affect its liquidity. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the System posted
$75.6 million and $94.1 million, respectively, of collateral with counterparties that is included in
funds held by trustees in the consolidated balance sheets. In addition, if the System were to choose
to terminate a derivative contract or if a derivative contract were terminated pursuant to an event
of default or a termination event as described in the derivative contract, the System could be
required to pay a termination payment to the counterparty.
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14. Professional and General Liability Insurance

The System manages its professional and general liability insurance program through a captive
insurance arrangement, except for Akron General in 2015, which was self-insured for professional
and general liability claims. In 2016, professional and general liability insurance coverage for
Akron General was provided by the System’s captive insurance subsidiary.

In the ordinary course of business, professional and general liability claims have been asserted
against the System by various claimants. These claims are in various stages of processing or, in
certain instances, are in litigation. In addition, there are known incidents, and there also may be
unknown incidents, which may result in the assertion of additional claims. The System has accrued
its best estimate of both asserted and unasserted claims based on actuarially determined amounts.
These estimates are subject to the effects of trends in loss severity and frequency, and ultimate
settlement of professional and general liability claims may vary significantly from the estimated
amounts.

The System’s professional and general liability insurance reserves of $198.2 million and
$191.8 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are recorded as current and
noncurrent liabilities and include discounted estimates of the ultimate costs for both asserted
claims and unasserted claims. Asserted claims for the System’s reserves were discounted at 1.75%
and 1.50% at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, except for Akron General, which
discounted asserted claims at 1.75% at December 31, 2015. Unasserted claims were discounted at
2.25% and 2.00% at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Through the captive insurance
subsidiary and a trust at Akron General, the System has set aside investments of $180.3 million
($52.1 million included in investments for current use) and $145.9 million ($52.2 million included
in investments for current use) at December 31,2016 and 2015, respectively, of which
$37.0 million and $36.6 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are restricted in
accordance with reinsurance trust agreements related to coverage of the Florida operations and
other reinsurance programs provided by the captive insurance subsidiary, and $7.6 million at
December 31, 2015 is restricted in a separate trust established for the payment of self-insured
professional liability claims of Akron General. The assets in the trust were transferred to the
System’s captive insurance subsidiary in 2016.
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Activity in the professional and general liability insurance reserves is summarized as follows

(in thousands):

2016 2015

Balance at beginning of year $ 191,840 $§ 190,068
Incurred related to:

Current period 65,512 56,965

Prior period (13,985) (4,145)
Total incurred 51,527 52,820
Paid related to:

Current period 6,862 2,167

Prior period 37,710 64,502
Total paid 44,572 66,669

6,955 (13,849)

Increase (decrease) in unasserted claims 1,671 (2,174)
Decrease in reinsurance recoverable (2,232) (105)
Akron General member substitution = 17,900
Balance at end of year $ 198234 $§ 191,840

The foregoing reconciliation shows $14.0 million and $4.1 million of favorable development in
2016 and 2015, respectively, due to changes in actuarial estimates as a result of lower claim
activity, closed claims, and expedited settlement of claims, which has reduced claim expenses and
resulted in more favorable settlements. The System utilizes a combination of actual and industry

statistics to estimate loss and loss adjustment expense reserves.
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15. Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits

The System has four defined benefit pension plans, including two plans assumed by the System
from the Akron General member substitution. The CCHS Retirement Plan covers substantially all
employees of the System, except those employed by Akron General. The CCHS Retirement Plan
ceased benefit accruals as of December 31, 2009 for substantially all employees, with benefit
accruals for remaining employees ceasing at various intervals through December 31, 2012. Akron
General has a defined benefit plan covering substantially all of its employees that were hired before
2004 who meet certain eligibility requirements. In 2009, Akron General ceased benefit accruals
for substantially all nonunion employees. Benefits for union employees ceased at various intervals
through 2013 except in certain circumstances. The benefits for the System’s defined benefit
pension plans are provided based on age, years of service, and compensation. The System’s policy
for its defined benefit pension plans is to fund at least the minimum amounts required by the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act. The System also maintains two nonqualified defined
benefit supplemental retirement plans, which cover certain of its employees.

The System sponsors two noncontributory, defined contribution plans, and three contributory,
defined contribution plans, including two contributory defined contribution plans assumed by the
System from the Akron General member substitution. The Cleveland Clinic Investment Pension
Plan (IPP) is a noncontributory, defined contribution plan, which covers substantially all of the
System’s employees, except those employed by Akron General. The System’s contribution for the
IPP is based upon a percentage of employee compensation and years of service. The System
sponsors an additional noncontributory, defined contribution plan, which covers certain of its
employees. The System’s contribution to the plan is based upon a percentage of employee
compensation, as defined, determined according to age. The System also sponsors three
contributory, defined contribution plans, including two plans at Akron General, which cover
substantially all employees. Any System contribution to the applicable contributory plan is
determined based on employee contributions.

The System provides healthcare benefits upon retirement for substantially all of its employees who
meet certain minimum age and years of service provisions at retirement. The System’s healthcare
plans generally provide for cost sharing, in the form of retiree contributions, deductibles, and
coinsurance. The System’s policy is to fund the annual cost of healthcare benefits from the general
assets of the System. The estimated cost of these postretirement benefits is actuarially determined
and accrued over the employees’ service periods.
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In 2015, the System updated the generational mortality projections scale from Scale MP-2014 to
Scale MP-2015. In 2016, the System updated the generational mortality projections scale from
Scale MP-2015 to Scale MP-2016. The System believes that the updated mortality rates are the
best estimate of future experience.

The System expects to make contributions of $9.3 million to the defined benefit pension plans in
2017. Pension benefit payments over the next ten years are estimated as follows: 2017 -
$102.8 million; 2018 — $108.8 million; 2019 — $112.3 million; 2020 — $114.2 million; 2021 —
$116.6 million; and in the aggregate for the five years thereafter — $563.3 million.

The System expects to make contributions of $4.5 million to other postretirement benefit plans in
2017. Other postretirement benefit payments over the next ten years, net of the average annual
Medicare Part D subsidy of approximately $2.3 million, are estimated as follows: 2017 -
$4.5 million; 2018 — $4.6 million; 2019 — $4.6 million; 2020 — $4.6 million; 2021 — $4.4 million;
and in the aggregate for the five years thereafter — $18.3 million.

No plan assets are expected to be returned to the employer during 2017.

The System is required to recognize the funded status, which is the difference between the fair
value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligations, of its pension and other postretirement
benefit plans in the consolidated balance sheets, with a corresponding adjustment to unrestricted
net assets. Amounts recorded in unrestricted net assets consist of actuarial gains and losses and
prior service credits and costs. Actuarial gains and losses recorded in unrestricted net assets outside
of the corridor, which is 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the fair value of
the plan assets, will be recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost immediately in the
current period. Prior service credits and costs will be amortized over future periods, pursuant to
the System’s accounting policy.

Unrecognized prior service credits and costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the

estimated life of the plan participants. In 2017, the System is expected to amortize $2.6 million of
unrecognized prior service credits in net periodic benefit costs.
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Included in unrestricted net assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are the following amounts that
have not yet been recognized in net periodic benefit cost (in thousands):

Defined Benefit Other Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits
2016 2015 2016 2015
Unrecognized actuarial losses (gains) $ 168337 $ 146,336 $§ (9,890) $ (7,815)
Unrecognized prior service credit (12.763) (14,444) (8.946) (5.128)
Total $ 155574 § 131,892 $§ (18.836) $ (12,943)

Unrecognized actuarial losses (gains) included in unrestricted net assets represent amounts within
the corridor that do not require recognition in net periodic benefit cost for each respective year.

Changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in unrestricted net assets for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows (in thousands):

Defined Benefit Other Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits
2016 2015 2016 2015

Current year actuarial (loss) gain $ (130,527) $ (16,382) $ 6,482 $ 15,545
Recognition of actuarial loss in

excess of corridor 108,526 25,612 (4,407)
Current year prior service credit 4,355
Amortization of prior service credit (1.681) (1,681) (537) (1,347)
Total $ $ 7,549 $ 5893 $ 14,198
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The following table sets forth the funded status of the System’s pensions and other postretirement
benefit plans and the amounts recognized in the System’s December 31, 2016 and 2015
consolidated balance sheets (in thousands):

Defined Benefit Other Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits
2016 2015 2016 2015
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Projected benefit obligation at beginning
of year $ 1,649,131 $ 1,556,304 § 111,309 § 126,091
Service cost 2,178 2,463 1,681 261
Interest cost 76,074 65,703 5,368 5,430
Actuarial loss (gain) 98,362 (76,458) (6,482) (15,546)
Participant contributions — - 12,186 9,162
Plan amendments and benefit changes - - 4,357) -
Benefits paid (89,064) (86,934) (21,928) (20,322)
Federal subsidy - 1,123 1,212
Member substitution = 188,053 = 5.021
Projected benefit obligation at
end of year 1,736,681 1,649,131 98,900 111,309
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning
of year 1,255,431 1,213,402 - -
Actual return on plan assets 47,291 (8,861) - -
Participant contributions - - 12,186 9,162
System contributions 129,312 6,019 9,742 11,160
Benefits paid (89,064) (86,934) (21,928) (20,322)
Member substitution - 131,805 - —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 1,342,970 1,255,431 - -~
Accrued retirement benefits $ (393,711) § (393,700) $ (98,900) $ (111,309
Current liabilities $ (9,263) $ (9,382) $ 4474) $ (4,874)
Noncurrent liabilities (384,448) (384,318) (94,426) (106,435)
Net liability recognized in consolidated
balance sheets $  (393,711) § (393,700) $ (98,900) $ (111,309)

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $1.7 billion and
$1.6 billion at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows (in thousands):

Defined Benefit Other Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits
2016 2015 2016 2015
Components of net periodic
benefit cost:
Service cost $ 2,178 $ 2,463 $ 1,681 $ 261

Interest cost 76,074 65,703 5,368 5,430
Expected return on plan assets (79,456) (83,979) = =
Recognition of actuarial loss

(gain) in excess of corridor 108,526 25,612 (4,407) -
Amortization of unrecognized
prior service credit (1,681) (1,681) (537) (1,347)
Net periodic benefit cost 105,641 8,118 2,105 4,344
Defined contribution plans 217,941 188,247 - -
Total included in operations $ 323,582 $ 196,365 $ 2,105 § 4,344

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine pension and postretirement benefit obligations

and net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

Defined Benefit Other Postretirement
Pension Plans Benefits
2016 2015 2016 2015
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rates:
Used for benefit obligations 4.24% 4.74% 4.36% 4.85%
Used for net periodic benefit
cost 4.74% 4.30% 4.86% 4.43%
Expected rate of return on
plan assets 6.56% 7.06% - -
Rate of compensation increase:
Used for benefit obligations 2.25% 2.25% - -
Used for net periodic benefit
cost 2.25% 2.37% - -
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The System uses a direct cost approach to estimate its postretirement benefit obligation for
healthcare services provided by the System (internally provided services). Healthcare services
provided by non-System entities (externally provided services) are based on the System’s
historical cost experience.

The annual assumed healthcare cost trend rates for the next year and the assumed trend thereafter
is as follows:

2016 2015
Internally provided services:
Initial rate 5.50% 5.75%
Ultimate rate 4.50% 4.50%
Year ultimate reached 2021 2021
Externally provided services:
Initial rate 6.50% 6.75%
Ultimate rate 5.50% 5.50%
Year ultimate reached 2021 2021

A one-percentage-point increase or decrease in the healthcare cost trend rate would have increased
or decreased the December 31, 2016 service and interest costs in total by $2.5 million and
$1.7 million, respectively, and the December 31, 2015 service and interest costs in total by
$2.9 million and $1.8 million, respectively.

The System’s weighted-average asset allocation of pension plan assets at December 31, 2016 and
2015, by asset category, are as follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets
December 31 December 31 Target

2016 2015 Allocation
Asset category
Interest-bearing cash 7.0% 4.4% 0%—10%
Fixed income securities 47.0 48.4 40%—80%
Common and preferred stocks 31.1 27.6 17%-37%
Alternative investments 14.9 19.6 3%-23%
Total 100.0% 100.0%
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The System’s investment strategy for its pension assets balances the liquidity needs of the pension
plans with the long-term return goals necessary to satisfy future pension obligations. The target
allocation ranges of the investment pool to various asset classes are designed to diversify the
portfolio in a way that achieves an efficient trade-off between long-term return and risk while
providing adequate liquidity to meet near-term expenses and obligations.

The System’s weighted-average pension portfolio return assumption of 6.56% and 7.06% in 2016
and 2015, respectively, is based on the targeted assumed rate of return through its asset mix at the
beginning of each year, which is designed to mitigate short-term return volatility and achieve an
efficient trade-off between return and risk. Expected returns and risk for each asset class are formed
using a global capital asset pricing model framework in which the expected return is the
compensation earned from taking risk. Forward-looking adjustments are made to expected return,
volatility, and correlation estimates as well. Additionally, constraints such as permissible asset
classes, portfolio guidelines, and liquidity considerations are included in the model.

In 2015, the System updated its investment strategy and modified the target allocations of pension
plan assets in the CCHS Retirement Plan based on the current funded status of the plan. Coincident
with this update, the System reduced the asset allocation for common and preferred stocks with a
corresponding increase in fixed income securities. The updated investment strategy was
implemented because of the funded status of the pension plan and the anticipation that such
changes in investment strategy will result in lower volatility of future changes in funded status.
Once the new investment strategy is fully implemented, it is anticipated that the duration of the
investment assets will match the liabilities of the pension plan over time. Additional revisions in
asset allocations and expected rate of return on plan assets may occur based on future changes in
the funded status of the pension plans.
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The following tables present the financial instruments in the System’s defined benefit pension
plans measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, based on the
valuation hierarchy (in thousands):

December 31,2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 94,013 $ 28 - § 94,015
Fixed income securities:
U.S. treasuries 303,857 - - 303,857
U.S. government agencies - 4,431 = 4,431
U.S. corporate - 83,201 = 83,201
Foreign - 12,280 - 12,280
Fixed income mutual funds 77,615 - - 77,615
Common and preferred stocks:
U.S. 70,524 421 - 70,945
Foreign 27,406 719 - 28,125
Equity mutual funds 78,630 - - 78,630
Total assets at fair value $ 652,045 $§ 101,054 $ - $ 753,099
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December 31, 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 56,113 § 9% - $ 56,122
Fixed income securities:
U.S. treasuries 308,329 = = 308,329
U.S. government agencies - 5,230 - 5,230
U.S. corporate - 74,798 - 74,798
Foreign - 10,909 - 10,909
Fixed income mutual funds 64,599 - - 64,599
Common and preferred stocks:
U.S. 61,930 382 - 62,312
Foreign 24,915 640 = 25,555
Equity mutual funds 36,133 - - 36,133
Total assets at fair value $ 552,019 $§ 91,968 $ - $ 643,987

Total plan assets in the System’s defined benefit pension plans at December 31, 2016 and 2015
are comprised of the following (in thousands):

2016 2015
Plan assets measured at fair value $ 753,099 $§ 643,987
Commingled fixed-income funds measured at net asset
value 149,065 143,018
Commingled equity funds measured at net asset value 240,453 222,351
Alternative investments measured at net asset value 200,353 246,075
Total fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 1,342,970 $ 1,255,431

Fair value methodologies for Level I and Level 2 are consistent with the inputs described in
Note 8.
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Fixed income securities include debt obligations of the U.S. government and various agencies,
U.S. corporations, and other fixed income instruments such as mortgage-backed and asset-backed
securities. The composition of these securities represents an expected return and risk profile that
is commensurate with broadly defined fixed income indexes such as the Barclays Capital U.S.
Aggregate Index. Additionally, investments include mutual funds and commingled fixed-income
funds that may also invest in opportunistic as well as non-U.S. and high-yield debt instruments.
Commingled fixed-income funds are valued using net asset value as a practical expedient.

Common and preferred stocks include investments of publicly traded common stocks of both U.S.
and international corporations, the majority of which represent actively traded and liquid securities
that are traded on many of the world’s major exchanges and include large-, mid-, and small-
capitalization securities. The composition of these securities represents an expected return and risk
profile that is commensurate with broadly defined equity indexes such as the Russell 3000 Index
and the Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) All Country World ex-U.S. Index.
Investments also include equity mutual funds and commingled equity funds whose underlying
assets may include publicly traded equity securities. Commingled equity funds are valued using
net asset value as a practical expedient.

Alternative investments include hedge funds and private equity funds that are valued using net
asset value as a practical expedient. Hedge funds are meant to provide returns between those
expected from stocks and fixed income investments with commensurate levels of risk and lower
correlation relative to traditional investments. Included in this category are investments that are
well diversified across various strategies and may consist of absolute return funds, long/short
funds, and other opportunistic/multi-strategy funds. The underlying investments in such funds may
include publicly traded and privately held equity and debt instruments issued by U.S. and
international corporations as well as various derivatives based on these securities. Hedge fund
redemptions typically contain restrictions that allow for a portion of the withdrawal proceeds to be
held back from distribution while the underlying investments are liquidated. Private equity
investments make up a smaller portion of the alternative investments and generally consist of
limited partnerships formed to invest in equity and debt investments in operating companies that
are not publicly traded. Investment strategies in this category may include buyouts, distressed debt,
and venture capital. Private equity funds are closed-end funds and have significant redemption
restrictions that prohibit redemptions during the fund’s life.
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16. Income Taxes

The Foundation and most of its controlled affiliates are tax-exempt organizations as described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. These organizations are subject to income tax on
any income from unrelated business activities. The System also owns or controls certain taxable
affiliates.

The System files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and in various state and foreign
jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the System is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state, and local
or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2013.

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the liability for uncetrtainty in income taxes was $2.3 million and
$4.1 million, respectively. The System does not expect a significant increase or decrease in
unrecognized tax benefits within the next 12 months. The System recognizes interest and penalties
accrued related to the liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets.

The System has net operating losses available for federal income tax purposes of $121.5 million
at both December 31, 2016 and 2015. These losses expire in varying amounts from 2018 through
2036. A valuation allowance has been recorded for the full amount of the deferred tax asset related
to the net operating loss carryforwards due to the uncertainty regarding their use.

17. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The System leases various equipment and facilities under operating lease arrangements. Total
rental expense in 2016 and 2015 was $73.6 million and $63.0 million, respectively. Minimum
operating lease payments over the next five years are as follows (in thousands): 2017 — $46,069;
2018 - $39,463; 2019 —$23,346; 2020 — $18,443; and 2021 — $15,811.

Included in the System’s operating lease payments are the following off-balance-sheet financing
agreements:

In 2003, the System entered into an operating lease agreement for the purpose of leasing a
genetics and stem cell research building (Stem Cell Building Lease). Under the terms of the
Stem Cell Building Lease, the System began to lease the facility upon the issuance of the
certificate of occupancy in December 2004 and is required to lease the facility for 29 years.
At December 31, 2016, total remaining minimum operating lease payments were
$27.8 million.
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Tn 2006, the System entered into an operating lease agreement for the purpose of leasing a
parking garage and service center building (Service Center Lease). Under the terms of the
Service Center Lease, the System began to lease the facility upon issuance of a certificate of
occupancy in October 2008 and is required to lease the facility for 21 years with an option (by
the System) to extend the lease an additional five years. At December 31,2016, total remaining
minimum operating lease payments were $75.5 million,

In 2007, the System entered into two operating lease agreements to lease an office complex
comprised of five buildings primarily used for administrative services, totaling approximately
707,000 square feet. The System is required to lease the facilities for 22 years with an option
(by the System) to extend the leases an additional five years. At December 31, 2016, total
remaining minimum operating lease payments were $39.3 million.

At December 31, 2016, the System has commitments for construction and other related capital
contracts of $422 million and letters of credit of $0.5 million. Guarantees of mortgage loans made
by banks to certain staff members are $16.6 million at December 31, 2016. In addition, the System
has remaining commitments to invest approximately $614 million in alternative investments at
December 31, 2016. The largest commitment at December 31, 2016, to any one alternative
strategy manager is $29.1 million. These investments are expected to occur over the next three to
five years. No amounts have been recorded in the consolidated balance sheets for these
commitments and guarantees.

Pledge liabilities to various foundations and other entities at December 31, 2016 are as follows
(in thousands): 2017 — $306; 2018 — $14,892; 2019 —$500; 2020 — $4,800; 2021 — $500; and
thereafter — $18,300, The unamortized discount on pledge liabilities at December 31, 2016 was
$4.9 million. Pledge liabilities are recorded in other current liabilities and other noncurrent
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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18. Endowment

The System’s endowment consists of approximately 313 individual donor-restricted funds
established for a variety of purposes. Net assets associated with endowment funds are classified
and reported based on donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

In 2009, the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) was enacted to
update and replace Ohio’s previous law, the Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act.
The System has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original
gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations
to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the System classifies as permanently restricted
net assets (1) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (2) the original value
of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (3) accumulations to the permanent
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the
time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted
endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the
System in a manner consistent with the standard for expenditure prescribed by UPMIFA.
In accordance with UPMIFA, the System considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

The duration and preservation of the fund.

The purposes of the System and the donor-restricted endowment fund.
General economic conditions.

The possible effect of inflation and deflation.

The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments.
Other resources of the System.

The investment policies of the System.

N
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18. Endowment (continued)
Funds With Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the System to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration. Deficiencies of this nature that are reported in unrestricted net assets were $0.6 million
and $0.7 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The System has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets
of donor-restricted funds that the organization must hold in perpetuity. Under this policy, the
endowment assets are invested in a highly diversified portfolio of U.S. and non-U.S. publicly
traded equities, alternative investments, and fixed income securities structured to achieve an
optimal balance between return and risk. The System expects its endowment funds, over time, to
provide an average rate of return of approximately 7.5% annually. Actual returns in any given year
may vary from this amount.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the System relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The System targets a diversified asset allocation to
achieve its long-term return objective within prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

The System has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year up to 5% of its endowment
fund’s average fair value over the prior three years through the calendar year-end preceding the
fiscal year in which the distribution is planned. In establishing this policy, the System considered
the long-term expected return on its endowment. Accordingly, over the long term, the System
expects the current spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at an average 0f2.5% annually.
This is consistent with the System’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment
assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide additional real growth through
new gifts and investment return.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

18. Endowment (continued)
Changes in Endowment Net Assets (in thousands)

Temporarily Permanently
Restricted  Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, January 1, 2015 $ 47,566 $ 232,043 $ 279,609

Investment return 1,287 - 1,287
Net depreciation (2,281) - (2,281)
Contributions s 25,049 25,049
Appropriation of endowment
assets for expenditure (7,785) = (7,785)
Akron General member substitution - 3,218 3,218
Endowment net assets, December 31, 2015 38,787 260,310 299,097
Investment return 1,245 - 1,245
Net appreciation 14,521 = 14,521
Contributions = 16,979 16,979
Appropriation of endowment
assets for expenditure (7,290) (7,290)

Endowment net assets, December 31,2016 § 47,263 $ 277,289 $ 324,552

19. Functional Expenses

The System provides healthcare services and education and performs research. Expenses related
to these functions were as follows (in thousands):

2016 2015
Healthcare services $ 6,344,767 $ 5,337,903
Research 220,137 210,779
Medical education 333,354 290,506
General and administrative 894,707 755,065
Non-healthcare services 104,890 82,495

$ 7,897,855 $ 6,676,748
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20. Special Charges

The System incurred and recorded special charges of $25.6 million and $40.9 million in 2016 and
2015, respectively. Special charges in 2016 include $7.8 million of statutory compensation costs
related to the termination of tenant leases at the System’s London building that is being converted
from office space to a healthcare facility and $17.8 million of accelerated depreciation expense
and other costs related to LHA. The Foundation, LHA and the City of Lakewood entered into an
agreement in December 2015 that outlines the transition of healthcare services in the City of
Lakewood. Participation in the agreement by the City of Lakewood was authorized by an
ordinance adopted by Lakewood City Council. Under the terms of the agreement, the Foundation
and LHA will make contributions over the next 17 years for the creation of a new health and
wellness community foundation to be used to address community health and wellness needs in the
City of Lakewood. In addition, the Foundation will construct, own and operate an approximately
62,000-square-foot family health center expected to open in 2018 that will be located adjacent to
the current site of the hospital. LHA ceased inpatient operations at the hospital in February 2016,
while the current emergency department and several outpatient services at the hospital will
continue until the opening of the new family health center and emergency department.
The cessation of inpatient services at the hospital is not considered a discontinued operation since
the System provides inpatient hospital services at the Foundation and its subsidiary hospitals in
the Northeast Ohio area. Special charges in 2015 include $33.7 million of pledge liabilities in
connection with the agreement, $13.3 million of accelerated depreciation and other property, plant
and equipment costs, $0.8 million in employee retention costs, offset by a $6.9 million gain related
to changes in the terms of the lease between the City of Lakewood and LHA.

21. Subsequent Events
The System evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to December 31, 2016 through
March 21, 2017 and July 31, 2017, the dates the consolidated financial statements were issued.

During this period, there were no subsequent events requiring recognition in the consolidated
financial statements, and there were no nonrecognized subsequent events requiring disclosure.
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Report of Independent Auditors on
Supplementary Information

The Board of Directors
The Cleveland Clinic Foundation

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The following consolidating balance sheets, statements of operations and
changes in net assets, and statements of cash flows are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects

in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.
é/wd v MLL?

March 21, 2017, except for Note 2, as to
which the date is July 31, 2017
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31, 2016
(In Thousands)
Consolidating
Obligated Non-Obligated  Adjustments
Group Group and Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 511,102 $ 9,526 $ - 520,628
Patient receivables, net 976,060 109,412 (26,301) 1,059,171
Due from affiliates 4,091 28 4,119) -
Investments for current use - 52,126 - 52,126
Other current assets 313,911 85,292 (2,311) 396,892
Total current assets 1,805,164 256,384 (32,731) 2,028,817
Investments:
Long-term investments 6,090,613 385,646 - 6,476,259
Funds held by trustees 75,892 - - 75,892
Assets held for self-insurance - 128,128 - 128,128
Donor-restricted assets 572,982 39,239 - 612,221
6,739,487 553,013 - 7,292,500
Property, plant, and equipment, net 3,478,405 1,033,673 - 4,512,078
Other assets:
Pledges receivable, net 149,889 820 - 150,709
Trusts and interests in foundations 59,069 8,150 -~ 67,219
Other noncurrent assets 514,693 51,138 (155,824) 410,007
723,651 60,108 (155,824) 627,935
Total assets § 12,746,707 § 1,903,178 § (188.555) 8§ 14.461.330
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Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensation and amounts
withheld from payroll
Current portion of long-term debt
Variable rate debt classified as current
Due to affiliates
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt:
Hospital revenue bonds
Notes payable and capital leases

Other liabilities:
Professional and general liability
insurance reserves
Accrued retirement benefits
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidating

Obligated Non-Obligated  Adjustments
Group Group and Eliminations Consolidated
$ 398,704 S 86,033 § 2,310) $ 482,427
289,650 32,843 - 322,493
75,918 5,893 (72) 81,739
466,203 60,912 - 527,115
28 4,091 4,119) -
388,183 100,680 (26,302) 462,561
1,618,686 290,452 (32,803) 1,876,335
2,926,949 - - 2,926,949
121,896 547,127 (152,304) 516,719
3,048,845 547,127 (152,304) 3,443,668
57,290 88,819 - 146,109
429,965 48,909 - 478,874
434,093 56,452 — 490,545
921,348 194,180 - 1,115,528
5,588,879 1,031,759 (185,107) 6,435,531
6,267,797 823,860 (3,448) 7,088,209
597,449 29,977 - 627,426
292,582 17.582 B 310,164
7,157,828 871,419 (3,448) 8,025,799
$ 12,746,707 $ 1,903,178 $ _ (188,555) § 14,461,330
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient receivables, net
Due from affiliates
Investments for current use
Other current assets

Total current assets

Investments:
Long-term investments
Funds held by trustees
Assets held for self-insurance
Donor-restricted assets

Property, plant, and equipment, net
Other assets:
Pledges receivable, net

Trusts and interests in foundations
Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

65

Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31, 2015
(In Thousands)
Consolidating
Obligated  Non-Obligated Adjustments
Group Group and Eliminations Consolidated
$ 176,869 $ 72,711 § - $§ 249,580
879,420 94,544 (23,660) 950,304
916 40 (956) -
- 53,852 - 53,852
343,901 66,682 (2.,444) 408,139
1,401,106 287,829 (27,060) 1,661,875
5,813,363 371,015 - 6,184,378
116,046 9,677 - 125,723
- 93,662 - 93,662
520.474 44,687 - 565,161
6,449,883 519,041 - 6,968,924
3,384,312 1,004,355 - 4,388,667
140,137 1,331 - 141,468
77,416 9,325 - 86,741
325,545 81,257 (53,051) 353,751
543,098 91,913 (53,051) 581,960

$ 11,778,399 $§ 1,903,138 (80.111) § 13,601,426
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Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensation and amounts
withheld from payroll
Current portion of long-term debt
Variable rate debt classified as current
Due to affiliates
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt:
Hospital revenue bonds
Notes payable and capital leases

Other liabilities:
Professional and general liability
insurance reserves
Accrued retirement benefits
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying nofes.
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Consolidating

Obligated Non-Obligated  Adjustments
Group Group and Eliminations Consolidated
$ 345228 $ 69,508 $ 2,177y $ 412,559
253,615 42,053 - 295,668
84,392 11,302 - 95,694
370,375 148,877 - 519,252
27 929 (956) -
379,854 111,115 (23,927) 467,042
1,433,491 383,784 (27,060) 1,790,215
2,669,251 58,220 - 2,727,471
95,327 420,296 (49.603) 466,020
2,764,578 478,516 (49,603) 3,193,491
52,587 87,030 - 139,617
426,180 64,573 - 490,753
425,155 53,197 - 478,352
903,922 204,800 - 1,108,722
5,101,991 1,067,100 (76,663) 6,092,428
5,851,045 779,809 (3,448) 6,627,406
548,408 37,868 - 586,276
276,955 18,361 - 295,316
6,676,408 836,038 (3,448) 7,508,998
$ 11778399 § 1,903,138 $ (80,111) § 13,601,426
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidating Statements of Operations and
Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2016

(In Thousands)
Operations
Consolidating
Obligated Non-Obligated Adjustments
Group Group and Eliminations Consolidated
Unrestricted revenues
Net patient service revenue $6,882932 § 928,179 § (260,045) $ 7,551,066
Provision for uncollectible accounts (263,790) (37,904) — (301,694)
Net patient service revenue less
provision for uncollectible accounts 6,619,142 890,275 (260,045) 7,249,372
Other 641,752 308,593 (162.510) 787.835
Total unrestricted revenues 7,260,894 1,198,868 (422,555) 8,037,207
Expenses
Salaries, wages, and benefits 4,114,227 588,967 (272,212) 4,430,982
Supplies 644,499 105,605 (1,031) 749,073
Pharmaceuticals 791,670 71,027 - 862,697
Purchased services and other fees 408,293 140,622 (42,808) 506,107
Administrative services 154,624 68,946 (26,612) 196,958
Facilities 276,150 72,148 (4,921) 343,377
Insurance 67,624 74,093 (74,971) 66,746
6.457.087 1,121,408 (422,555) 7,155,940
Operating income before interest,
depreciation, and amortization
expenses 803,807 77,460 - 881,267
Interest 126,401 9,704 - 136,105
Depreciation and amortization 402.420 73.885 - 476,305
Operating income (loss) before special charges 274,986 (6,129) - 268,857
Special charges 968 24,650 - 25,618
Operating income (loss) 274,018 (30,779) - 243,239
Nonoperating gains and losses
Investment return 375,676 28,515 - 404,191
Derivative losses (20,130) (2,694) - (22,824)
Other, net (103,704) (7.395) - (111,099)
Net nonoperating gains 251,842 18,426 — 270,268
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 525,860 (12,353) - 513,507
67
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidating Statements of Operations and
Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Operations

Unrestricted revenues

Net patient service revenue

Provision for uncollectible accounts

Net patient service revenue less
provision for uncollectible accounts

Other

Total unrestricted revenues

Expenses

Salaries, wages, and benefits
Supplies

Pharmaceuticals

Purchased services and other fees
Administrative services
Facilities

Insurance

Operating income before interest,
depreciation, and amortization
expenses

Interest

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income (loss) before special charges
Special charges

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating gains and losses

Investment return

Derivative losses

Gain on remeasurement of Akron General
equity investment

Akron General member substitution

Goodwill impairment loss

Other, net

Net nonoperating (losses) gains

Excess of revenues over expenses

1612-2136592

(In Thousands)

Consolidating
Obligated Non-Obligated Adjustments

Group Group and Eliminations Consolidated
$ 6,557,092 $ 350,239 (194,848) $ 6,712,483
(216,960) (14,344) — (231,304)
6,340,132 335,895 (194,848) 6,481,179
572,069 238,172 (134,448) 675,793
6,912,201 574,067 (329,296) 7,156,972
3,743,243 276,170 (229,937) 3,789,476
611,439 54,397 (990) 664,846
677,496 23,740 - 701,236
370,608 40,078 (12,308) 398,378
127,155 74,694 (26,015) 175,834
271,167 35,174 (5,689) 300,652
59,798 56,626 (54,357) 62,067
5,860,906 560,879 (329,296) 6,092,489
1,051,295 13,188 - 1,064,483
120,318 3,823 - 124,141
380,440 29,013 - 409,453
550,537 (19,648) - 530,889
8,701 32,226 - 40,927
541,836 (51,874) ~ 489,962
(48,924) (7,404) - (56,328)
(22,325) (2,685) - (25,010)
38,777 - - 38,777

- 242,822 - 242,822

- (63,060) - (63,060)

(9,345) 400 - (8.945)
(41,817) 170,073 ~ 128,256
500,019 118,199 - 618,218
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidating Statements of Operations and
Changes in Net Assets (continued)

(In Thousands)

Consolidating

Obligated Non-Obligated Adjustments
Groun Group and Eliminatio Consolidated
Total net assets at January 1, 2015 $ 6,273,610 §$ 532,333 § (3,448) $ 6,802,495
Excess of revenues over expenses 500,019 118,199 - 618,218
Donated capital, excluding assets released from
restrictions for capital purposes of $5,760 46 46
Restricted gifts and bequests 132,253 368 132,621
Restricted net investment (loss) income (972) 240 (732)
Net assets released from restrictions used for
operations included in other unrestricted revenues (38,438) (6,055) (44,493)
Retirement benefits adjustment 25,546 (3,799) 21,747
Transfers (to) from affiliates (207,971) 207,971
Change in restricted net assets related
to interest in foundations (1,478) (33,353) - (34,831)
Change in restricted net assets related
to value of perpetual trusts (480) (196) - (676)
Net change in unrealized losses
on nontrading investments (4,947) - - (4,947)
Akron General member substitution contribution
of restricted net assets - 31,674 - 31,674
Other
Increase in total net assets
Total net assets at December 31, 2015 6,676,408 836,038 (3,448) 7,508,998
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 525,860 (12,353) - 513,507
Donated capital, excluding assets released from
restrictions for capital purposes of $22,683 724 41 - 765
Restricted gifts and bequests 97,207 3,988 - 101,195
Restricted net investment income 22,755 1,696 - 24,451
Net assets released from restrictions used for
operations included in other unrestricted revenues (40,895) 4,397) (45,292)
Retirement benefits adjustment (6,835) (10,954) (17,789)
Transfers (to) from affiliates (116,453) 116,453
Change in restricted net assets related
to interest in foundations 432 432
Change in restricted net assets related
to value of perpetual trusts 1,318) (773) 2,091)
Foreign currency translation loss (73) (59,108) (59,181)
Net change in unrealized gains
on nontrading investments 320 - 320
Other (304) 788 484
Increase in total net assets 481.420 35.381 516,801
Total net assets at December 31, 2016 b 7.157.828 K R71 419 § (1.448) S  R.025.799

See accompanying notes.
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2016
(In Thousands)

Operating activities and net nonoperating gains and losses
Increase in total net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in total net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities and
net nonoperating gains and losses:
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Retirement benefits adjustment
Net realized and unrealized gains on investments
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Foreign currency translation loss
Donated capital
Restricted gifts, bequests, investment income, and other
Transfers to (from) affiliates
Amortization of bond premiums and debt issuance costs
Net gain in value of derivatives
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient receivables
Other current assets
Other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities and net
nonoperating gains and losses

Financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Payments for advance refunding and redemption of long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt

Debt issuance costs

Change in pledges receivables, trusts and interests in foundations
Restricted gifis, bequests, investment income, and other

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Investing activities

Expenditures for property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Net change in cash equivalents reported in Jong-term investments
Purchases of investments

Sales of investments

Transfers (to) from affiliates

Net cash used in investing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes.
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Obligated Non-Obligated
Group Group
$ 481,420 $ 35381 §
3,925
6,835 10,954
(356,893) (25,253)
402,420 88,872
263,790 37,904
73 59,108
(724) (41)
(119,076) 4,911)
116,453 (116,453)
(1,670) 13
(1,954) (6,881)
(360,430) (52,772)
46,920 (18,837)
(191,171) 29,839
94,448 3,147
23,621 (14.693
404,062 29,302
502,370 145,711
(148,260)
(143,228) (26,643)
(949)
(11,510) 1,307
119.076 4911
465,759 (22,974)
(487,936) (176,767)
1,585
91,241 54,823
(2,375,754) (381,917)
2,351,802 320,101
(116.453) 116,453
(535,515) (67,307)
(73) (2.206)
334,233 (63,185)
176.869 72,711
S 511.102 8§ 9.526 $

Consolidating
Adjustments
Eliminations

2,641
3,030

102,773
(5,671)

102,773

(145,633)

42,860

(102,773)

Consolidated

$ 516,801

3,925
17,789
(382,146)
491,292
301,694
59,181
(765)
(123,987)

(1,657)
(8,835)

(410,561)
31,113

(58,559)
91,924
8.928

536,137

502,448
(148,260)
(127,011)

(949)

(10,203)

123.987

340,012

(664,703)
1,585
146,064

(2,757,671)
2,671,903

(602,822)
(2.2790
271,048
249.580
b 520.628
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2015
(In Thousands)

Operating activities and net nonoperating gains and losses
Increase in total net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in total net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities and
net nonoperating gains and losses:
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Retirement benefits adjustment
Net realized and unrealized losses on investments
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Gain on change in terms of long-term lease
Donated capital
Restricted gifts, bequests, investment income, and other
Transfers to (from) affiliates
Amortization of bond premiums and debt issuance costs
Net loss (gain) in value of derivatives
Goodwill impairment loss
Gain on remeasurement of Akron General equity investment
Akron General member substitution contribution
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient receivables
Other current assets
Other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities and net
nonoperating gains and losses

Financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Principal payments on long-term debt

Debt issuance costs

Change in pledges receivables, trusts and interests in foundations
Restricted gifts, bequests, investment income, and other

Net cash provided by financing activities

Investing activities

Expenditures for property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Cash acquired through member substitution

Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired

Net change in cash equivalents reported in long-term investments
Purchases of investments

Sales of investments

Transfers (to) from affiliates

Net cash used in investing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying notes

1612-2136592

$

Obligated Non-Obligated

Group

402,798 $

209
(25,546)
87,709
380,440
216,960

(46)
(129,323)
207,971
(2,533)

57

(38,777)

(289,295)
(37,760)
(81,420)

15,025
(14.922)

691,547

(109,280)

23,980
129,323
44,023

(380,380)
183

327,466
(2,534,242)
2,085,486

173,917

Groupn

303,705 §

3,799
10,107
38,450
14,344
(6,856)

32,941
(207,971)
(19)
(615)
63,060

(274,496)

(10,036)
5,091
27,953
20,902
11427

31,786

378,777
(6,502)
(89)

39,580
(32.941)

378,825

(73,156)
987
15,367
(420,144)
(21,891)
(294,432)
327,833
166
405

5,341

Consolidating
Adjustments
Eliminations

(608)
(16,101)
(24,114)

(109)

(40,932)

3.777)
44,709

40,932

Consolidated

$

706,503

209
(21,747)
97,816
418,890
231,304

(6,856)
(46)
(96,382)

(2,552)
(558)
63,060
(38,777)
(274,496)

(299,939)
(48,770)
(77,581)

35,818
(3.495)

682,401

375,000
(71,073)
(89)
63,560
96.382
463,780

(453,536)
1,170
15,367

(420,144)
305,575
(2,828,674)
2,413,319

179,258
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Cleveland Clinic Health System

Notes to Consolidating Financial Statements

December 31, 2016 and 2015

1. Presentation of Consolidating Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statement information presents consolidating financial statement
information for the Obligated Group (as defined herein) and certain controlled affiliates of
The Cleveland Clinic Foundation (collectively referred to as the Non-Obligated Group), which
have no liability under the Master Trust Indenture (Indenture), amended and restated as of April 1,
2003 (as supplemented, the Indenture), between The Cleveland Clinic Foundation and
The Huntington National Bank, as successor Master Trustee. The Cleveland Clinic Foundation,
Cleveland Clinic Health System — East Region, Fairview Hospital, Lutheran Hospital, Marymount
Hospital, Inc., Medina Hospital, Cleveland Clinic Florida (a nonprofit corporation) and Cleveland
Clinic Florida Health System Nonprofit Corporation are the sole members of the Obligated Group
under the Indenture.

With respect to the Obligated Group, certain properties and interests are considered to be Excluded
Property under the Indenture. In addition, the provisions of the Indenture provide that additional
property may be categorized as Excluded Property upon satisfaction of various financial tests.
As such, these properties and interests are not subject to the restrictions contained in the Indenture
and, under the Indenture, are not subject to the restriction on liens and other encumbrances that
may be placed on property of the Obligated Group. Furthermore, the revenues derived from the
Excluded Property are not subject to the restrictions contained in the Indenture until they are
received and commingled with other revenues of the Obligated Group. The accompanying
financial statement information is presented by legal entity and no adjustment has been made for
the Excluded Property.

2. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

As described in paragraph 6 of Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the System adopted
ASU 2017-07 on January 1, 2017. The adoption of ASU 2017-07 was applied retrospectively to
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 as reflected in the accompanying supplementary
information.
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